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1 TRAVISKIEL, 1 A. Wadl, we have meetings there, various
2 having beenfirst duly sworn, testified as follows: 2 digrict meetings. And | have gone back there
3 3 because | usedto bethe principa there.
4 EXAMINATION 4 Q. How many times have you been to Audubon
5 5 gnceyou have been principa at Crenshaw?
6 BY MS LHAMON: 6 A. | don't know. Maybe two.
7 Q. Wereswore you today because there is anew 7 Q. Okay.
8 court reporter. 8 A. Yes
9 Good morning, Mr. Kidl. 9 Q. Sotwotimesin thethree years?
10 A. Good morning. 10 A. Right.
11 Q. I want to remind you that the same rules 11 Q. And how about Manua Arts, what took you to
12 apply, that we have discussed earlier in your 12 Manua Arts?
13 deposition, apply today. 13 A. A mesting; | took agroup of sudents for a
14 Isthat okay? 14 conference.
15 A. Yes 15 Q. Sojust the onetime since you have been
16 Q. You haven' taken any medication or 16 principa of Crenshaw?
17 anything else that would alter your ahility to 17 A. That | canrecall. I'm sorry. Football
18 testify fully and truthfully today? 18 gamesnow that | think about it. | have beento
19 A. Not that | know of. 19 other high schools for football games, but not
20 MR. ROSENBAUM: And the vision of going to 20 necessarily in the school; just to the football
21 Bakersfield would not influence your testimony? 21 dtadium. Okay.
22 THE WITNESS: | hope not. 22 MS. GODFREY': | think | might liketo
23 BY MS LHAMON: 23 interpose alate objection just to the term "visit."
24 Q. Wdll, let me know if it does, please. 24 | don't know if you mean set foot on campus or any
25 A. If I want something more pleasant to think 25 length of time.
Page 456 Page 458
1 about, | will think about that. 1 THE WITNESS: | might visit in terms of
2 Q. | know going to Bakersfiedld compares more 2 stting foot on campus.
3 favorably to being here today. 3 BY MS.LHAMON:
4 A. Anyway. 4 Q. | appreciate the clarification. If you can
5 Q. Okay. Inyour timeasprincipd at 5 think of any other schoals, please go ahead and let
6 Crenshaw, have you had occasion to visit other 6 meknow.
7 schools? 7 As for Washington Prep, what took you to
8 A. Yes. 8 Washington Prep since you have been principa at
9 Q. What other schools have you visited since 9 Crenshaw?
10 you have been principd a Crenshaw? 10 A. | stopped by to visit acounsdor, afriend
11 A. Visited Audubon, Manua Arts, Washington 11 of mine we went to college together. And | stopped
12 Prep. 12 bytotak to him one day when | was out in the
13 Q. Those are the only schools that you have 13 aea
14 visited since you have been principd at Crenshaw? 14 Q. Have you been there for any other purpose
15 A. Wdl, Hamilton High Schoal. 15 since you have been principa of Crenshaw?
16 Q. Can you think of any other schools, other 16 A. Football and basketball.
17 thanthose, while you have been principa at 17 Q. Hamilton High School, what took you to
18 Crenshaw that you visited? 18 Hamilton High Schoal, since you have been principa
19 A. That'sthe only ones| can think of. 19 of Crenshaw High School ?
20 Q. WhereisManua Arts High School? 20 A. My son attends Hamilton High School, and |
21 A. Itisin Los Angdes Unified School 21 have gonethere as aparent and for mestings.
22 Didtrict. It's on Robertson near the 405 freeway -- 22 Q. Werethose meetings related to your son or
23 near the 10 Freeway. 23 werethey rlated to your duties as principa?
24 Q. And garting with Audubon, what took you to 24 A. Most of them were related to my son. |
25 Audubon since you have been principa at Crenshaw? 25 can't think of any meetings, since | have been
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1 principa a Crenshaw, that alowed meto go to 1 BY MS LHAMON:
2 Hamilton to visit for district purposes. 2 Q. Do you let your son know that?
3 Q. And how do you think that Audubon compares 3 A. They are better than usin golf because my
4 inany way with Crenshaw High School? 4 sonisonthegolfing -- no.
5 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 5 | don't know. | don't know. | honestly,
6 ambiguous. 6 to behonest with you, | think the Crenshaw campus
7 MS. STRONG: Join. 7 iscleaner than the Hamilton campus. | noticed
8 THE WITNESS: Audubon isamiddle school 8 that, just as| walked through the campus, | felt a
9 and Crenshaw isahigh school. And I'm not surel 9 littlemore, | fet our school was alittle cleaner
10 know what you mean when you said comparison. 10 than Hamilton High School.
11 BY MS LHAMON: 11 Now that's my opinion.
12 Q. Okay. Thanksfor letting me know. 12 Q. That'swhat I'm asking for.
13 How do the fecilities at Audubon compare, 13 A. Yes.
14 or do you think the facilities at Audubon are 14 Q. Thanks.
15 roughly equivalent to those at Crenshaw High 15 Have you had occasion to visit classrooms
16 School? 16 at Hamilton?
17 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 17 A. Yes
18 ambiguous and compound. 18 Q. And how did you think that the classrooms
19 MS. STRONG: Join; callsfor speculation. 19 comparedto classrooms at Crenshaw?
20 THE WITNESS: | would think that the 20 A. It depends on the teacher. Some classrooms
21 facilities are somewhat comparable asfar as 21 were--
22 grounds, hals, the campus; they are pretty much, 22 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague asto
23 they are pretty much kept in the same manner. 23 "compared.”
24 BY MS.LHAMON: 24 THE WITNESS: Some classsoomswere dll
25 Q. And does Audubon Middle School havethe 25 decorated at Hamilton and some was boring, and the
Page 460 Page 462
1 samenumber of credentided teachers as Crenshaw 1 samewith Crenshaw.
2 High School has? 2 BY MS.LHAMON:
3 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 3 Q. Okay. If you had a choice between sending
4 gpeculation, and time, vague asto time. 4 your son to Hamilton or sending your son to
5 MS. GODFREY: Join. 5 Crenshaw, which would you prefer to send your son
6 THE WITNESS: | don't -- okay. | don't 6 to?
7  know. 7 MS. STRONG: Objection; his persona
8 BY MS.LHAMON: 8 opinion testimony is completely irrdlevant to this
9 Q. When you were principa at Audubon Middle 9 case; so beyond the scope.
10 School, do you know if they had the same number of 10 MS. GODFREY: Yes, | would havetojoin.
11 teachersthat Crenshaw now has? 11 I'm just not sure what the relevance is of
12 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague astotime. 12 Mr. Kid's persond preference with respect to his
13 MS. STRONG: Again, cdlsfor speculation. 13 son, you know. That's caling for some persona
14 THE WITNESS: | redly can't remember. 14 information.
15 However, thereis more teachersin Crenshaw than 15 I'm not redlly sure that's relevant to
16 thereareat Audubon. 16 issuesthat are at bar in this lawsuit.
17 BY MS.LHAMON: 17 BY MS.LHAMON:
18 Q. Okay. Thanks. 18 Q. You can answer.
19 Hamilton High School and Crenshaw High 19 A. | wouldn't have -- | allowed my sonto
20 Schooal, how do the two high schools compare? 20 attend the school that he wanted to attend. His
21 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 21 friends went to Hamilton High Schoal.
22 ambiguous. 22 If | had to make a decision between
23 MS. STRONG: Join. 23 Crenshaw and others, | would look at the program.
24 THE WITNESS. Wdll, we are much better than 24 Crenshaw has a gifted magnet program that | fed
25 themin basketball; we beat them al thetime. 25 very good about. Hamilton had amusic academy; he
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1 wasamusc, he played amusical instrument. But he 1 A. No.
2 choseto go before, because his brother had goneto 2 Q. So you haven't had a chance to benefit from
3 Hamilton. 3 the Learning Walk from other people visiting your
4 So | don't know. | would have a problem. 4  school?
5 Let meput it likethis: 1 wouldn't have a 5 A. No.
6 problem with my son going to Crenshaw if | was there 6 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
7 asprincipd. Andthat'sjust my personal fedings 7 ambiguous, misstates testimony.
8 about my son. 8 BY MS. LHAMON:
9 So that's as close as | can cometo an 9 Q. Arethere other trainings scheduled
10 answer to that. 10 relevant to Learning Walk?
11 Q. Okay. Thank you. 11 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
12 Have you heard of the Learning Walk? 12 ambiguous.
13 A. Yes. 13 THEWITNESS: Yes, I'msurethereis.
14 Q. Haveyou participated in the Learning Walk? 14 MS. GODFREY: Sheisn't asking you if you
15 A. Very-- | went to onetraining session at 15 weresure. Sheasked if you knew, what your
16 the | can't remember the hotd, but it was 16 understanding was.
17 downtown. I think it wasthe old Hilton, but it may 17 THEWITNESS: Okay. | dont know if any is
18 be something dsenow. | don't know. And we spent 18 scheduled at thetime.
19 adayintraining for that Learning Walk; that's 19 BY MS. LHAMON:
20 dl. Andwe haven't had any followups on that. 20 Q. You are not scheduled to go to any further
21 Q. And what isthe Learning Walk? 21 trainingstothe Learning Walk?
22 A. Learning Walk is a process whereby 22 A. Not currently.
23 administrators can walk through, or not just 23 Q. What did you think of the Learning Walk
24 administrators, but people walk through the 24  fromthetraining that you did go to?
25 classes. And they teach you how to observe what's 25 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
Page 464 Page 466
1 goingoninavery short period of time, asfar as 1 ambiguous.
2 whether the teachers are using standards based 2 MS. GODFREY: Join.
3 instruction or teaching methods. And so you get the 3 THE WITNESS: | think it's another process
4 -- 4 for evaduating instruction in the classroom. There
5 So it's actually an evaluation process of 5 aeseverd techniques that you can use, but that's
6 what's happening in the classroom. And you look, 6 asgood asany, | think.
7 it'satechnique for observing and evaluation. And 7 BY MS.LHAMON:
8 if, later onif you are the principal of aschoal, 8 Q. What are some other techniques that you
9 not avidgtor, it would be a situation to offer 9 know about to evaluate learning in classrooms?
10 guidance and assistance to the teacher. 10 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
11 Q. And have you gone on any Learning Walks? 11 ambiguous.
12 A. | havent gone on aLearning Walk. Our 12 THE WITNESS: Wdll, you go into the
13 district wasin the process of training, and we have 13 classroom and you sit with, sit down and observe
14 only had that one day. 14 what's going on to seeif the kids are involved and
15 Q. Okay. Andwhen you say "our district," do 15 active; seeif the teacher isteaching from using
16 you mean LAUSD asawhole? 16 standards based instruction; seeif the kids are
17 A. I'musing it interchangeably. L.A. 17 involved in the teaching process or in the learning
18 district asawholeisin training, but I'm pretty 18 process, and whether or not she's using a variety of
19 much referring to theloca District G. 19 techniquesto spark the interest of the students.
20 Q. And so to your knowledge, no principal in 20 BY MS.LHAMON:
21 loca District G has actudly gone on the Learning 21 Q. Haveyou ever seen training in that method
22 Wadk yet? 22 of evaluating what's going on in the classroom?
23 A. | don't know that; | don't know that. 23 A. Yes
24 Q. Okay. Hasthe Learning Wak gone through 24 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
25 Crenshaw High School? 25 BY MS.LHAMON:
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1 Q. When did you receive that training? 1 A. Yes, a the Airport Marriott.
2 A. All my career, 32 years of it, including 2 Q. And who organized that conference?
3 codlege 3 A. A group cdled Council of Black
4 Q. Okay. And have you received any formal 4  Administrators.
5 training in that form of evaluation? 5 Q. Wasthat conference arequired conference
6 MS. GODFREY: Objection. 6 for you?
7 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 7 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
8 MS. GODFREY: And ambiguous. 8 THE WITNESS: No.
9 THE WITNESS: Forma training outside of 9 MS. GODFREY: Join.
10 theuniversities? Conferences. 10 BY MS. LHAMON:
11 And | don't know. I'm not quite sure when 11 Q. What made you decide to go?
12 you say formal training. 12 A. Wadl, they give scholarships. Therewasa
13 BY MS. LHAMON: 13 combination of conference and ascholarship, and |
14 Q. | don't mean outside of the university and 14 havejust attended that over the years. | went
15 conferences. 15 because | wanted to go to the council.
16 | mean, have you received any training that 16 Q. They gave scholarships to students at the
17 isspecific to that form of evaluation in the 17 school?
18 classroom? 18 A. Tothe gtudents at schools. Kids haveto
19 MS. GODFREY: Same objection. 19 apply for these scholarships across the district;
20 THEWITNESS: | can't think of, | can't 20 it'snot guaranteed to any one school. They havea
21 think of the last training that | have attended 21 scholarship committee, and the kids apply.
22 right now. 22 Q. And you said that you went becauise you
23 BY MS.LHAMON: 23  wanted to?
24 Q. Atanytime? 24 A. Yes
25 A. Inour meetings, principas mestings, we 25 Q. Why? I'msorry.
Page 468 Page 470
1 talk about techniques. Wetak about, we go to 1 Why did you want to go?
2 conferences. | went to Educating the Black Child 2 A. To support the organization, because I'm a
3 Conference sometime in June; maybe it was June, the 3 member of the organization, and to learn new
4 first weekend in June, the second week. | can't 4 techniques or dtrategies, that there was a speaker
5 remember the exact date. We talked about educating 5 that | wasinterested in hearing; and to support the
6 theblack child; talked about techniques. Therewas 6 scholarship program the organization offers to kids,
7 several workshops that you could go in to attend. 7 needy students.
8 | went to a conference in Atlanta, 8 Q. Who was the spesaker you were interested to
9 Georgia | can't remember the exact dates, but it 9 hea?
10 would have had to have been thefirst year that | 10 A. Dr. Ernest Smith. Heis adoctor, well, |
11 wasprincipa a Crenshaw. Soit must have beenin 11 don't know wherefrom. | think he practices at King
12 '99. Andtherel learned from a gentleman by the 12 Drew over a Martin Luther King Hospital.
13 name of Harry Long, who was very impressive. And he 13 Q. What was the topic of histalk?
14 taked about teachers, of helping teachers, having a 14 A. Thetopic of histak was, thetitle of his
15 program to help teachers, new teachers to your 15 workshop is parenting and how to successfully
16 schoal. 16 prepare your kids.
17 And | use some of that information to 17 Q. Did youfind it helpful to you as principa
18 assist the new teachers a Crenshaw. 18 togoto that topic?
19 Q. When you say you went in June to the 19 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague.
20 Educating the Black Child Conference in June of 20 MS. STRONG: Join.
21 2001 -- 21 THE WITNESS: | found it stimulating, yes.
22 A. Yes 22 BY MS. LHAMON:
23 Q. -- where was that conference? 23 Q. And what about it was stimulating?
24 A. Atthe Marriott. 24 A. Wadl, we got to hear from alot of people,
25 Q. HereinLos Angdes? 25 parentsinthe audience, to talk about their
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1 experiencesinraising their children. 1 So the answer to the questionis: No.
2 And one of the things thet | tend to 2 BY MS LHAMON:
3 Dbdieveisthat, our vaue system structure, the 3 Q. Okay. Hasthere been any particular thing
4 vauesthat students are getting there is not, it 4 that's been important to you when sdlecting schools
5 hasaproblem -- thereis aproblem with the vaue 5 a whichto be an administrator?
6 sructure. Andsol, and I'm always, | dways want 6 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts not
7 tofind out and look for ways to work towards 7 inevidence and vague and ambiguous.
8 improving the value system. That's one of the 8 MS. STRONG: Vague and ambiguous.
9 thingsthat | fedl that our system, our society has 9 THEWITNESS: | cant -- | know | went to,
10 lostitsvaue gtructure that comes from parents. | 10 | havetriedto get avariety of experiences, 0|
11 think the family structure has broken down. 11 have goneto different communities and different
12 And, therefore, anumber of kids, aswe 12 schools and middle schools and high schoolsin
13 know them at our instructional program and our 13 different areas of the City. And sometimes you are
14 educational system, is not able to cope with some of 14  assigned to schoals by the superintendent who will
15 thevaueskids have and where our kids are getting 15 ask youto gotothe school. Soyou don't dways
16 their, who should give kidstheir values. | think 16 just have your choice of where you want to go.
17 that'san areathat we redlly need to focus on as 17 So | would say that my desire has been to
18 educatorsand as a society in the home. 18 get awdl-rounded experience throughout the schools
19 And so | was, | went to -- I'm aways 19 and throughout the community in the City.
20 interested in those type of issues. And whenever | 20 BY MS. LHAMON:
21  can hear somebody speak about those types of issues, 21 Q. Haveyou stisfied that desire in your
22 | goandligten. 22  experience as an adminigtrator?
23 Q. You sad you went to the conference because 23 A. Yes
24 you hopedto learn. 24 Q. I'mgoing to turn to some of the specifics.
25 Was that the topic principally what you 25 Onyour first day -- I'm sorry -- your
Page 472 Page 474
1 learned from the conference? 1 deposition last Friday, so on your second day of
2 A. Yes. 2 deposition, you listed textbooks as among things
3 Q. And you said you are amember of the 3 that you believe achild needsto learn.
4 organization, Council of Black Administrators. 4 Why are textbooks important?
5 How long have you been amember? 5 MS. STRONG: Objection; | bdieveit
6 A. Since | have been administrator, which was 6 dightly misstates the testimony.
7 approximately -- alot of years. More than 15. 7 MS. GODFREY: I'm going to object as vague
8 Q. What does that membership involve? 8 and ambiguous, and may even cal for anarrative.
9 A. Paying your dues. Paying your dues, 9 BY MS.LHAMON:
10 seeking information; ways to ensure that 10 Q. You can answer.
11 African-American students get afair play; to leve 11 A. Repeating your question, why do | think
12 theplaying fidd; to assist administrators, 12 textbooks are important?
13 African-rAmericans administrators to work in 13 Q. That'sright.
14 improving life for dl children, but with afocus on 14 A. Okay. Wdll, | think textbooksisan aid to
15 African-American students. 15 assig studentsin learning. There are anumber of
16 Q. Have you, when sdlecting schools a which 16 thingsthat you can useto assist kidsin learning,
17 tobean administrator, has it been important to you 17 and textbooksis certainly one of them. So | think
18 that the students be African-Americans? 18 it'simportant that your students have textbooks.
19 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts, and 19 Andthat'swhy | think textbooks are important.
20 vague and ambiguous. 20 Q. Okay. Thanksfor clarifying.
21 MS. STRONG: Join. 21 Y ou aso list teachers among things that
22 THEWITNESS: No. | am an educator that 22 youthink are important for kids for learning.
23 happensto be African-American. Whether they are -- 23 Why are teachers important?
24 kidsarekids. | find out they dl need to be 24 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
25 taught and they dl need to learn. 25 ambiguous and calsfor anarrative.
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1 MS. STRONG: Also objection to the extent 1 irrelevant to the case.
2 that it'sasking for anything other than his 2 THE WITNESS: | think experience,
3 persond opinion testimony, which isirreevant to 3 experience -- experienceislike anything elsg; it's
4 thiscase. 4 likedriving, you need, the more you do something
5 THEWITNESS: | think teachersare 5 the better you get &t it, the more prepared. If you
6 important because you haveto, | think that it'sa 6 have somefailures, if you try atechnique and it
7 process of having knowledge and being ableto -- | 7  doesn't work, you get more to draw from, from your
8 think it'sthesame, | think it isas-- teachers 8 experiences. Y ou make mistakes; you improve upon
9 areimportant just like parentsin raising 9 them.
10 children. You haveto teach kidsto be adults as a 10 So those are the things that experience
11 subject matter. And how would kidslearn if they 11 lendsastowhy experienceisimportant.
12 didn't haveteachers. Sothat'swhy | think it's 12 | just think that the more you crossthe
13 important to impart information to the students, to 13 road the better you are going to be at crossing the
14 beaguiding force for students to learn. 14 road. Yougot to look both ways. And you get hit,
15 BY MS LHAMON: 15 or you dmost get hit, you will, the next time you
16 Q. And are you basing that on your experience 16  will definitely look both ways to make sure no car
17 asan educator? 17 iscoming.
18 A. I'mbasing that on my experience of a human 18 So experience isimportant. Certainly when
19 being and going to college and being an 19 it comesto adoctor, you wouldn't want arookie
20 adminigtrator and ateacher over the last 50 years. 20 versusaguy who had anumber years of experience at
21 Q. What makes an effective teacher? 21 operating or doing open heart surgery, thefirst
22 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 22 time versus aperson who has done it a couple times
23 ambiguous. 23 successfully, which one would you choose.
24 MS. STRONG: Cadlsfor expert testimony; 24 So | think experience, those are the
25 cdlsfor speculation. 25 reasons| think experience isimportant.
Page 476 Page 478
1 THE WITNESS: | think what makes an 1 BY MS.LHAMON:
2 ffective teacher is aperson that knows the subject 2 Q. What qualities do you look for in teachers
3 mater; personsthat have a knowledge of the 3 a Crenshaw?
4 community and students that they are teaching, and 4 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
5 onewhocares. | think caringisamagjor part of an 5 ambiguous.
6 effectiveteacher, caring that they are trying to 6 MS. STRONG: Joinin the objection.
7 reach dl students within the classroom, being 7 MS. GODFREY: Can you repest the question?
8 prepared to teach every day. 8 BY MS.LHAMON:
9 BY MS. LHAMON: 9 Q. I sad:
10 Q. Canyou think of anything else? 10 What qualities do you look for in teachers
11 A. Let'ssee. What | said, knowledgeable, 11 at Crenshaw?
12 skilled, caring, prepared; | think that those are 12 MS. STRONG: Same objection.
13 termsthat describe an effective teacher. 13 As part of the process or as principa?
14 Q. Do you think that experience mattersto 14 Just vague and ambiguous.
15 teaching? 15 THE WITNESS: In the selection process?
16 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 16 BY MS. LHAMON:
17 MS. GODFREY: Join. 17 Q. That'swhat | mean.
18 THEWITNESS: Yes, | think experience 18 A. Wadll, you look for certainly experience, if
19 maters. 19 they haveany. Youlook for, you look at their
20 BY MS.LHAMON: 20 ahility to do the course work that they are
21 Q. And how does it matter? 21 teaching. Youlook for experience, to seeif they
22 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 22 have any experience in teaching; that certainly
23 ambiguous. 23 would be desirable. But you aso look to try to
24 MS. STRONG: Object to the extent it calls 24 find a sophisticated person to cover a classroom, to
25 for anything beyond his opinion testimony, whichis 25 cover the classes.
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1 Y ou look for diction; seeif they can speak 1 it
2 wadl. Trytoask questionsto seeif they think on 2 But can | redlly go and say that it helped
3 ther feet. Youask themin that regard how they 3 thisperson? | don't know that. | would surelike
4 would handle things, to let them express 4 tothink that it does.
5 themsdves. You have the manuas, but you aso just 5 Q. And when you say you don't know for sure,
6 tryto determine whether or not they have experience 6 why do you say that?
7 inand are able to handle the classroom work with 7 A. Becausel don't go and give them atest and
8 students. 8 saythat, you know, are you, did this help you.
9 Q. Canyou think of anything else? 9 We did some staff development on standards
10 A. No. | think that'sal | can think of 10 based ingtruction, and teachers did start posting
11 right now. 11 dandardsin their classroom and posting them on the
12 MS. GODFREY: Could we take abresk for a 12 board asthey actudly taught.
13 minute? 13 So | would say that would be a management
14 MS. LHAMON: Sure. 14 tool.
15 (Recesstaken.) 15 Q. Okay. What do you do to try to recruit
16 MS. LHAMON: We can go back on. 16 teachersat Crenshaw?
17 BY MS. LHAMON: 17 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts not
18 Q. During your deposition last Friday, you 18 inevidence-- wdll, | should qualify that.
19 described some teacher training programs at Crenshaw | 19 | wasn't here for the other two days. If
20 for new teachers. 20 there was some testimony that Mr. Kiel gave about
21 Who qualifies as a new teacher for purposes 21 recruitment efforts at Crenshaw, | would apologize.
22 of thosetraining programs? 22 But objection; it assume facts, vague and
23 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor 23 ambiguous.
24 speculation. 24 MS. STRONG: And also asked and answered.
25 MS. GODFREY: It'svague astotime. 25 MS. GODFREY: Oh.
Page 480 Page 482
1 Are you speaking about this school year or 1 THE WITNESS. We have a couple programs we
2 what specific school year? 2 trythat dlowsteachers or students from colleges
3 BY MS.LHAMON: 3 todo student teaching at Crenshaw, and hope that
4 Q. Go ahead. 4 they doagood job, then we will keep them. That's
5 A. Weliketo havedl -- thereis a segment 5 oneof the things that we do.
6 for dl new teachers at Crenshaw and then thereis 6 We go, | have gone out to UCLA to visit
7 segments for teachers that are new to teaching 7 with the personnd speciaists to meet new college
8 totdly. 8 graduatesthat'sin educeation to try and to select
9 Q. Okay. Soyou have different programs for 9 and encourage them to come to Crenshaw.
10 both sets of teachers? 10 That'sal | can think of.
11 A. Thesame program; just that one dedls with 11 BY MS. LHAMON:
12 pieces, that you ded with, with people new to 12 Q. You anticipated my next question.
13 teaching, with people that's new to Crenshaw. 13 The student teachers who teach at Crenshaw,
14 Q. Thank you. 14 werethey students?
15 Do you notice that professional development 15 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
16 assidtsteachers? 16 ambiguous.
17 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 17 MS. STRONG: Callsfor speculation.
18 ambiguous. 18 THEWITNESS: From UCLA.
19 MS. STRONG: Join. 19 BY MS.LHAMON:
20 THEWITNESS: Dol noticeor do | know? 20 Q. Exclusively or a other schools that were
21 I'msorry. | didn't get that. 21 dsostudents?
22 BY MS. LHAMON: 22 A. Wearetrying to get Mary Mount Loyola
23 Q. | asked if you notice. 23 sudents. But right now, we just have UCLA.
24 A. Oh. Youknow, | don't know. | know we get 24 Q. Why don't you, how come you don't have any
25 dl excited and we present it, and we go through 25 Loyolastudents, do you know?
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1 A. We have met with the director, and we are 1 testimony.
2 trying to make that happen. | don't know. Maybe 2 MS. STRONG: Join.
3 because we havent tried. Or | don't know why. 3 THEWITNESS: Yes, | expect to go.
4 Q. Okay. After you -- 4 BY MS.LHAMON:
5 Well, when do you go to UCLA to meet with 5 Q. Okay. Isthat because hope springs
6 new college graduates? 6 eerna?
7 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts. 7 MS. STRONG: | didn't hear that.
8 MS. STRONG: Vagueastotime. 8 (The record was read as follows:
9 THE WITNESS: Sometime in the month of May. 9 Isthat because hope springs
10 BY MS.LHAMON: 10 eternal?)
11 Q. Isthat amonth? 11 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
12 A. Yes 12 THEWITNESS: | dont know. 1 ill
13 Q. Soyouwent thislast May? 13 continueto try every technique that | can to get
14 A. | didn't gothislast May. 14 teachers.
15 Q. Did someone go in your stead from Crenshaw? 15 BY MS LHAMON:
16 A. No, no. 16 Q. Why are you trying every technique that you
17 Q. Didyou go at any other time or you just 17 canto get teachers?
18 didn't gothisyear? 18 A. Because you have classrooms that you need
19 A. | just didn't get to go this yesr. 19 teachers; you need teachers at the school. And
20 Q. Inthe past, did you go the past two years 20 that'swhy wewill try to get them, because you need
21 to meet with recent graduates? 21 teachers.
22 A. Yes 22 Q. Andif you didn't engage in teacher
23 Q. And after those two years, did you see 23 recruitment, what would happen?
24 gpplicants from that pool ? 24 MS. GODFREY: I'm sorry? What wasthe
25 A. Yes 25 firg part of the question?
Page 484 Page 486
1 Q. Didyou hire any? 1 BY MS.LHAMON:
2 A. No. 2 Q. Andif you didn't engage in teacher
3 Q. Did you offer any jobs? 3 recruitment, what would happen?
4 A. Yes. 4 MS. GODFREY: Objection.
5 Q. Andthey just didn't come? 5 MS. STRONG: Objection.
6 A. That's correct. 6 MS. GODFREY': Assumes facts and vague and
7 Q. Do you know why they didn't come? 7 ambiguous.
8 MS. GODFREY: Objection; callsfor 8 MS. STRONG: Calsfor speculation;
9 speculation. 9 incomplete hypothetical.
10 MS. STRONG: Join to the extent it's beyond 10 MS. GODFREY: Join.
11 ayesor no question. 11 THE WITNESS: | think that part of the task
12 THEWITNESS: No, | don't, 12 that principals haveisto try to staff the schoal.
13 BY MS. LHAMON: 13 Sofromadistrict office, you list openings, and
14 Q. They didn't tdl you why they didn't come? 14 they refer people out. You still have to interview
15 A. No. 15 them.
16 Q. Did you make inquiry to find out why they 16 So the district would say: Here arethe
17 didn't come? 17 candidates.
18 A. Not redly, no, | didn't. 18 BY MS. LHAMON:
19 Q. How comeyou didn't? 19 Q. Okay. Do you tak to other principas
20 A. Because| wastoo busy trying to get people 20 about whet they do to recruit teachers?
21 that would come and help them. 21 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague asto time.
22 Q. And given thelack of successin the last 22 THEWITNESS. Yes.
23 two years from going to that program, do you expect 23 BY MS. LHAMON:
24 to go again next year to the UCLA program? 24 Q. Towhom have you spoken about recruiting
25 MS. GODFREY: Objection; misstates prior 25 teachers?
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1 A. Margaret Lamont, principal of Washington 1 gavemeany specific thing that he was doing that
2  Prep; Wendell Greer, Y olanda Anderson. 2 heped me
3 That'sdl | can think of. 3 Q. And how about Y olanda Anderson, what did
4 Q. WhereisWendd| Greer aprincipal ? 4 shetdl you about her effortsto recruit teachers?
5 A. Heisprincipa a Manua Arts. 5 A. | remember discussing it with her, because
6 Q. WhereisY olanda Anderson a principal? 6 | had worked at that school prior to going to
7 A. Sheisprincipa a Audubon Middle School. 7 Crenshaw. And shewas just telling me that the
8 Q. What has Margaret Lamont told you about her 8 number of people that come in sometime off the
9 effortsto recruit principas? 9 dtreet that's not prepared and how difficult it is
10 A. Nothing. 10 to get teachers with experience.
11 Q. I'msorry. | thought that you told me you 11 Q. Do you agree with that statement?
12 spoketo her about efforts to recruit principals; is 12 A. | don't remember whether | agreed with it
13 that not correct? 13 or not.
14 A. | never spoketo her about effortsto 14 Q. Do you agree with it now?
15 recruit principals. 15 A. It'sdifficult to find teachers with
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: Y ou said effortsto recruit 16 experience.
17 principas. 17 Q. Canyou tdl me about the internet searches
18 BY MS. LHAMON: 18 you have done for teachers at Crenshaw?
19 Q. | meanteachers. 19 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts and
20 What has Margaret Lamont told you about her 20 vague and ambiguous.
21 effortsto recruit teachers? 21 MS. STRONG: And cdlsfor anarative.
22 A. That shevisited colleges. Shewas going 22 THE WITNESS: We have a Staff Selection
23 toanumber of colleges and shetriesto, shehas 23 Committee. And one of the chair persons of the
24 goneontheinternet. That was| think, if | 24 Staff Selection Committee went on the internet. And
25 remember the conversation, that was the biggest 25 asaresult, we got two applicants and set up
Page 488 Page 490
1 thingthat | remember that she said was something 1 interviews.
2 new that she had done. 2 BY MS.LHAMON:
3 BY MS.LHAMON: 3 Q. And you hired both of them?
4 Q. Haveyou tried going on the internet 4 A. Yes.
5 vyoursdf? 5 Q. Did those teachers have teaching
6 A. Yes 6 credentias?
7 Q. Hasthat yielded teachers for Crenshaw? 7 MS. GODFREY': If you know.
8 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 8 THE WITNESS: | don't know. | know that if
9 speculation. 9 they came from the district, the district don't
10 THEWITNESS:. Yes. 10 dlow anyone to be processed; our teachers are
11 BY MS. LHAMON: 11 processed through the digtrict, at the district
12 Q. How many teachers has that yielded? 12 office. Andthey don't dlow anyoneto be processed
13 A. Two. 13 without a credential.
14 Q. And when did you first go on the internet? 14 BY MS. LHAMON:
15 A. | don't remember. | know -- | can't 15 Q. And that includes emergency credentials?
16 remember if it wasthe last school year or this 16 A. That's correct.
17 school year. 17 Q. And you don't know if those teachers, who
18 Q. And what did Wendell Greer tell you about 18 camefromtheinternet search, had emergency
19 his€ffortsto recruit teachers? 19 credentias?
20 A. | can't redly remember the details of the 20 A. | don't remember whether they hed
21 conversation. | do know we have discussed teacher 21 credentids or emergency credentids.
22 recruitment, and just kind of shared some ideas and 22 Q. Okay. What subject areas did those two
23 thoughts which we, which were some of the things 23 teachers, who came to your school from the interngt,
24 that we were encountering asit relatesto 24 teach?
25 recruiting teechers. But | can't remember if he 25 MS. GODFREY: Hold on asecond.
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1 I'm just concerned about being able to 1 BY MS LHAMON:
2 identify specific teachers and whether or not they 2 Q. When | ask you about "you," I'm asking
3 werecredentialed or had emergency credentials as 3 about you persondly.
4 being someform, or being aform or something that 4 That's one of the steps you follow.
5 would be protected by the persond privilege or 5 MS. GODFREY: So you need to identify
6 privacy right. 6 teachers--
7 Soif | canjust ask him aquestion, | 7 BY MS LHAMON:
8 think | can maybe let him answer that question. 8 Q. Soif  anasking --
9 MS. LHAMON: Okay. Let metdl you that 9 MS. GODFREY: So you need to identify --
10 credentided teachers are amatter of record, and 10 BY MS. LHAMON:
11 that information is available from the district, so 11 Q. Youasa--
12 it'snot private. 12 MS. LHAMON: If youwill let mefinish
13 MS. GODFREY: Whether or not ateacher has 13 before you start talking.
14 credentials, a specific teacher, not the number of 14 MS. GODFREY: I'msorry. | thought I did.
15 credentided teachers at school. 15 THE WITNESS: What is the question on the
16 MS. LHAMON: Where they teach is a matter 16 floor?
17 of public record, and it's not private materia. 17 BY MS LHAMON:
18 MS. GODFREY': Y ou can answer the question. 18 Q. What are the steps you follow to identify
19 Maybe she needs to read the question back 19 the need for teachers a Crenshaw High School?
20 toyou. 20 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
21 Would you read it back. 21 ambiguous and assumes facts not in evidence.
22 (Therecord was read as follows: 22 MS. STRONG: Join.
23 What subject areas did those two 23 THE WITNESS: Well, you have a master
24 teachers, who came to your school 24 schedule; you have alist of subjects that you
25 from the internet, teach?) 25 offer. Youlook at the number of teachers that's
Page 492 Page 494
1 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts. 1 needed; the number of students to be served; the
2 MS. STRONG: Could we take abreak? 2 subject matter.
3 BY MS.LHAMON: 3 It's usually pretty much a pattern now,
4 Q. | have got aquestion pending, so you heed 4 because you have the same subjects. And if English
5 toanswer the question first. 5 teachersresign or retire or get married and leave
6 A. If | remember correctly, and I'm not 6 the City, you know you need to fill that position.
7 dbsolutdly sure because we interview alot of 7 Soit'snot rocket science. You just fill the
8 teachers, | think one was math and Spanish | think. 8 vacanciesthat people usudly leave.
9 I'mnot absolutely sure. 9 And s0 you look &t the board and say:
10 Q. Okay. Thank you. 10 Okay; this Spanish teacher is leaving; you need to
11 Do you need abregk, Mr. Kid, or are you 11 find aSpanish teacher. This socid studies teacher
12 fineto keep going? 12 isleaving; we need to find a socid studies
13 A. I'mfine. 13 teacher.
14 MS. STRONG: Weaefine. 14 So we ligt those vacancies as soon aswe
15 THEWITNESS: I'mfine. 15 know them. Wetry to send out asurvey to ask
16 BY MS. LHAMON: 16 teachersareyou returning; are you retiring; are
17 Q. What are the steps you follow to identify a 17 youresigning, and as early as possible to establish
18 need for teachers a Crenshaw High School? 18 how many vacancies we need tofill.
19 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts, 19 And that's pretty much the way we do it.
20 vague and ambiguous. 20 BY MS.LHAMON:
21 And | would like to clarify something for 21 Q. Isthereatimein the school year when the
22 therecord. 22 school sends out this survey to teachers to ask them
23 When you ask Mr. Kid "you," are you asking 23 if they intend to return?
24 him persondly or are you asking as to Crenshaw High 24 A. Uh-huh. Yes.
25 School? 25 Q. Whenisthat time?

12 (Pages 491 to 494)




Page 495 Page 497
1 A. Wetryto sendit out in May for the 1 andambiguous.
2 upcoming school year. 2 MS. STRONG: Join.
3 Q. When do you get the responses to those 3 THE WITNESS: Okay. Some of themretire.
4  surveys? 4 Some of them are pregnant; you can see why they are
5 A. Weput atimeineon. We usually ask for 5 not coming back. Some move; some go to different
6 them back within aweek, five to seven days. 6 jobs. Somereslizethat teaching is not for them
7 Q. And do teachers respond promptly? 7 for avariety of reasons.
8 A. | was very pleased with the response. It 8 No set reason as to why; a number of
9 hasredly helped. That's one of thethingsthat | 9 reasons.
10 have been proud of a our school as principa that 10 BY MS. LHAMON:
11 we have garted to identify to start trying to 11 Q. Arethosedl the reasons that you heard
12 recruit teachers as early as possible. 12 from teachers about why they leave Crenshaw High
13 Q. And soif you know in May or in June how 13 School?
14 many teachers do not plan to return to the schoal in 14 A. That'sdl | canthink of right now.
15 thefal, do you have enough timeto recruit 15 Q. Do you know of any other principals
16 teachersfor the next year? 16 teacher recruitment practices that you do not
17 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague asto time, 17 follow?
18 and assumes facts, and misstates prior testimony. 18 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
19 THE WITNESS: | think it's adequate time, 19 ambiguous.
20 yes; | think we have adequate time. 20 THEWITNESS: I'msorry. | didn't
21 BY MS LHAMON: 21 understand the question.
22 Q. You said that you were proud at Crenshaw 22 BY MS. LHAMON:
23  that the school has instituted this survey. 23 Q. Okay. You saidthat you havetalked to a
24 Did the survey not exist before you became 24 few other principals about what they to do to
25 principal? 25 recruit teachersto their campuses.
Page 496 Page 498
1 A. | don't know. 1 And I'm wondering if you know from any
2 Q. Why isit that you are proud of it? 2 other principals about things that they do to
3 A. | dont know. Indl my years of 3 recruit teachers to their campuses that you have
4  experience, alot of times | remember as assistant 4  dected not to do?
5 principa and principal, and just growing up through 5 MS. STRONG: Objection; he aready
6 thedistrict, we didn't find out people were not 6 tedtified he doesn't remember speaking to any other
7 coming back until late in the summer. And so now if 7 principals about thisissue.
8 we can know, the sooner we know the better. 8 THE WITNESS: | can't think of anything.
9 So | was proud that a number of people 9 BY MS.LHAMON:
10 stepped up and said I'm not coming back or | have 10 Q. You can't think of anything that they do
11 passed the dlowance exam, and I'm not, you know. 11 that you don't do?
12 Just everybody identifies reasons why they weren't 12 A. That's correct.
13 coming back. And | was pleasedto be ableto get a 13 Q. Do you know, do you know if other schools
14 good, solid number. 14 in LAUSD have the same successin recruiting
15 So that'swhy | said | was proud. 15 teachersthat you have at Crenshaw High School ?
16 Q. Thanks. | appreciate the clarification. 16 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague, ambiguous
17 When teachers have told you that they don't 17 and compound.
18 planto come back, have you ever tried to convince 18 MS. STRONG: Join.
19 theteacher to stay? 19 THEWITNESS: | don't know.
20 A. | don't know if | have tried to convince 20 BY MS.LHAMON:
21 themto stay. | would ask them to explain why they 21 Q. Okay. Have you heard about any particular
22 areleaving. | have certainly wanted some to Stay. 22 schoalsinthe school district, and I'm talking
23 Q. What have teachers told you about why they 23 about the LAUSD-wide school digtrict, that have
24 leave? 24 particular difficulty in recruiting teachersto
25 MS. GODFREY: Objection; compound, vague 25 their campuses?
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1 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 1 MS. GODFREY: Okay.
2 ambiguous. 2 MR. ROSENBAUM: Please finish your answer,
3 THE WITNESS: | don't know. 1'm too busy 3 gr.
4 with my school. | really don't know. 4 MS. GODFREY : | would make the statement
5 BY MS LHAMON: 5 that we are not going to have tag teaming here.
6 Q. Okay. Do you know if other schoolsin the 6 Thereisone person conducting the deposition, and
7 sate have the same success in recruiting teachers 7 that'sthewayit'sgoingto be. Andif that's
8 that Crenshaw High School has? 8 Ms. Lhamon, | would appreciate that the deposition
9 MS. GODFREY: Objection; callsfor 9 be conducted just by Ms. Lhamon.
10 speculation. 10 Now | would like to respond to your
11 MS. STRONG: Join. 11 objection.
12 THE WITNESS: | don't know. 12 Y ou know, | believe that my objections have
13 BY MS LHAMON: 13 been gppropriate and professiondl, and I'm entitled
14 Q. Okay. Isthat aso considered true at 14 to makethem for therecord. | am entitled toin my
15 Crenshaw school? 15 opinion to make sure that the witnessislistening
16 A. And| am playing golf and raising ason and 16 and answering the questions that are being posed to
17 with an ailing mother; al the things that people 17 him.
18 havetodo. 18 I will let this witness answer the
19 Q. Sothat's-- 19 question, if you can read it back.
20 A. Yes 20 (The record was read as follows:
21 Q. Arethere particular subjects for which you 21 Question: Why isit that you have
22 havetrouble recruiting teachers at Crenshaw High 22 trouble recruiting teachers for
23 School? 23 meath and science? Answer:
24 MS. GODFREY: Objection; misstates the 24 According to the university
25 testimony and assumes facts not in evidence, 25 professors, and | don't know their
Page 500 Page 502
1 MS. STRONG: Vague and ambiguous. 1 names, | read this article
2 THEWITNESS. Yes 2 somewhere --)
3 BY MS.LHAMON: 3 BY MS.LHAMON:
4 Q. What subject are those? 4 Q. Pleasefinish your answer.
5 A. Math and science. 5 A. That they arejust not alarge number of
6 Q. Whyisit that you have trouble recruiting 6 individuas going into math and science for
7 teachersfor math and science? 7 teaching. So there appearsto be ashortage of
8 A. According to the university professors, and 8 graduates coming out of school to teach math and
9 | don't know their names, | read this article 9 <ience
10 somewhere-- 10 Q. Soit'syour understanding that the
11 MS. GODFREY: Hold on asecond. 11 shortage of math and science teachersis not
12 MR. ROSENBAUM: No. You don't tdl that to 12  specific to Crenshaw High Schoal, isthat right?
13 awitnesswhile the witnessistaking. Most of 13 A. That's correct.
14 your objections are unprofessional and 14 Q. Isitdigtrict wide?
15 inappropriate, but you do not cut off a witness when 15 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
16 heisbeginning to answer. 16 speculation.
17 MS. STRONG: Mr. Rosenbaum, | don't think 17 THE WITNESS: | think so.
18 it'sappropriate to have two counsd objecting and 18 BY MS. LHAMON:
19 asking the questions here today. | don't think you 19 Q. Okay. Isit state-wide?
20 have got aplace to speak. 20 A. | think so.
21 MR. ROSENBAUM: | have aprofessiona 21 MS. STRONG: Callsfor speculation.
22 responsibility to stop alawyer when she cuts off 22 BY MS.LHAMON:
23 her responding witness. 23 Q. Youaredoing fine.
24 MS. STRONG: | think Ms. Lhamon can handle 24 Could you give an answer for the record?
25 it onher ownif shefedsit's gppropriate. 25 I'mnot --
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1 A. | think it's state wide as well. 1 A. Yes
2 Q. That's based on your understanding from 2 Q. And when wasthat?
3 theseuniversity professors? 3 A. This past school year.
4 A. Correct. 4 Q. Oh. Sothe 2000/2001 school year?
5 Q. Giventhe difficulty recruiting teachers 5 A. That's correct.
6 for math and science, do you engagein any 6 Q. Hasthat been the only timeit's happened
7 paticular practices for math and for recruitment of 7 snceyou have been principal at Crenshaw High
8 math and science teachers for Crenshaw High School ? 8 School?
9 A. No more than the ones that we have stated 9 A. | can't remember in the past school.
10 earlier what wetry to do to recruit teachers. 10 Q. What did you do tofill -- I'm sorry.
11 Q. Okay. Soyou engage in the same practices 11 Y ou said you have had a substitute in the
12 for teachers of al subjects at Crenshaw high 12 classroomtofill that teacher vacancy?
13 school? 13 A. Yes
14 A. That's correct. 14 Q. Wasit the same subdtitute for the entire
15 Q. Do you keep aparticular lookout for math 15 timethat the vacancy was vacant?
16 or science teachers? 16 A. Yes
17 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 17 Q. So make sure | understand, when the
18 ambiguous. 18 2000/2001 school year began, there was no permanent
19 THE WITNESS: Continuoudly. 19 teacher hired for one math teacher dot at Crenshaw
20 BY MS.LHAMON: 20 High School?
21 Q. Okay. Andwhat do you mean by that? 21 A. That's correct.
22 A. Wdl, wejust always are trying to find 22 Q. And for the 2000/2001 school year, students
23 good, well, we are dways trying to find experienced 23 inthose math classes saw only one teacher for the
24  math teechers. 24  entireyear?
25 Q. And science teachers aswell? 25 A. Saw only one teacher?
Page 504 Page 506
1 A. And science teachers, yes. 1 Q. I'msorry. That'sabad question.
2 Q. If you can't find an experienced -- or has 2 For the 2000/2001 school year, students who
3 it cometo passthat you have had a vacancy in the 3 were dotted in the vacant teacher's classes saw
4 Math Department at Crenshaw High School when you 4 only oneteacher for that class, for those classes
5 could not find an experienced math teacher to fill 5 during the 2000/2001 school year?
6 that vacancy? 6 A. That's correct.
7 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and 7 Q. And that teacher was along-term
8 answered. He aready testified about filling 8 substitute?
9 vacancies. 9 A. That's correct.
10 THEWITNESS: I'm not sure | got that 10 Q. Wasthat teacher a subgtitute teacher?
11 question. I'msorry. 11 A. Yes.
12 Could you repest it? 12 Q. Okay. How many students did that
13 BY MS.LHAMON: 13 subdtitute teacher teach?
14 Q. Sure 14 MS. GODFREY': If you know.
15 | asked if it has come to pass that you 15 THE WITNESS: | don't know the exact
16 have had avacancy in the Math Department at 16 number.
17 Crenshaw High School when you could not find an 17 BY MS. LHAMON:
18 experienced math teacher to fill that vacancy? 18 Q. Do you have an approximation?
19 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 19 A. Yes. Approximatdy 30 timesfive.
20 ambiguous asto experience. 20 Q. Okay. That'sabout 150, going back to my
21 THEWITNESS: Okay. We have had situations 21 high school math.
22 where we couldn't, where we didn't have an 22 A. Yes
23  experienced math teacher and had to use a sub. 23 Q. Andthat sounds right?
24 BY MS. LHAMON: 24 A. That sounds right.
25 Q. Tofill that teacher vacancy? 25 Q. And what math classes did that long-term
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1 substitute teacher teach? 1 A. Itvaries. Megtingsarecaled. Thefirst
2 A. Algebra 2 andthird Wednesdays | have principals mesetings.
3 Q. All five courses were algebra? 3 I'monanumber of ad hoc committees for the
4 A. | don't know. | know one of them was 4 digtrict, so | go to conferences.
5 dgebra 5 And so | can't tell you how many days a
6 Q. And was that long-term subgtitute teacher 6 month I'm on campus. A lot, you know.
7 trainedinmath? 7 Q. Okay. That's good.
8 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague asto 8 Isthere an average number of days aweek
9 ‘"trained in math." 9 inamonth that you are on campus?
10 MS. STRONG: May call for speculation. 10 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and
11 THE WITNESS: | don't know the total 11 answered. Hesaid he can't tell you.
12 background. That was alaw student, so | don't know 12 THEWITNESS: | cant, | really can't tell
13 how many years of math he had. 13 you an average number of days of amonth. | can
14 BY MS. LHAMON: 14 guess.
15 Q. Okay. 15 BY MS. LHAMON:
16 Turning to science, then, hasit cometo 16 Q. | don't want you to guess.
17 passthat there were science vacancies during your 17 A. Okay.
18 tenureas principal at Crenshaw High School that you 18 Q. But if you have an gpproximation, | would
19 could not fill with ascience teacher? 19 likethat.
20 MS. STRONG: Objection asto asked and 20 A. It'sapproximately 20 teaching days per
21 answered. 21 month; I'm going to say approximately 15 days.
22 THEWITNESS: No. 22 Q. Thanks. | appreciate tht.
23 BY MS.LHAMON: 23 A. A month.
24 Q. Okay. That'slucky; no shortage. 24 Q. And your god isto vist four classrooms
25 Do you visit classrooms to monitor the 25 per day of those 15 days?
Page 508 Page 510
1 quality of teaching? 1 A. Yes.
2 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague, and | 2 Q. Arethere-- wdl, strike that.
3 bdieveto some extent it has been asked and 3 Do you visit every teacher's classroom
4 answered. 4 during the schoal year to evauate the quality of
5 THE WITNESS: | visit classes. 5 that teacher's teaching?
6 BY MS.LHAMON: 6 A. No.
7 Q. And when you are in those classes, do you 7 Q. How many of the teacher's classes do you
8 monitor the quality of the teaching? 8 vidt to evauate the quality of their teaching?
9 A. Yes, yes. 9 A. We have the school broken up by
10 Q. Do you evauate the teachers? 10 departments. The principa has two departments; the
11 A. Yes. 11 assigtant principal, the various assistant
12 Q. How often do you visit the classrooms? 12 principds have adepartment. And their visitsare
13 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered. 13 for evauations, say, where we visit across the
14 THEWITNESS: | tryto, | try to as often 14 board. But for evaluation's sake, | evaluate the
15 asl can. | meanthereisno set pattern, but | try 15 English Department and Music Department.
16 tovisit aminimum of four classes aday the days 16 Q. And then other administrators evaluate
17 that I'mon campus. That'skind of my goa. But | 17 teachersinthe other departments?
18 popinand out of classes and walk down the halls 18 A. That's correct.
19 dlthetime. SolI'minand out of anumber of 19 Q. Do you seethe other -- strike that.
20 classrooms. 20 When you evduate a teacher, do you write
21 But on my evaluation process, | try to do 21 up that evaluation?
22 four classesaday. That'sjust kind of agoal that 22 A. Thereisan officia evauation called the
23 | have st for mysdf. 23 Stull evaluation at the conclusion of the school
24 BY MS. LHAMON: 24 year. Sothoseteachers get the Stull evaluation.
25 Q. And how many days aweek are you on campus? 25 Q. Isthat ST-U-L-L?
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1 A. Uh-huh. 1 Q. Whyisthat?
2 Q. Andthe Stull evaluation is written? 2 A. To seethelr progress.
3 A. They are written evaluations, yes. 3 Q. Do you think it'sagood policy to evaluate
4 Q. Okay. Andthereisno other evaluation 4 emergency credentialed teachers every year?
5 that'swritten for teachers at the school ? 5 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
6 A. No, no, that -- no, not that | can think 6 THE WITNESS: | don't have a problem with
7 of. ‘ 7 it. 1 don't think thereis anything wrong with it.
8 Q. Do you seethe Stull evaluations for 8 BY MS LHAMON:
9 teachersoutside of the English and Music 9 Q. And you will continue that policy?
10 Departments? 10 A. Yes
11 A. Yes 11 Q. Do you think it'sagood policy to evaluate
12 Q. Do you haveto sign off on those? 12 permanent teachers every other year?
13 A. Yes 13 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague asto policy.
14 Q. And do you sign off on the Stull 14 THE WITNESS: | think that's good, | think
15 evauationsfor teachersin al departments of the 15 itagood policy, yes.
16 school? 16 BY MS. LHAMON:
17 A. Yes 17 Q. Youwill continue that policy?
18 Q. Andisevery teacher at Crenshaw High 18 A. Correct.
19 School evaluated every school year? 19 Q. Haveyou considered evaluating all teachers
20 A. No. 20 eveayyear?
21 Q. How many teachers are evaluated in any 21 A. No.
22 school year? 22 Q. Why not?
23 A. It'sbroken up to about 50 percent; 50 23 A. Wadll, I think it would bejust, it's very
24 percent this year, 50 percent next year. And sothe 24 difficult to try to Sit down and evauate every
25 permanent credentialed teachers are evaluated every 25 teacher every year. Sol don't, | hadn't thought
Page 512 Page 514
1 other year, but the emergency credentialed permitted 1 a&boutit, no.
2 datusteachers are evauated every year. 2 Q. Okay. Andwhat goesinto ateacher's
3 Q. Didyou say permanent or? 3 evauation? What'sinvolved?
4 A. Permanent status. 4 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
5 Q. And why isit that emergency credentialed 5 ambiguous.
6 teachersare evauated every year? 6 MS. STRONG: And objection; cdls for
7 A. | inherited it from the district. | don't 7 speculation, at least on the evaluations that he's
8 know. 8 given.
9 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 9 MS. GODFREY: Could | ask for apoint of
10 speculation to the extent you don't know. 10 clarification?
11 MS. GODFREY: Join. 11 When you say an evaluation, are you
12 BY MS. LHAMON: 12 speaking about this Stull evaluation that the
13 Q. Whyisit that emergency credentided 13 witness hasidentified or just evaluation in
14 permitted teachers are evaluated every year? 14 generd?
15 MS. STRONG: Callsfor speculation. 15 BY MS. LHAMON:
16 MS. GODFREY: Join. 16 Q. Did you understand my question, Mr. Kiel?
17 THE WITNESS: Wdll, it's-- | inherited it 17 A. Not now | don't.
18 asapolicy fromthedigtrict. 18 Q. Okay, okay. Well, let's start with the
19 BY MS.LHAMON: 19 Stull evaluation.
20 Q. Areyou continuing that policy? 20 What's involved in the Stull evaluation?
21 A. Yes. 21 A. The Stull evaluation processis, at the
22 Q. Doyouthink it'sagood policy to evauate 22 beginning of the schoal year, teachers will submit a
23 emergency credentided permitted teachers every 23 planning shest, so acommon planning shest. And
24 year? 24 thisisthe plan that they anticipate, thisis what
25 A. Yes. 25 they plan to teach or the techniques and the method.
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1 We take this planning sheet. We look over 1 what discussion, if it's different from the school
2 theplanning sheet. And we St down with each 2 evauation.
3 teacher and have a conference with that teacher. 3 BY MS LHAMON:
4  Then we give the teacher the okay or we assist them 4 Q. Do you, when performing any teacher
5 inmodifying their teaching plan with the teacher. 5 evauationsthat you have to perform, consult with
6 Then we go visit teachers. Wegoto the 6 students about ateacher's performance?
7 classroom; we vidt the teacher. At the conclusion, 7 A. No.
8 wewriteon this form these areas which we would 8 Q. Do students evaluate teachers at schooal, at
9 discover on the evauation form, and we provide them 9 Crenshaw?
10 with acopy and place acopy in their file. 10 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
11 Q. Andthe Stull evaluation takes place asto 11 speculation.
12 every emergency credentialed teacher every school 12 THEWITNESS: That isanindividua
13  vyear? 13 teacher'sright. Some teachers have their students
14 A. Thereisa Stull -- not for emergency. 14 evauate them; some dont.
15 Thereisadifferent process for non-permanent 15 BY MS LHAMON:
16 teachers. Now the Stull, there is a different 16 Q. And students in the evaluations play no
17 processfor emergency credentided. It'scaled, it 17 partinthe evauation of teacher performance for
18 is--theformiscaled 1020. And it has smilar 18 theyear?
19 categories, but it's different. 19 A. No.
20 Q. How isit different? 20 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
21 A. It'snot as detailed asthe Stull 21 ambiguous.
22 evaudtion form. 22 BY MS.LHAMON:
23 Q. Okay. And do you persondly review the 23 Q. Aspart of the 1020 eva uation, do you
24  emergency credentialed teachersin the English and 24 assess standardized test scores with the students?
25 Music Departments every year? 25 A. No.
Page 516 Page 518
1 A. Uh-huh; the onesthat are hired into those 1 Q. Aspart of the Stull evaluation, do you
2 departments, yes. 2  assess standardized test scores with students?
3 Q. Do you persondly perform the evaluation, 3 A. No.
4 the 1020 form evaluation for any other emergency 4 Q. And do the standardized test scores
5 credentiaded teachers at the school ? 5 typicdly play any rolein teacher evaluations?
6 A. They are programmed by, are broken down by 6 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
7 departmentsjust asthe Stull evauationis. 7 THE WITNESS: No.
8 Q. And do you have to sign off on the 1020 8 BY MS.LHAMON:
9 formevduation? 9 Q. Why isit that the standardized test scores
10 A. Yes, | do. 10 don't play arolein evaluation of teachers?
11 Q. Asapart of the 1020 eva uations, do 11 MS. STRONG: Objection.
12 department chairs play any role? 12 MS. GODFREY: Objection; callsfor
13 A. No. 13 speculation.
14 Q. Asapart of the Stull evaluation, do 14 MS. STRONG: Join; may cal for expert
15 department chairs play any role? 15 testimony.
16 A. No. 16 THE WITNESS: The evauation processis
17 Q. Do you consult with department chairs when 17 contractual, and it comes from the district.
18 performing any teacher evaluations? 18 BY MS. LHAMON:
19 A. No. 19 Q. And when you say it comes from the
20 Q. Doesany of your administretive staff 20 district, you are referring to LAUSD?
21 consult with department chairs for performing any 21 A. That's correct.
22 teacher evduation? 22 Q. Do you solicit input from parents about a
23 A. | don't know. 23 teacher's performance when you are conducting any
24 Q. Okay. 24 teacher evauations?
25 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. It depends 25 A. No.
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1 Q. Do you take into account input from parents 1 Q. Isthat successful; isthat helpful in
2 when you are performing any teacher evaluation? 2 heping ateacher to improve?
3 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 3 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
4 MS. GODFREY: Asked and answered. 4 ambiguous.
5 THE WITNESS: No. 5 THE WITNESS: It's hard for me to determine
6 BY MS LHAMON: 6 whether it's successful, but it really, whether it
7 Q. Whyisthat? 7 improvesthe style. It'strying to monitor what is
8 A. Becausethereisaformat for evaluating 8 happening with the kids
9 teachers, and | follow the format -- 9 BY MS.LHAMON:
10 Q. For the-- 10 Q. During your deposition on Friday, you
11 A. -- asprescribed by the digtrict, yes. 11 described ateacher who had an ongoing problem with
12 Q. Excuseme. | didn't mean to interrupt you. 12 tardiness during the 2000/2001 school year.
13 That format didn't include any input from 13 Did that teacher also have atardiness
14 paents? 14 problem during the 1999/2000 school year?
15 A. No. 15 A. | can't remember the nature of -- | can't
16 Q. If you identify areas in which ateacher 16 remember. | dont know. | don't know if it was
17 could improve, what do you do to monitor the 17 calledto my attention this school year.
18 teacher'simprovement? 18 Q. lamsorry. | said:
19 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 19 Wasit called to your attention this school
20 MS. GODFREY: Join. 20 year?
21 THEWITNESS: Classroom vigits and usudly 21 A. Yes
22 conduct aconference, and give them a conference 22 Q. And you can't remember if it was caled to
23  memo to that effect of what we think the improvement 23 your attention during the 1999/2000 school year?
24  should be. 24 A. That's correct.
25 BY MS.LHAMON: 25 Q. What was that teacher's name?
Page 520 Page 522
1 Q. And if another administrator identifies 1 MS. GODFREY: Objection. Instruct the
2 aeaswhich ateacher canimprovein, you don't 2 witness not to answer on the grounds of privacy.
3 directly supervise, but do you monitor the teacher's 3 BY MS.LHAMON:
4  improvement? 4 Q. Areyou going to follow that instruction?
5 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague asto 5 A. Yes, | am.
6 "monitor"; vaguein totd. 6 Q. For therecord, | don't think that's a
7 THE WITNESS: Pretty much follow the same 7 proper instruction but we will leaveit at that for
8 process. Theassistant principa calls up and works 8 now.
9 with them and does a conference memo to the effect 9 A. Okay.
10 of what they consider the weaknesses and where their 10 Q. Wemay haveto come back toiit.
11 improvement is needed. 11 Do you remember if there were any problems
12 BY MS. LHAMON: 12 with teacher tardiness at Crenshaw during the
13 Q. And then does that assistant principal do 13 1999/2000 schoal year?
14 followup or do you participate as well? 14 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
15 A. Theassistant principal will do followup. 15 ambiguous.
16 However, it's brought to my attention in staff 16 MS. STRONG: Join.
17 medtings. And if we recognize aproblem, it'skind 17 THEWITNESS: | don't know. | know that
18 of made known to dl the administratorsto keep an 18 people arelate, everybody is late sometime. And
19 eyeonthisparticular classor this particular 19 the processisto get the doors openin atimely
20 teacher. 20 manner and cover the classes until the teechers can
21 Q. And how do you keep an eye on aparticular 21 getthere. Sothat's--
22 class? 22 | don't know if you call it a problem.
23 A. Just the number of times that you walk by 23 It'satask someone hasto do every day to make sure
24 the room; open the door, ook in on everybody; try 24 the rooms are open, to go down to see who signed in
25 tovidit as often aspossible. 25 andwho hasn't. So that's atask that we do; that's
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1 ourjob. 1 MS. STRONG: Objection.

2 So | can't think of anything that stands 2 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and

3 out, any one person that stands out. 3 ambiguous and is an incomplete hypothetical.

4 BY MS LHAMON: 4 MS. STRONG: And callsfor speculation.

5 Q. Okay. Do you think teacher tardiness 5 THE WITNESS: I'mnot -- | don't know how

6 affects students? 6 youwould do that.

7 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 7 BY MS. LHAMON:

8 ambiguous. 8 Q. Why not?

9 MS. STRONG: Objection; cals for expert 9 A. Becauseif you have five people absent and
10 testimony; to the extent that it's asking for his 10 somebody was sick, and they didn't get to prepare
11 persond opinion, it'sirrelevant. 11 and cdl the sub in advance, then you just may get a
12 THEWITNESS: Yes, | think it does. 12 substituteteacher. And it isacertificated
13 BY MS LHAMON: 13 person, so you don't just say that you can't -- you
14 Q. How doesit affect students? 14 may not be asocial studiesteacher, you may have an
15 A. | think you are trying to set a standard 15 English background, but hopefully we have lesson
16 for excdlence, and you are trying to, you know, we 16 plansand they can follow that lesson plan.

17 want kidsto be ontime; | think teachers should be 17 Q. Whenyou say -- I'm sorry.
18 ontime. Sol think it setsatone for the school 18 A. I'mthrough.
19 andfor theclassto beontime. Beingontimeis 19 Q. When you say a certificated person, what do
20 important; | think kids should learn that. | think 20 you mean by that?
21 theylearnit from the teachers. 21 A. Everyone hasacertificate. It just merely
22 Q. Do you think that teacher tardiness affects 22 meansthat they finished college and are classified
23  students learning? 23 and has astatus of, we usudly divide the
24 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 24 certificated. And aclassfied employeeisan
25 ambiguous. 25 employee usudly that, that's not always the case,
Page 524 Page 526

1 MS. STRONG: Objection; to the extent it 1 but they don't have a college degree versus the

2 calsfor his persond opinion testimony, it's 2 certificaed. When we refer to certificated, we

3 irrdevant. 3 refer to teachers, counsdlors and people that has

4 THEWITNESS: It hardto say. I'm not sure 4 finished college.

5 onthat. | don't have an opinion. 5 Q. Okay. Soif ateacher cdlsinsick, the

6 BY MS.LHAMON: 6 only assuranceis that there will be a certificated

7 Q. Okay. Does Crenshaw sometimes have 7 personinthe classroom; there is no assurance that

8 teachersteaching classes that are outside the 8 that personwill have training in that particular

9 saubject areasin which they have received training? 9 subject area?

10 MS. STRONG: Objection. 10 MS. GODFREY: Objection; misstates prior
11 MS. GODFREY: Objection; callsfor 11 testimony and cdls for speculation.

12 speculation, vague and ambiguous. 12 MS. STRONG: Objection, incomplete

13 THEWITNESS. I'msurewedo. We have 13 hypothetical.

14 subgtitutes coming on campus every day. So we don't 14 THE WITNESS: We will assurethat thereis
15 gn teachers outside of the subject fidd. 15 acertificated person in the room.

16 BY MS.LHAMON: 16 BY MS.LHAMON:

17 Q. Okay. But the substitutes could be 17 Q. How do you assure that?

18 teaching outside their subject field? 18 A. We have someone standing at the counter

19 A. Yes. 19 every morning, and we have walkie-talkies, and we
20 Q. But you don't know if they are? 20 seewhoinwhat classroomsis missing. And when
21 A. | don't know how many -- | mean | don't 21 thereissmeone missing, we confirm with anyone who
22 have any dataon that. 22 didntsignin. Andwe haverunners. Andwe go out
23 Q. Okay. Isthere any way to ensurethat a 23 and we open the doors, and we get subs over. We
24 subdtitute teacher teaches the subject that the 24 find teachers with a conference period.

25 teacher isteaching? 25 It'sajob; it'sour task. That's what we

20 (Pages 523 to 526)




Page 527

Page 529

1 do. Wecover classesthefirst thing in the 1 A. No, no; they are changeable ill.
2 morning. And assistant principa, Ms. Cannon, and 2 Q. Does there come atime when classes can no
3 two classfied staff members work on covering 3 longer be changed that ateacher will be teaching?
4 classes. 4 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
5 That's one of the mgjor tasks of an, of the 5 ambiguous.
6 school. 6 MS. GODFREY: Join.
7 Q. And they don't ensure that the person 7 THE WITNESS: Usually pretty much -- yeah,
8 covering the class hastraining in the subject 8 it'ssat by September thet thisis what you are
9 matter that the classis being taught in? 9 going to teach, you know. Usudly after that date,
10 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered. 10 wedon't change teachers around.
11 THE WITNESS: No. 11 BY MS. LHAMON:
12 BY MS. LHAMON: 12 Q. What date in September isit?
13 Q. And why isthat? 13 A. When schoal gtarts; by the opening of the
14 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor 14 school, everybody is set.
15 speculation. 15 Q. So by thefirst day of school?
16 MS. GODFREY: Join. 16 A. Yes
17 THE WITNESS: Because sometimes we don't 17 Q. Doesit happen regularly that teachers
18 get the proper sub for the proper subject matter, so 18 courseloads change after the first week in June
19 wehaveto cover the class. 19 whenthey are notified what their classeswill be
20 BY MS.LHAMON: 20 for September?
21 Q. Okay. Yousadit'samajor task for 21 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
22 Mrs. Cannon and two classified personnd to make 22 ambiguous and compound.
23 surethere are certificated persons covering every 23 MS. STRONG: Join.
24 classat the schoal. 24 THEWITNESS: No; it'sararity. Things
25 A. Did| say mgor task? 25 aepretty much set. | mean, it's not like we have
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1 Q. I think so. 1 toredesignthewhed every year. | mean the school
2 Does that sound right to you? 2 ispretty much organized, and it stays within that
3 A. | said that there was ajob and that 3 samemodd of schedule, you know, of classes.
4 that's, one of the responsibilities that they 4 BY MS. LHAMON:
5 have-- 5 Q. Soingenerd at the end of aschoal year,
6 Q. Okay. 6 you know how many freshmen English classes you are
7 A. -- isto cover classes. 7 going to need to offer for the following school
8 Q. Okay. Andyou don't think it'samajor 8 year?
9 task? 9 A. Yes, we know how many, yes.
10 A. Somedaysit's greater than others; it's 10 Q. And you can assign the teachers to the
11 the holidays, the Friday before and when the cold 11 number of classes these teachers will be teaching
12 andfluseasonisin. It'sjust like, it'sno 12 within agenera subject areawith a degree of
13 different from -- we don't sit down thereina 13 certainty by the end, by somewhere around the end of
14 school on anidand alone; we are tied to society. 14 the schoal year?
15 Andwe have al the same good things and difficult 15 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
16 thingsaseverybody else. And on certain daysit's 16 ambiguous.
17 good. Somedaysit's better; some days it's bad. 17 THE WITNESS: With areasonable degree of
18 Q. Okay. Isthereatimeinthe school year 18 certainty, we can assign teechers.
19 by which Crenshaw natifies teachers of what classes 19 BY MS. LHAMON:
20 theteacherswill teach for the coming school year? 20 Q. And how, how does Crenshaw assess how many
21 A. Yes. 21 classesin agiven subject will need to be offered
22 Q. Whenisthat? 22 for the coming school year?
23 A. Approximately thefirst week of June. 23 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered.
24 Q. Okay. Andisthat setin stone or arethe 24 THE WITNESS: By the number of student
25 classes changeable ill? 25 namesthat we have from the feeder schoals.
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1 BY MS LHAMON: 1 teacher absences?
2 Q. And does the existing campus population 2 A. No.
3 comeintothe calculation at all? 3 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
4 A. Yes. Theincoming onesthat iscomingin, 4 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure what you are
5 theonesthat isleaving, and the onesthat is there 5 referringto.
6 determinesthe number. 6 BY MS LHAMON:
7 Q. Haveyou received any complaints from 7 Q. Okay. Isthereany rule about the number
8 teachersabout their course load changing after that 8 of daysthat ateacher can be absent during agiven
9 natification in June? 9 school year a Crenshaw High School ?
10 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague asto the 10 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
11 term"complaints' and vague asto time. 11 THE WITNESS: No, but it certainly goes
12 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 12 intotheir evaluation, you know, if thereis
13 ambiguous. 13 excessive absences; that's part of the evaluation
14 THEWITNESS: | don't recall. | can't 14 process.
15 remember right now. 15 BY MS LHAMON:
16 BY MS. LHAMON: 16 Q. What do you consider to be excessve
17 Q. Haveyou ever spoken to any teachers about 17 absences?
18 their courseloads changing after notification in 18 A. | think thedigtrict labelsit as 10 days a
19 June? 19 year, anything more than 10 days.
20 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague asto time. 20 Q. Okay. And do teacher absences matter for
21 It goes beyond his experience and expertise. 21 sudents?
22 THEWITNESS: Yes, | guess| have had 22 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
23 conversation with teachers that talks about the 23 ambiguous.
24 courseload and the number of, what classesthey are 24 MS. STRONG: Joinin that.
25 goingto teach. 25 And aso object to the extent it calls for
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1 BY MS.LHAMON: 1 experttestimony.
2 Q. What have those teachers told you? 2 MS. STRONG: It callsfor speculation.
3 A. Wdl, one case | remember where ateacher 3 THE WITNESS: Yes, | think that teacher
4 fdt that they had seniority to teach a class that 4 absences affect students, yes.
5 another teacher was teaching, and so we dedlt with 5 BY MS. LHAMON:
6 it 6 Q. How do they affect students?
7 Q. How did you dedl withit? 7 A. Becauseif the teecher is not there -- some
8 A. Followed the contract with UCLA, and the 8 teachersleave very detailed plans, and you can
9 person with the most seniority had the opportunity 9 follow them. And it depends on the students. There
10 toteachtheclass. 10 isalot of variables asto what degree, but
11 Q. Do you recal any other conversations with 11 certainly | think teacher absence affects students.
12 teachers about their casdaloads changing? 12 MS. GODFREY: | would just liketo
13 A. | can't think of any right now. 13 interpose alate abjection that the question calls
14 Q. Does Crenshaw have -- I'm sorry. 14 for speculation.
15 Y ou are looking at your watch. 15 BY MS. LHAMON:
16 Do you want to take a break? 16 Q. Do you think that teacher absences affect
17 A. It's 10:15, and we have nutrition time. 17 the students learning?
18 Timeto take abreak. 18 MS. STRONG: Objection for anything beyond
19 Q. Absolutely. 19 hispersond opinion testimony; again, cals for
20 MS. LHAMON: Let'stake onenow. Thanks. 20 expert testimony and speculation.
21 (Recess taken; reconvened in the absence 21 MS. GODFREY: Join.
22 of Mr. Rosenbaum.) 22 THE WITNESS: | don't know if it affects
23 MS. LHAMON: Go back on the record. 23 sudents learning. It may affect the amount that
24 BY MS. LHAMON: 24 theylean.
25 Q. Does Crenshaw have a policy regarding 25 BY MS.LHAMON:
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1 Q. What do you mean by that? 1 What prompted you to follow up with that
2 A. Wadll, if theteacher is not there, maybe 2 teacher?
3 thereiscertainissuesthat they can't cover and 3 A. Because shewas absent agreat dedl.
4 they don't get to cover dl of them. But thekids 4 Q. How oftenisagreat ded?
5 certainly have the option to go out and continue to 5 A. Shewas absent more than 10 days.
6 work. 6 Q. And what happened after you wrote the
7 Q. Have you received complaints from anyone 7 teacher amemo?
8 concerning teacher absences at Crenshaw High School? | 8 A. Not much.
9 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 9 Q. Did she continue to be absent?
10 ambiguous. 10 A. Yes
11 (At thispoint Mr. Rosenbaum 11 Q. Was she absent alot more than 10 days?
12 returns to the deposition room.) 12 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
13 THE WITNESS: We discuss teacher absence 13 THEWITNESS: | don't know the exact number
14 during staff meetings every Monday, and we are 14  of days, but she was absent, she was continuoudy
15 concerned about certain people. And we follow up on 15 absent. And| think it's, I don't know exactly why;
16 it 16 I'mnot sure. It may be health related.
17 BY MS. LHAMON: 17 MS. GODFREY: Mr.Kid, I'mgoingto
18 Q. Do you persondly follow up on them? 18 instruct you not to discuss any reasons why a
19 A. Not dl of them. Some of them | do. 19 particular teacher was absent.
20 Q. How do you determine which ones to follow 20 THE WITNESS: Okay.
21 up with? 21 BY MS. LHAMON:
22 MS. GODFREY: Objection -- sorry. 22 Q. Do you have an estimate for the number of
23 I'm sorry. 23 days she was absent during the 2000/2001 school
24 THE WITNESS: Okay. Usudly it isthe ones 24 year?
25 within the department that | cover. 25 A. | don't know; | don't know right offhand.
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1 BY MS.LHAMON: 1 | know wetaked after 10 days with the teacher
2 Q. Okay. 2 persondly. And | don't know how many days she was
3 A. Wekind of stay with the evaluation of 3 dbsent totdly.
4 thoseteachers and working with those teachers and 4 Q. Do you know if that teacher will returnto
5 assidting those teachers as well within the 5 Crenshaw for the 2001/2002 school year?
6 departmentsthat we cover divided up among the 6 A. I'mnot sure.
7 adminigtrators. 7 Q. When you say you are not sure, why are you
8 Q. During the 2000/2001 school year, did you 8 notsure?
9 haveto have followup on any teacher's absence in 9 A. Because| don't know.
10 the Music Department that you supervised? 10 Q. Hasshetold you she intends to leave the
11 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 11 school?
12 ambiguous. 12 A. No, she hasn't told me that.
13 THEWITNESS:. Yes. 13 Q. Have you asked her to leave the school ?
14 BY MS. LHAMON: 14 MS. GODFREY: Objection; it's-- I'm going
15 Q. How many teachers did you have to follow up 15 to object on the grounds of privacy of third
16 with regarding teacher absences? 16 parties, and instruct the witness not to answer,
17 A. Just one. 17 MS. LHAMON: | haven't asked for the name
18 Q. And what did you do to follow up with that 18 of theteacher.
19 teacher? 19 MS. GODFREY: | know but --
20 A. Wadll, caled her up for a conference, and 20 MS. LHAMON: | haven't asked for the
21 wediscussed the importance of being ontime. And | 21 department in which the teacher teachers.
22 gave her awritten memo. 22 MS. GODFREY': Just the plan or any specific
23 Q. I'msorry. You gave her awritten? 23 ramification or the outcome of any discipline, |
24 A. Memo. 24  think that we have narrowed things down probably
25 Q. Memo. 25 morethan I'm comfortable with here. And it's
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1 redlynot thedidtrict's privilegeto waive. 1 THEWITNESS: No.
2 In the absence of acourt order or consent, 2 BY MS.LHAMON:
3 I don't think that the witness should answer 3 Q. Soat anytimethereisaneed for a
4 questions about discipline of a particular teacher. 4  subdtitute teacher, thereis aways a substitute
5 MS. LHAMON: Okay. Fine. Asl said 5 teacher there?
6 before, | don't think that's a proper instruction, 6 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered;
7 but you may go ahead. 7 contrary to prior deposition testimony.
8 MS. GODFREY: We canrevist theissue 8 THE WITNESS: No, thereisnot; every time
9 later. I'msticking to theingtruction not to 9 thereisaneed, thereis not dways a substitute
10 answer asto that particular teacher absent a court 10 teacher.
11 order. 11 But you asked meif | had problems; | said
12 MS. LHAMON: Okay. We can revist that 12 no. And the answer to that questionis"no" aso.
13  issuelater 13 BY MS. LHAMON:
14 BY MS LHAMON: 14 Q. Okay. I'mnot trying to trick you here.
15 Q. Arethere any particular substitute 15 I'mjust asking questions becauseit's my job.
16 teachersthat are specificaly assigned to Crenshaw 16 A. Okay. Thank you.
17 High School? 17 Q. | appreciate you letting me know.
18 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 18 A. Okay.
19 MS. GODFREY: Join. 19 Q. Why do you not think there istrouble --
20 THE WITNESS: When you say specificaly, | 20 What happens when there is not a substitute
21 mean every day they are assigned to Crenshaw. But 21 teacher who comesto fill aclassroom when ateacher
22 when you say specifically assigned, | don't 22  isabsent?
23 undergtand that. | don't know what you mean by 23 A. We--
24 that. 24 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered.
25 BY MS.LHAMON: 25 THE WITNESS: We use our teacher with a
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1 Q. Okay. Thanks for asking for that 1 conference period to cover the class.
2 clarification. | appreciateit. 2 BY MS.LHAMON:
3 I'm asking whether -- well, let me step 3 Q. And when you use ateacher with a
4  back. 4 conference period, does that teacher, do you aways
5 I know that some schools have a substitute 5 useteachers who teach the same subject asthe
6 teacher whoison staff at that school andis at 6 absent teacher?
7 that school every day. And if thereis ateacher 7 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
8 dbsant, that teacher would counsdl that teacher. 8 ambiguous, compound and incomplete hypothetical.
9 So I'm asking if there is a staffed 9 MS. STRONG: Join.
10 subdtitute teacher at Crenshaw High School available 10 THE WITNESS: No, we don't.
11 every day for any teacher's absence? 11 BY MS. LHAMON:
12 MS. STRONG: Objection; it's till vague. 12 Q. Why isthat?
13 THE WITNESS: I'mnot sure. | don't, | 13 A. Because there may not be ateacher within
14 don't know if thereis one that we just employ every 14 that subject fidld that has a conference period. If
15 day, no; | don't know of anyone of that nature. 15 thereisone, we certainly would. We wouldn't --
16 BY MS. LHAMON: 16 If there is a PE teacher available, we get
17 Q. Okay. 17 aPE teacher to cover that class. Or if it's
18 A. Andthere are people who work alat, but | 18 stience, we get a certificated teacher. But if
19 don't think they allow usto designate any 19 thereisnat, then we have to get a certificated
20 particular one. 20 person, or we get ateacher to cover the class.
21 Q. Okay. Do you havetrouble finding 21 Q. From another subject area?
22 subdtitute teachers to come to Crenshaw High School ? 22 A. That's correct.
23 A. No. 23 Q. Socould it happen that, if thereisa
24 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 24 math teacher absent, a history teacher fills that
25 MS. GODFREY: Jain. 25 class?
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1 A. For that period. 1 Accountability Report Card before now?
2 MS. STRONG: Objection; incomplete 2 A. | didn't seethedate on it at thetime
3 hypothetical. 3 whenl sawit. Thisisanew logo | didn't remember
4 THEWITNESS: Yes. 4 seeing. Sosomepartsof it | guess| haven't seen;
5 BY MS LHAMON: 5 somepartsofit| have.
6 Q. And do teachers have a choice whether to 6 Q. Okay. Do you seethereisaMessage from
7 usether conference period to cover other classes? 7 thePrincipa onthefirst page?
8 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 8 A. Uh-huh.
9 THE WITNESS: Withinreason. But if there 9 Q. Andit says"TravisKid, Principal”;
10 isno onethere and thereisno one available, the 10 that'sonthefirst page of Exhibit 1.
11 principas have theright to direct the teacher to 11 A. Oh, yes, | seeit. Right.
12 goto the classroom during her conference period. 12 Q. Seethat message there?
13 BY MS. LHAMON: 13 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
14 Q. Okay. And do teachers get paid extraif 14 MS. GODFREY: The document spesks for
15 they usetheir conference period to cover other 15 itsdf.
16 class? 16 And it'smore of aform letter.
17 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague, callsfor 17 BY MS. LHAMON:
18 speculation. 18 Q. Soit'snot from you?
19 MS. GODFREY: Yes. 19 A. Didl writeit? It'sfromme.
20 If you know. 20 Q. Okay.
21 THEWITNESS: Yes, they do. 21 A. Butdid I writeit?
22 BY MS.LHAMON: 22 Q. Didyou writeit?
23 Q. I'will show you an exhibit. 23 A. No.
24 (Discussion off therecord.) 24 Q. And who did writeit?
25 MS. LHAMON: Thiswill be marked as Exhibit 25 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
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1 1 1 speculation.
2 (Depasition Exhibit No. 1 was marked 2 THEWITNESS: | don't know who wroteit.
3 for identification and is annexed hereto.) 3 BY MS.LHAMON:
4 MS. LHAMON: Arewe back on the record? 4 Q. And how do you know it's aform letter?
5 BY MS.LHAMON: 5 A. Becausel didn't writeit.
6 Q. I'will show you Exhibit 1, and give it to 6 MS. STRONG: Objection; the document speaks
7 your counsd aswell. 7 foritsdf.
8 Thisisthe March 1999 School 8 THE WITNESS: The format.
9 Accountability Report Card for Crenshaw. It'sa 9 BY MS.LHAMON:
10 13-pagedocument. Thefirst page of it says"School 10 Q. Didyou receive atemplate for this
11 Accountability Report Card" at the top. 11 document at any time?
12 Now have you seen this document before? 12 A. Yes.
13 A. Over the years, yes; not this particular 13 Q. When wastha?
14 one 14 A. | don't remember; | don't remember the date
15 MS. GODFREY': Y ou can take your timeto 15 I'mnot being flippant. | don't remember the date
16 look through the document if you need to. 16 thatit cameout. | don't know what month. | know
17 THE WITNESS: Okay. 17 they come out every year.
18 The year on this one? 18 | don't remember, because my assistant
19 BY MS. LHAMON: 19 principa handles this report.
20 Q. Thisisthe 1999/2000 year. Andthat'sin 20 Q. Which assistant principa isthat?
21 themiddle of the page, right on the first page. 21 A. Mrs. Cannon.
22 A. Okay. | seeit now. Thank you. 22 Q. And she handles the School Accountability
23 Okay. 23 Report Card every year?
24 Q. Okay. And then you say that you have not 24 A. Yes.
25 seenthis, the 1999/2000 school year School 25 Q. Do you review the School Accountability
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1 Report Card beforeit'sturnedin? 1 doyou receive atemplate?
2 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 2 A. Thereisadigtrict office, and | don't
3 ambiguous. 3 know which one. | would guessto say it comes from
4 THEWITNESS: Yes. 4 the Office of Instruction or School Operations.
5 BY MS LHAMON: 5 Q. Okay. And then Crenshaw High School is
6 Q. Do you ever play any role in reviewing the 6 directed tofill in blanksin the template, is that
7 School Accountability Report Card? 7 correct?
8 MS. STRONG: Objection, vague and 8 A. That's correct.
9 ambiguous. 9 Q. Isthe school prdfile part of the template?
10 MS. GODFREY: Join. 10 A. That's down at the bottom?
11 THEWITNESS: No. 11 Q. That's at the bottom of page one and goes
12 BY MS LHAMON: 12 onto pagetwo in Exhibit 1.
13 Q. Do you approve the School Accountability 13 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
14 Report Card beforeit'sturned in? 14 speculation asto template. He doesn't know.
15 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 15 THE WITNESS: Thisinformation is found
16 ambiguous. 16 within our, within our beliefs and our vision, our
17 THE WITNESS: I'mjust trying to seeiif 17 vison statement. Soit's--
18 thereisanything on herethat requires my 18 Thisis not updated every year.
19 approva. Mogt of thisinformeation is public deta; 19 BY MS. LHAMON:
20 it'staken directly from the computer system. 20 Q. When you say "our" whois "our"?
21 Thereisnothing in here that | would have 21 A. The schoal, Crenshaw High Schoal.
22 toapprove-- 22 Q. Andthisinformation isthe information
23 BY MS LHAMON: 23 under School Prafile at page one continuing on to
24 Q. Okay. 24  pagetwo of Exhibit 1, isthat right?
25 A. -- that's unique to Crenshaw High School. 25 A. Yes, yes.
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1 Q. Okay. Inwhat context do you review the 1 Q. I'm going to come back to the School
2 School Accountability Report Card? 2 Accountability Report Card in generdl, but | want to
3 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 3 ask you some questions about page 10, if you will
4 ambiguous. 4 turntothat.
5 MS. STRONG: Join. 5 Do you see where it says "Substitute
6 And | believe it misstates his testimony. 6 Teachers' toward the top of page 107
7 MS. GODFREY: Yeah, | don't, | don't -- 7 A. Uh-huh.
8 It's assuming facts. | don't believe the 8 Q. And then do you see whereit sayson
9 witnesstedtified he did review it. 9 Exhibit 1:
10 MS. LHAMON: | think we can read the record 10 "This school has experienced various
11 back or you can just answer my question. 11 difficulty in obtaining substitute
12 MS. GODFREY: No. | meanitsmoreof a 12 teachers to provide classroom
13 quedtion, did you say that? 13 instruction for absent teachers. Last
14 The objection stands. 14 year the approximate average yearly
15 THE WITNESS: |Isthere aquestion? 15 absence for teachers was 9.845 days.”
16 BY MS. LHAMON: 16 Do you see that?
17 Q. | asked you in what context do you review 17 A. Yes.
18 the School Accountability Report Card? 18 Q. Isthat an accurate figure for the
19 MS. GODFREY: Same objections. 19 gpproximeate average yearly absence for teachers?
20 THEWITNESS: Okay. It'sdiscussedin 20 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
21 doaff meetings. We go over the figures, and we make 21 speculation.
22 it availablefor the public. 22 To the extent that you know.
23 BY MS. LHAMON: 23 MS. GODFREY: Jain.
24 Q. When you said that you receive atemplate 24 THE WITNESS: | think that that's the
25 for the School Accountability Report Card, from whom 25 approximate average. That's lessthan 10 days.
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1 BY MS LHAMON: 1 Q. Isthat acoordinator at Crenshaw or is
2 Q. And why isit you think that's the 2 that acoordinator of the district?
3 agpproximate average? 3 A. At Crenshaw.
4 A. Becausetha was one of the 4 Q. Who isthe coordinator at Crenshaw?
5 accountabilities for the school over the last, for 5 A. Beverly Silvergein.
6 schoolsover the last three or four years. And this 6 Q. AndisBeverly Silverstein responsible for
7 isoneof thefigures that we monitored. And we 7 the School Accountability Report Card for the
8 tried to encourage teachers to be absent from school 8 Teacher Training Academy?
9 forlessthanthe 10 days. And so wetook alittle 9 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
10 prideinthat if it was lower than 10. 10 ambiguous.
11 So thisis just something that we have kind 11 THEWITNESS: I'mnot --
12  of watched over the years, and | would. So that's 12 MS. GODFREY: Join.
13 why I'mthinking that is approximately, that 13 THEWITNESS: I'm sorry.
14 agpproximationisright, it is correct. 14 I'm not sure that Mrs. Cannon is
15 Q. So you encourage teachers to be absent from 15 responsible. She may work with Beverly, but
16 schoal for fewer than ten days for the school yesr, 16 Mrs. Cannonisresponsibleto me--
17 isthat right? 17 BY MS. LHAMON:
18 A. Yes 18 Q. Okay.
19 Q. Okay. 19 A. --for the report card.
20 MS. LHAMON: I'm going to show you another 20 Q. And did you review this Teacher Training
21 exhibit. And thiswill be marked as Exhibit 2. 21 Academy report card before it was sent to the
22 (Deposition Exhibit No. 2 was marked 22 digtrict?
23 for identification and is annexed hereto.) 23 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
24 MS. LHAMON: And this Exhibit 2 isaso a 24 THE WITNESS: | don't remember reviewing
25 School Accountability Report Card, but thisoneis 25 thisone | don't remember it.
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1 for the Crenshaw Teacher Training Academy Magnet. 1 BY MS.LHAMON:
2 Andit'sal13-page document. Anditisthe 2 Q. I'msorry. When | say this Teacher
3 1999/2000 School Accountability Report Card. 3 Training Academy Magnet, School Accountability
4 BY MS. LHAMON: 4 Report Card, Exhibit No. 2.
5 Q. Have you seen Exhibit 2 before today? 5 A. Okay.
6 MS. GODFREY: Take your timeto read the 6 Q. Could you turn to page 10 of Exhibit 2,
7 document if you need to. 7 dso.
8 THEWITNESS: I'm not sure. 8 Do you see at the top of page 10 of Exhibit
9 BY MS.LHAMON: 9 2whereit says "Substitute Teachers'?
10 Q. Do youwant to review it to find out? 10 A. Yes.
11 A. Some of these data and information I'm 11 Q. Do you see underneath that on Exhibit 2
12 familiar with, but | haven't looked at the tota 12 whereit says:
13 packet in this context. 13 "This school has experienced various
14 Q. Okay. How are you familiar with the data 14 difficulty in obtaining substitute
15 init? 15 teachers to provide classroom instruction
16 A. Thetest data, analyzing the test data. 16 for absent teachers. Last year the
17 Andwe covered, we have analyzed test data, and | 17 approximate average yearly absence for
18 have seen some of the test data. Okay. 18 teachers was 7.075 day(s)."
19 Q. Isit Mrs. Cannon who would handle this 19 A. Yes, | seethat.
20 School Accountability Report Card aso for the 20 Q. Do you know why the gpproximeate average
21 Teacher Training Academy? 21 yearly absence for teachersin the Teacher Training
22 A. Her responsbility isto make sure the 22 Magnet differed from the general school ?
23 information is sent to the district. And thereisa 23 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
24 coordinator that also works with this school, with 24  speculation to the extent it calls for more than a
25 the magnet schoal. 25 yesor no answer.
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1 MS. GODFREY: Join. 1 A. Uh-huh.
2 THEWITNESS: I'mnot sure. 2 Q. Isthat yes?
3 BY MS LHAMON: 3 A. Yes. I'msorry. I'malittletoo
4 Q. Do you think that the figure in Exhibit 2, 4 comfortable.
5 the 7.075 figure for average daily absence in the 5 Yes.
6 Teacher Training Magnet, is accurate? 6 Q. I'm glad you are comfortable.
7 A. I'think so. 1 don't know. | have no way 7 Do you see undernesth the Substitute
8 of knowing. 8 Teacherson Exhibit 3 whereit says:
9 Q. Okay. And you think so becauseit's here 9 "This school has experienced various
10 inthis document, or isthere ancther reason? 10 difficulty in obtaining substitute
11 A. Becauseit's here in this document. 11 teachers to provide classroom ingtruction
12 Q. Okay. Soit'syour belief that Exhibit 2 12 for absent teachers.”
13 isaccurate? 13 A. Yes
14 A. Itiswith the number, yes; with that 14 Q. Inthe note, do you see where it says:
15 number, | believethat it's accurate. 15 "Last year the approximate average
16 Q. And you don't have any idea where the 16 yearly absence for teachers was 7.308
17 average daily absence for teacher in the Teacher 17 day(s)."
18 Traning Magnet would be different than the average 18 A. Yes, | seethat.
19 daily absencefor teachersin the genera teacher 19 Q. Do you think that that number on Exhibit 3
20 population at Crenshaw High School ? 20 of 7.308 daysis an accurate number?
21 MS. GODFREY: Objection; asked and 21 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
22  answered. 22 gpeculation.
23 MS. STRONG: Join. 23 MS. GODFREY: Join.
24 THE WITNESS: Speculation would be that 24 THEWITNESS: | thinkitis.
25 it'salarger number in theregular school, thet is 25 BY MS LHAMON:
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1 inteacher training. That'sthe only thing | can 1 Q. Andthat's becauseit's hereinthis
2 think of. 2 document, or isthere another reason?
3 BY MS. LHAMON: 3 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
4 Q. I'm going to show you athird document. 4 speculation.
5 MS. LHAMON: Wewill mark it as Exhibit 3. 5 THE WITNESS: Becauseit'shherein this
6 (Depasition Exhibit No. 3 was marked 6 document.
7 for identification and is annexed hereto.) 7 BY MS.LHAMON:
8 MS. LHAMON: Exhibit 3 is 1999/2000 school 8 Q. Thank you.
9 year for Crenshaw High School Highly Gifted Magnet. 9 Do you have any ideawhy the number of
10 It'sa13-page document. 10 approximate days that teachers were absent from the
11 BY MS. LHAMON: 11 Highly Gifted Magnet a Crenshaw differs from the
12 Q. Have you seen Exhibit 3 before today? 12 number of days teachers were absent from the regular
13 MS. GODFREY: Take your timeto review the 13 teacher population at Crenshaw?
14 document. 14 A. No, | don't.
15 THEWITNESS: I'm not sure. 15 Q. Okay. Do you seewhereit says, do you see
16 BY MS.LHAMON: 16 on Exhibit 3 underneath Substitute Teachers where it
17 Q. Want to take sometimeto look at it to 17 .
18 see? 18 "This school has experienced various
19 A. | have seen some of the data. | haven't 19 difficulty in obtaining substitute
20 seenit, | haven't seen the total packet inthis 20 teachers to provide classroom instruction
21 format. 21 for absent teachers.”
22 Q. Okay. | will ask you to turn to page 10 of 22 A. Yes, | do.
23 Exhibit 3. 23 Q. Doesthat identica language appear in the
24 Do you see a the top of page 10 where it 24 language in Exhibit 2 underneath Substitute
25 says"Subgtitute Teachers' on Exhibit 37 25 Teachers?
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1 MS. STRONG: Objection. 1 A. Yes
2 MS. GODFREY: The documents spesks for 2 Q. How many times have you had to cover a
3 itsdf. 3 dasssince you have been principa at Crenshaw?
4 MS. STRONG: Join. 4 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
5 THEWITNESS: Isitin-- | haveto go back 5 THE WITNESS: Maybe four.
6 andsee | will check injust asecond. 6 BY MS LHAMON:
7 BY MS LHAMON: 7 Q. Inthetota of the three years?
8 Q. | appreciate your checking. | don't, I'm 8 A. Yes
9 not supposed to testify, so | need you to tell me. 9 Q. And why isit rare that an administrator
10 A. Itlookslikeit'sidentica information 10 hasto cover aclass?
11  with the exception of the number. 11 A. Becausewe usudly find -- thereisa
12 Q. Okay. Canyou look to seeif the 12 number of counsdlors and coordinators out of
13 informationisidentica aso on Exhibit 1, please? 13 classroom personnd that we usudly can find. And
14 MS. STRONG: Objection; the documents spesk 14 my actual coverageis probably by choice, that | was
15 for themsalves. 15 there and decided to stay.
16 MS. GODFREY: Join. 16 Q. Okay. Sothe class you wanted to take
17 THE WITNESS: This gppears to be the same. 17 again?
18 BY MS. LHAMON: 18 Wasit a class you wanted to take again?
19 Q. Okay. Do you have an understanding of what 19 A. No. Just sometimes | want to do thet. And
20 ‘variousdifficulty’” meansin the first sentence of 20 sol do havethe luxury of doing some of the things
21  those sentencesin Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 on page 10 of 21 that | want to do. Not many.
22 each exhibit? 22 Q. Niceto beprincipal.
23 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 23 Okay. When ateacher will be absent for
24 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure what various 24 morethan oneday, isit your practice at Crenshaw
25 difficultiesmean. | don't know exactly what they 25 High Schoal to just choose one substitute who can
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1 aereferingto or what's being referred to. 1 taketheclassfor the entire time that the teacher
2 BY MS.LHAMON: 2 isabsent?
3 Q. Okay. Thank you. 3 MS. GODFREY: Objection; callsfor
4 Y ou can put aside the exhibit for the time 4 speculation, incomplete hypothetical; assumes facts.
5 being, if you want to, or you can keep looking at 5 MS. STRONG: Join.
6 them; whatever will make you happier. 6 THEWITNESS: It'sjust standard procedure,
7 MR. ROSENBAUM: If either makesyou 7 if ateacher is absent and someone comes for me, you
8 happier. 8 takethat full schedule for the day.
9 MS. GODFREY: Y ou can hand those to the 9 BY MS.LHAMON:
10 court reporter. 10 Q. Okay. And I'm asking adightly different
11 THEWITNESS. She may come back. 11 question.
12 MS. GODFREY: I'msorry. | thought you 12 A. Whichwas?
13 weredone 13 Q. Whether, if the teacher isgoing to be
14 BY MS. LHAMON: 14 absent for more than one day, whether it's the same
15 Q. Thank you. 15 person subdtituting for the teacher --
16 Has it ever happened a Crenshaw High 16 A. Okay.
17 Schoal that an administrator has to cover aclass 17 Q. -- who will teke the class for dl the days
18 when ateacher is absent? 18 theteacher isabsent?
19 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 19 MS. GODFREY: Same objection asthe last
20 speculation, incomplete hypothetical. 20 time.
21 MS. GODFREY: Jain. 21 MS. STRONG: Join.
22 THEWITNESS: It'srare, but occasionally 22 THE WITNESS: Y es, that would beided if
23 it happens. | have covered severd in my lifetime. 23 we could get the teacher to cover the same class.
24 BY MS. LHAMON: 24 And so wetry to do that, yes.
25 Q. Inyour lifetime a Crenshaw also? 25 BY MS.LHAMON:
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1 Q. Isthat the practice at Crenshaw High 1 principa that's assigned to that task.
2 School? 2 BY MS LHAMON:
3 A. Yes, that's the practice that we try to do 3 Q. Okay. How many teachers have left Crenshaw
4 that. It dependsonthesub, too. The sub may not 4 High Schoal during the time you have been principa
5 beableto sub but two days aweek or one day a 5 there?
6 week, or they may have some other things that they 6 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
7 havetodo. But ordinarily, wetry to keep that 7 ambiguous.
8 continuity. 8 MS. STRONG: Cdlsfor speculation to the
9 Q. Okay. Isthere any other reason why there 9 extent that he doesn't know.
10 might be adeviation from that practice at Crenshaw 10 THE WITNESS: | don't know the exact
11 High School? 11  number.
12 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 12 BY MS. LHAMON:
13 ambiguous, cdls for speculation. 13 Q. Do you have an approximation of a number?
14 THEWITNESS: | can't think of any. 14 A. It will take aminute to try to think about
15 BY MS. LHAMON: 15 that.
16 Q. That's okay. 16 MS. STRONG: Same objections.
17 So only when the substitute teacher would 17 THE WITNESS: | would say over the three
18 beunavailable? 18 years, just the gpproximate number 30.
19 MS. STRONG: Objection. 19 BY MS. LHAMON:
20 MS. GODFREY: No. 20 Q. 30?
21 MS. STRONG: Misstates the testimony. 21 A. Yes, just an average of 10 per yesr,
22 MS. GODFREY: Join. 22 roughly.
23 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure that's the only 23 But once again, those are not facts. That
24  reason. | just can't think of any situation where, 24 isjust an gpproximation from my thinking. It could
25 | can't think of -- | can't think of any other 25 behigher; it could be lower. | don't know.
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1 variation right now. 1 Q. That'syour best estimate?
2 BY MS.LHAMON: 2 A. That'smy best estimate, right, yes.
3 Q. | appreciatethat. That'sal I'm asking 3 Q. That'sdl | canask for. | appreciate
4 for, if that's what you can think of right now. 4 you--
5 If you think of something later, you can 5 A. Okay.
6 let meknow later, too. 6 Q. -- giving me the etimate.
7 A. Okay. 7 Do you have any teacher vacanciesthat are
8 Q. Isthere dways ingtruction going on inthe 8 unfilled for the coming school year, the
9 dassroom when there is a subdtitute? 9 2001/2002 --
10 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 10 MS. STRONG: Objection.
11 ambiguous, incomplete hypothetical; calls for 11 Q. -- for Crenshaw High School ?
12 speculation. 12 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and
13 MS. STRONG: Join. 13 answered. We covered this.
14 THEWITNESS: | redly can't answer that 14 MS. GODFREY:: | joininthe objection.
15 because | don't know -- 15 THE WITNESS: Yes, | have some vacancies
16 BY MS. LHAMON: 16 right now, yes.
17 Q. Okay. 17 BY MS.LHAMON:
18 A. -- if thereis awaysinstruction going 18 Q. How many are there right now?
19 on. | don't know. 19 A. One, two, threg, four that | know of.
20 Q. Okay. Whoisthe assistant principa in 20 Q. Andinwhat subjects are those vacancies?
21 charge of monitoring substitutes? 21 A. TwoinEnglish -- I'm sorry. It'sfive
22 MS. STRONG: Objection; assumes facts and 22 that | know of: Two in English; two in math and one
23 it'svague. 23 in Spanish.
24 MS. GODFREY: Join. 24 Q. Areyou interviewing, in the process of
25 THE WITNESS: Mrs. Cannon is the assistant 25 interviewing teachersto fill those vacancies now?
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1 A. Yes, | am. 1 Q. Sure.
2 Q. How many teachers have you interviewed so 2 And what I'm asking is, are there -- you
3 fartofill the English teachers dots? 3 have one offer outstanding and there istwo English
4 MS. STRONG: Objection. 4 positionsthat you need to fill.
5 THEWITNESS: 10. 5 Are there progpective candidates for the
6 BY MS LHAMON: 6 other English position that has no offer
7 Q. Andthat's 10 tota for both dots? 7 outstanding?
8 A. No. Just for English. 8 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
9 Q. I'msorry? 9 ambiguous.
10 A. Oh,yes. I'msorry. For both of the 10 MS. GODFREY: Join.
11 English positions, yes. 11 THE WITNESS: Y es, we have gpplications and
12 Q. I'munclear. Thank you for the 12 resumesfrom English, individuals who want to teach
13 clarification. 13 English at Crenshaw.
14 Have you made any offers to any of those 10 14 BY MS LHAMON:
15 teachers? 15 Q. Whom you have not interviewed?
16 A. Yes 16 A. That's correct.
17 Q. Has any of those teachers accepted? 17 Q. How many people have turned you down for
18 A. Yes 18 English so far this summer?
19 Q. Soisthe position filled? 19 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
20 A. Wadl, the positions werefilled prior to 20 speculation; assumes he actualy knows.
21 thetwothat | havel€ft. 21 MS. GODFREY: Wdl, I'm sorry.
22 Q. Oh, | see. Soyouinterviewed 10 teachers 22 THE WITNESS: | think six. That's
23 tofill English vacancies? 23 goproximate. I'm--
24 A. Right. 24 Six that | know, and there may be more.
25 Q. And you have filled some, but you still 25 BY MS LHAMON:
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1 havetwol€ft? 1 Q. Okay. Do you know what schools those
2 A. Right. 2 people decided to go to instead?
3 Q. Okay. Do you have any outstanding offers 3 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
4 to English teachers that you have interviewed? 4 gpeculation. It's beyond his yes or no.
5 A. Right at this moment? 5 THE WITNESS: | dont, | don't know.
6 Q. At thismoment. 6 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts.
7 A. Yes 7 BY MS.LHAMON:
8 Q. How many outstanding offers do you have? 8 Q. Did any of those six tdll you why they
9 A. Just one. 9 turned you down?
10 Q. Isthere adate by which you expect to hear 10 A. Onelady did. | wasnt interested in
11 back from that person? 11 hearingit, but | listened. She just wanted to go
12 A. Yes. 12 toamiddle schoal instead of a high schoal.
13 Q. Whenisthat date? 13 Q. Did she go to Audubon?
14 A. Friday. 14 A. | don't think so.
15 Q. You are getting very good at these 15 I'm not sure where she went.
16 questions. 16 And one person found something closer to
17 A. Okay. 17 their home.
18 Q. Do you anticipate making an offer to any of 18 Q. Okay. Did any of the other four tell you
19 the other 10 people that you have interviewed for 19 why they decided not to come to Crenshaw?
20 thosedots? 20 A. Sometimesthey just leave messages, so |
21 A. | think some of them will turn me, have 21 dont gettotalk to them. Usudly, if they
22 turned me down dready; they found other positions. 22 actudly get to me, | will try to generate
23 They shop just like, they interview 23 conversationif | havetime. But | don't take alot
24 different schools and they choose the schools that 24 of time with people who say they are not coming, |
25 they want. 25 mean.
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1 Q. Right. 1 Q. Have you ranked those resumes among people
2 A. They, | will admit that they were very, 2 youaemos interested to interview?
3 they dways say they are pleased with the process we 3 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assuming facts,
4 havein sdecting teachers. And that's acommittee 4 vague and ambiguous.
5 process where we have apand of people who 5 MS. STRONG: Join.
6 interview. And they usualy start out with that, 6 THE WITNESS: | must a random.
7 you know, and tell me how grest | am. Then | start 7 BY MS LHAMON:
8 fedingit: Oh, yeah, | know thisisnot, thisisa 8 Q. Of the resumes of those people you have not
9 kissof desth. And then they say: 1'm not coming. 9 interviewed, do they al have non-emergency teaching
10 But they don't make me fed very good, so | 10 credentialsin Cdifornia?
11 don't Sit there and say how is your mother and 11 MS. GODFREY: Objection; compound, vague
12 father. | usualy say, | got to go; thanks, in 12 and ambiguous.
13 essencejust for the sake of talking. 13 MS. STRONG: Cdlsfor speculation to the
14 Yesand no: Yes, | tak to some somel 14  extent you don't know.
15 dont. 15 THE WITNESS: Some of them, | don't know
16 Q. Okay. Why isit that you have not yet 16 someof them. Usudly individualswill put on their
17 interviewed the people whose resumes you have who 17 resumeif they have ateacher, if they have a
18 areinterested to teach English -- 18 teaching credentid. And if they come from out of
19 MS. GODFREY: Objection. 19 date, they will tell usright upfront. And then --
20 BY MS. LHAMON: 20 But, as | say, everybody has some form of
21 Q. -- a Crenshaw High School? 21 credentid, emergency credentidsto be ableto
22 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts. 22 work. And they are cleared through the district
23 THE WITNESS: We just smply ran out of 23  before they alow them to come through the interview
24 time. My assgnment ended for the year on June 24 process. Or if wefind one, we send them to the
25 29th, and | really am not supposed to be back a 25 digrict. Andthey haveto be cleared before we can
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1 work until the 26th of July. But I will set up 1 hirethem.
2 dates between that time and interview. 2 BY MS.LHAMON:
3 BY MS.LHAMON: 3 Q. So asto the people that you have ranked,
4 Q. Okay. | want to make sure | understand 4 how have you decided whom you are more interested to
5 that. 5 interview?
6 Y our vecation timeis from June 29 until 6 A. Wedon' turn people down. We haveto
7 July 26th, isthat right? 7 interview everybody, sometimes | should say
8 A. That's correct. 8 unfortunately. But we do haveto interview
9 Q. And when you say you are not supposed to be 9 everyone. And then the committee ratesthe
10 back at school to beinterviewing, isthat a 10 candidate accordingly.
11 district mandate? 11 Q. Andthedistrict requires you to interview
12 A. | didn't say that. 12 everybody the district sendsto you, is that right?
13 Q. I'msorry. 13 A. No.
14 A. | said I'm not scheduled to go back to 14 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts.
15 work, you know. I'm not paid; my pay doesn't start 15 BY MS. LHAMON:
16 until the 26th, but my loyalty goes beyond that. So 16 Q. How isit that you are required to
17 wewill set dates between that time that we will 17 interview everybody?
18 haveinterview dates. 18 A. Wdl, wejudt, | mean how do | know I've --
19 Q. Okay. So you do anticipate having to 19 | think everybody deserves, you know, they apply;
20 interview people on July 26th to fill the English 20 they want, they ask for an interview; we giveit to
21 Department position? 21 them. Okay. Wedon't just say | will look at your
22 A. That's correct. 22 resume, and say: No, I'm not going to interview
23 Q. Have you reviewed resumes of people that 23 you. Wedon't do that.
24 you haveinterviewed? 24 Q. That'sadecision that you have made?
25 A. Some of them. 25 A. Yes, it'sadecison that we have made,
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1 vyes 1 THE WITNESS: | don't know whether they
2 Q. That's out of respect for the applicant? 2 werefully credentialed. | know they were qualified
3 A. No. You know, sometimes you can just tell 3 bythedigtrict for usto hire them, interview them
4 by looking at aperson's resume; you can bring them 4 and sdect them, if need be. But | just remember
5 inandtalk tothem. And sowe, you know, | tendto 5 thisonelady that continuesto talk about, | mean
6 liketointerview people. Okay; let's see what they 6 the number of years she has been in the district and
7 haveto offer. ‘ 7 has been in Southern Cdifornia, moved north and is
8 Q. Okay. | want to step back a second before 8 movingback. So | remember that one.
9 | start asking about math vacancies. 9 | don't remember talking as much about the
10 How many total vacancies did you have for 10 credentids of the other onesthat we hired.
11 the 2001/2002 school year? 11 BY MS. LHAMON:
12 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor 12 Q. Okay. Then turning to the math vacancies,
13 speculation. 13 have you interviewed anyone to fill either of those
14 MS. GODFREY: And | believe asked and 14 two positions?
15 answered; incomplete hypothetical. 15 A. No, not at thistime.
16 THE WITNESS: It'salittle different 16 Q. And why not?
17 sometimes, the vacancies | have now versushow many | 17 A. | don't have an application.
18 tota vacanciesthat | have. Soif | remember 18 Q. Have you received an application to fill
19 correctly -- 19 the math vacancy?
20 Q. I can't -- 20 A. Yes. We havefilled two.
21 A. Everything runs together; yearsrun 21 Q. Sotwo of the four have already been filled
22 together. It seems asthough we have ninefor the 22 of the math vacancies?
23 school year. 23 A. Yes
24 Q. Ninefor the coming 2001/2002 school year? 24 Q. And you don't have any new gpplications?
25 A. Right. 25 A. That's correct.
Page 576 Page 578
1 Q. And how did you fill the other four that 1 Q. Do you anticipate receiving some over the
2 havedready beenfilled? 2 time period between now and the beginning of school
3 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered. 3 for the 2001/2002 school year?
4 THE WITNESS. Theinterview processwe 4 A. Yes.
5 post; we go on theinternet and post al of the 5 Q. And you anticipate that because that's just
6 depsthat we useto try and recruit teachers. 6 thenorma course of business?
7 | don't know exactly how each one of them 7 A. That's correct.
8 came about, but just following the normal process. 8 Q. How about for the Spanish vacancy, have you
9 BY MS.LHAMON: 9 interviewed anyoneto fill that position?
10 Q. And of the four that have dready been 10 A. Yes.
11 filled, how many applications did you receive for 11 Q. Have you extended any offers?
12 thosefour position? 12 A. | didnot.
13 A. | redly don't know; | don't know. 13 Q. Do you anticipate interviewing more people?
14 Q. For those four teachers you have aready 14 A. Yes, | do.
15 hired of the vacant positions, did any of them have 15 Q. How many people have you interviewed so
16 non-emergency teaching credentials in California? 16 fa?
17 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 17 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
18 speculation to the extent that you don't know. 18 THE WITNESS: For the Spanish position,
19 THE WITNESS: | do know one that was a 19 justore
20 credentiaed, fully credentialed teacher. 20 BY MS.LHAMON:
21 BY MS.LHAMON: 21 Q. And how many positions have you received
22 Q. And were the other three fully credentialed 22 for the Spanish vacancies?
23 aswdl? 23 A. Three, | think.
24 MS. STRONG: Same objection. 24 Q. And do dl of those applicants have full
25 MS. GODFREY: Join. 25 emergency credentiasin Cdifornia?
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1 A. No. 1 and make sure we have a better idea.
2 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor 2 BY MS LHAMON:
3 gpeculation, compound. 3 Q. Isanumber, isthe number of teacher
4 MS. GODFREY: Join. 4 vacanciesthat you started with for the teachers for
5 THEWITNESS: I'm not -- | don't know. 5 the 2001/2002 school, do you consider that's
6 No. | don't know. 6 consgtent with the number of teacher vacancies that
7 BY MS LHAMON: 7 theschool had for the prior two years that you were
8 Q. Okay. 8 principal?
9 A. I'msorry. | saidno. But | dont really 9 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
10 know if | had to stop and think about it. | don't 10 ambiguous.
11  know. | didn't conduct each one of themin that 11 MS. STRONG: Join.
12 detail. 12 THE WITNESS: | redly can't say, but it's
13 Q. And you don't need to be sorry if you don't 13 just gppearing to methat it'slower. And | don't
14 know the answer to any of my questions. 14 know that for afact. But | don't, | don't have
15 A. I'm supposed to answer. I'm sorry to 15 thosefactswith me.
16 mysdf, not to you. 16 BY MS. LHAMON:
17 Q. You can apologizeto yoursdlf. | haveno 17 Q. Going back to the vacancies, the nine
18 problem with that. 18 vacanciesthat you started with for the 2001/2002
19 Okay. Do you take any stepsto try to 19 school year, | know that four of the ninewerein
20 retainteachers at Crenshaw High School ? 20 math; two of the nine were in English, and one of
21 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 21 theninewasin Spanish.
22 ambiguous. 22 What were the others?
23 THEWITNESS: Yes, | do. 23 Thereistwo more.
24 BY MS.LHAMON: 24 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
25 Q. What are the steps that you take to try to 25 gpeculation if he doesn't know that.
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1 retainteachers? 1 THE WITNESS: | think we had, we needed a
2 A. Wdll, | think the big thing is to support 2 counsdor.
3 teachers and try and make sure that they fed 3 BY MS.LHAMON:
4 comfortable, too. 4 Q. What was the other one?
5 We dtarted this program Teachers Helping 5 A. Let'ssee. What was the other one?
6 Teachersto assst those new teachers to Crenshaw 6 Oh, yeah. Wefilled the science position;
7 and new teachersto teaching. And we provided a 7 onewasscience.
8 resource center for them; provided ateacher to work 8 Q. Okay. Thank you.
9 with themto help them design lessons and a course. 9 For the science position, what science
10 Then she met with them once a month. 10 classes doesthe teacher teach?
11 So that's a program that I'm pleased to say 11 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
12 we have started a Crenshaw High School just to 12 speculation, assuming you don't know.
13 support new teachers. That's something | felt that 13 THE WITNESS: | don't remember whether it's
14 we needed to do, instead of just always looking for 14 integrated or biology. | don't know.
15 teacherstrying to retain the ones that we have. 15 BY MS. LHAMON:
16 So we are very pleased with that particular 16 Q. But you remember that it was integrated or
17 program. 17 biology, one of the two?
18 Q. Do you know if that program is successful 18 A. Yes.
19 inreaining teachers at Crenshaw? 19 Q. And the counsdor position, that is the
20 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 20 ninth grade counselor position?
21 ambiguous. 21 A. Yes. Oh, no, no. I'msorry. That's not
22 MS. STRONG: Join. 22 for the counsdor position. The ninth glade
23 THEWITNESS: It'sredlytoo early to 23 counsdor ishere, ill there. It was the senior,
24 tdl. It'sonly beenin effect for one year. And 24 theninth grade counsdlor that was held inthe
25 wewould have to evauate the data and see next year 25 senior class.
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1 Q. And that would be for the next year, which 1 A. Science
2 happened to be the sophomore class, is that correct? 2 Q. And are any of the nine vacancies for the
3 A. That's correct. 3 Teachers Training Academy in Crenshaw?
4 Q. And for the Spanish teacher, Spanish 4 A. Yes
5 vacancy, what level Spanish does the teacher teach? 5 Q. How many?
6 A. I think she teaches Spanish one, 1-A and 6 A. One, one | think one of the math
7 1-B. ‘ 7 postions.
8 Q. And| know there is more math vacancies. 8 Q. Thank you.
9 Therewere origindly four math vacancies. 9 Do you receive any assistance from anyone
10 What level math are those vacancies? 10 atthedidrict leve totry to retain teachers at
11 MS. GODFREY: Objection; compound. 11 Crenshaw High School?
12 MS. STRONG: Join. 12 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
13 THE WITNESS: Algebra, geometry. 13 ambiguous.
14 BY MS. LHAMON: 14 MS. STRONG: Join.
15 Q. Andthose arethe only subjects; thereis 15 THE WITNESS: | think thereisa, we havea
16 no caculus or trigonometry or some other math? 16 program, adigrict intern program. And their
17 A. No, nocdculus. But the problem with the 17 primary function isto work with new teachers and
18 new math program isthat we have, that one of those 18 try and retain them. And teacherswho gointo this
19 teacherswill probably have to teach math. Algebra 19 program come out with a credentia, and are
20 isnot, you don't get an algebra credit. It's 20 individuasright out of college. And they havean
21 Algebral. I don't know how, | don't know the 21 interim program that they work with them.
22 proper name, but it'samath dective. Andit'sa 22 So that's the one program that |, that |
23  two-year -- it'safour-year program where teachers, 23 fed that it's out there to help retain teachers.
24  where kidswill take this course, and then after 24 BY MS. LHAMON:
25 they do, if they do well, then they will go into 25 Q. Sothedistrict does assist Crenshaw High
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1 regular dgebrawherethey get acredit. 1 School to retain teachers who are in the district
2 It's the new math program that the district 2 internship program, isthat right?
3 isunveiling for next year. 3 A. Yes | --
4 Q. Isthat aprogram that will bring pre-math 4 Q. Arethere any other --
5 invedtigations on the Crenshaw campus? 5 I'm sorry.
6 A. That's correct. 6 A. 1 wouldn't say just in Crenshaw High; it's
7 Q. And then for the two English vacancies, 7 just theteachers and teaching. And they don't
8 what English classes are they for? 8 necessarily say that, you know, if you do this, you
9 A. See, within the English Department, it 9 know, you stay at Crenshaw. | don't think they tie
10 varies. One of the English teachersisleaving who 10 Crenshawtoit. They just work with new teachersto
11 had some honors in 10th grade English classesand a 11 hedpthem do a better job.
12 couple 11th grade classes. So within the 12 Q. Arethere any didtrict intern teachers at
13 department, they will, | think will have to realign 13 Crenshaw High Schoal right now?
14 those classes, because seniority playsarole, and 14 A. Yes.
15 people who have been waiting to take the honors and 15 Q. How many?
16 whoisqudified to teach honors. 16 A. | don't know; | redlly don't know. If |
17 So | can't give you agreat, just adirect 17 hadtolook that up, I'm surel could, but | don't
18 answer asto what they will be teaching. 18 know right now sitting here.
19 Q. Okay. For those nine teacher vacancies, 19 Q. It'sawaysfair to say you don't know
20 areany of those positions from the gifted magnet at 20 something.
21 Crenshaw? 21 A. Okay.
22 A. Yes, yes. 22 Q. And I will aways understand if you don't
23 Q. How many of them? 23 remember; that's okay.
24 A. One 24 Do you receive any assistance from anyone
25 Q. And which subject? 25 atthedateintrying to retain teachers at
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1 Crenshaw High School? 1 teacher vacanciesfor the Science Department for the
2 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 2 2000/2001 school year?
3 ambiguous. 3 A. No, | don't remember that. | don't think
4 MS. GODFREY: Join. 4  that therewas. Could have been; could not have
5 MS. STRONG: Callsfor speculation. 5 been. | dontthink so. | don't know. | don't
6 THE WITNESS: | dont, | don't know of any 6 think so.
7 programsthat's designed just for that. 1'm not 7 Q. Do you remember any teacher vacanciesin
8 saying there are not any, but | don't know of any. 8 the PE department for the 2001/2002 school year?
9 BY MS LHAMON: 9 A. That | know there wasn't.
10 Q. Okay. Y ou told me aready about amath 10 Q. Therewere not any?
11 classwherethere was ateacher vacancy at the 11 A. No.
12  beginning of the school year, the 2000/2001 school 12 Q. Do you remember if there were any teacher
13 year. 13 vacanciesin the -- well, let me strike that.
14 Arethere any other classes where there 14 Arethe dective courses a Crenshaw High
15 wereteacher vacancies at the beginning of the 2001 15 School categorized together in asingle department
16 -- 2000/2001 school year? 16 or in multiple departments?
17 A. No. It ssemsliketherewas, but | can't 17 A. Multiple departments.
18 think of oneright now. I'm not sure. 18 Q. You meakeit hard for me.
19 Q. Wouldit help if | asked you about a 19 Were there any cooking teacher vacancies?
20 department? 20 A. No.
21 A. It could. 21 Q. Werethere any home economics teacher
22 Q. Okay. I will tryit. 22 veacancies?
23 In the English Department, were there any 23 A. No.
24 teacher vacancies at the beginning of the 2000/2001 24 Q. Werethere any auto shop vacancies?
25 school year? 25 A. No. Wedont have an auto shop.
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1 A. No, | don't think so, no. 1 Q. Itwasall vacant. Okay.
2 Q. How about for foreign languages? 2 What other elective does Crenshaw offer?
3 MS. GODFREY: Objection; compound. 3 MS. STRONG: Assumes facts that he handled
4 THE WITNESS: | think there was. 4  dectives.
5 BY MS.LHAMON: 5 BY MS.LHAMON:
6 Q. Do you remember which foreign language the 6 Q. What were the dectives that Crenshaw
7 vacancy wasin? 7 offered to the extent they were offered?
8 A. | think it was Spanish. 8 A. Computer graphic arts; English ectives;
9 Q. And do you remember what the schoal did to 9 contemporary computer. That's about it.
10 fill that position? 10 Q. Werethere any computer vacancies or any
11 A. Wedid the normd proceduresin trying to 11 graphic arts vacancies?
12 find ateacher. 12 A. No.
13 Q. Didthat position ever get filled? 13 Q. | have exhausted my knowledge about what
14 A. Yes, itdid. 14 getstaught.
15 Q. How long did it take for the position to be 15 A. | think it's pretty much exhausted mine,
16 filled? 16 too. | don't think there are any other departments
17 A. | redly don't remember. 17 that had vacancies.
18 Q. Do you remember if it wasinthefirg 18 Q. Youcant think of any inthe Art
19 semester? 19 Depatment?
20 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 20 A. No, no art.
21 ambiguous. 21 Q. Not inthe Music Department?
22 THE WITNESS: | don't remember; | redly 22 A. No, notin music.
23 dont. 23 Q. Now | redly have exhausted my knowledge.
24 BY MS. LHAMON: 24 Do you receive any help from anyone at the
25 Q. Okay. Do you remember if there were any 25 daeleve in recruiting teachers to Crenshaw High
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1 School? 1 Q. You could have gotten a teacher who doesn't
2 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 2 gpesk Spanish, that's also happened?
3 ambiguous. 3 MS. STRONG: Objection; incomplete
4 MS. STRONG: Join. 4  hypothetical.
5 Cadllsfor speculation to the extent that's 5 THE WITNESS: I'm pretty sureit could have
6 beyond his knowledge. 6 been
7 THEWITNESS: | can't think of any. 7 BY MS. LHAMON:
8 BY MS LHAMON: 8 Q. And weretherefivetota classesfor that
9 Q. Going back to the Spanish teacher vacancy 9 vacant position taught?
10 andthat you can't really remember how long it took 10 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
11 togetitfilled, do you remember if therewas a 11 ambiguous, unintdligible.
12 single substitute teacher who replaced or filled 12 MS. STRONG: Join.
13 that vacancy until the vacancy wasfilled? 13 THEWITNESS: Therewas afull teaching
14 A. | know that there wasnt asingle 14 postion for five classes, yes.
15 subdtitute. 15 BY MS. LHAMON:
16 Q. Do you know how many substitutes there 16 Q. Thank you.
17 were? 17 And you testified on your first day of
18 A. No, | don't. 18 testimony that thereis gpproximately 33 students
19 Q. How do you remember there wasn't just a 19 per classon average; isthat correct?
20 dgngle substitute? 20 A. That'sabout -- yes.
21 A. I just remember it. 21 Q. So there would have been about 33 students
22 Q. Do you remember whether that class was 22 for each of those five classes, is that correct?
23 filled with asubstitute teacher each day or whether 23 A. Between 30 and 33.
24 theclass had to be, whether it had to use teachers 24 Q. Thank you.
25 from aconference period to fill that class? 25 Do you remember if there were any classes
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1 MS. STRONG: Objection, compound; 1 during the 1999/2000 school year that began the
2 objection, incomplete hypothetical. 2 school year without a permanent teacher?
3 THE WITNESS: | can't remember how it was 3 A. | don't remember.
4 covered every day. | don't know the details of it. 4 MS. STRONG: I'msorry. Without a
5 Just sitting here today, | don't know the details, 5 permanent teacher?
6 <0l would perjure mysdlf if | tried to answer. 6 MS. LHAMON: Yes.
7 BY MS.LHAMON: 7 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
8 Q. Don't do that. 8 ambiguous.
9 A. No. 9 MS. GODFREY: Jain.
10 Q. Okay. Do you know what level Spanish class 10 THE WITNESS: | don't remember.
11 that that vacancy was for? 11 BY MS. LHAMON:
12 A. | redly don't. 12 Q. Why doesit happen in the school year that
13 Q. Do you know if the subdtitute teachers who 13 there are teacher vacancies at the beginning of the
14 taught spoke Spanish? 14 school year?
15 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 15 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
16 speculation to the extent he doesn't know. 16 ambiguous, cals for speculation, assumes facts.
17 MS. GODFREY: Jain. 17 MS. STRONG: Join.
18 I'm sorry. Were you finished? 18 THE WITNESS: Wéll, thereisanumber of
19 MS. STRONG: Yes. 19 reasons. Oneis, as carefully as we plan, when we
20 THE WITNESS: | remember aperiod of time 20 havethe names of dl the kids, between thetime
21 that there was a Spanish speaking set up. 21 theat the kids say that they are coming in September
22 BY MS. LHAMON: 22 --inMay and June and between that summer break
23 Q. Sofor at least some portion of the time, 23 until September, we may have as many as 400 to 500
24 there was a Spanish-spesking substitute? 24 kids who don't show and that number that shows.
25 A. That's correct. 25 So it makesit very difficult to have
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1 everybody's program equaly designed, scheduled and 1 anyone about teacher vacancies at the beginning of a
2 ready to go for thefirst day of school, because of 2 school year?
3 the number of kids that don't come that also would 3 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
4 beprogrammed and the number of individuas that 4 ambiguous, incomplete hypothetical.
5 comethat have to be programmed. 5 THE WITNESS: | don't know. Y ou know, I'm
6 So it just makesit difficult to open a 6 sure somebody complains, you know, but I don't know
7 school with the exact right number of teachers, 7 who or when or how many.
8 classes and everybody completely programmed. 8 BY MS LHAMON:
9 BY MS LHAMON: 9 Q. You cant think of any right now?
10 Q. Isthat degree of student variation 10 A. | cant think of any right now.
11 something that is specific to Crenshaw High School ? 11 Q. Okay. And have you talked to any parent
12 A. I liketo, | think it's unique to Crenshaw 12 about teacher vacancies at the beginning of the
13 High School. 13 schoal year during the three years that you have
14 Q. And why isthat? 14  been principa at Crenshaw?
15 A. Because of the loceation of the school. 15 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
16 Crenshaw High School setsjust across the street 16 ambiguous.
17 fromavery, | would say one of the most wedlthiest 17 THE WITNESS: Yes, | havetaked to some
18 neighborhoods among African-Americansinthe Cityor | 18 parents.
19 probably anywhere, and a number of those kids tend 19 BY MS. LHAMON:
20 togotothe magnet. So they shop around and then 20 Q. What do those parent say to you?
21 -- because we got afeeder database. And then the 21 MS. STRONG: Objection; compound.
22 parents shop, and they go to different magnets: 22 THE WITNESS: We have hed parent groups
23 Hamilton; they go to Hollywood, and they go to 23 that look at dl aspects of the school and assst
24  magnetsthat attract them. 24 and hdp. And some of those parent groups have
25 We dso have an influence of students 25 taked about the teacher selection and working and
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1 coming here from further east that want to go to 1 theteachers and the conditions of those schools and
2 Crenshaw. So they come from farther east to 2 dl aspects of the schoal.
3 Crenshaw High Schoal, too, because they fed that, 3 S0, yes, those parent groups have talked to
4 you know, that's where they want to go to schooal; 4 meabout it.
5 they have brothers and cousins who have gone there. 5 BY MS.LHAMON:
6 So we wind up with the names of those 6 Q. Have you talked to anyone other than
7 individuals who come on our transfer data 7 parentsinthose-- I'm sorry.
8 information that their parents have shopped, and the 8 Have you talked to any parents or parent
9 kidswho want to cometo Crenshaw. And | think that 9 groups and teecher groupsin Crenshaw?
10 that creetes, it creates a problem. 10 A. | dont, | don't remember. | know | have
11 It's just a community that's just not 11 takedtoalot of parents over the three-year
12 stable wherethe kids just go to one high school and 12 period about alot of things, but | can't just sit
13 thengotocollege. It'sjust one of those 13 hereand remember acase where | havetdkedtoa
14 communitiesthat isjust, that's, thereisalot of 14 parent about just that problem of not having a
15 trandents. 15 teacher.
16 Q. And there are more transents in Crenshaw 16 But you runinto, | mean thereisjust a
17 thaninthe other communitiesin the district or in 17 wholelot of things. And alot of things you send
18 the date? 18 to your assistant principa and your deans to work
19 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 19 with.
20 speculation. 20 So | don't remember a case right now.
21 MS. GODFREY: Join. 21 Q. And what are the parent groups that you are
22 THE WITNESS: Wadll, | redly can't say, but 22 referring to when you say there are parent groups a
23 that'safedingthat | get. 23 Crenshaw?
24 BY MS. LHAMON: 24 A. We have aparent group called Friends of
25 Q. Okay. Do you receive complaints from 25 Crenshaw/Dorsey. We have NRC and we have CEAC.

38 (Pages 595 to 598)




Page 599

Page 601

1 It'saparent group that supportsthe Title | 1 (The deposition of TRAVIS KIEL
2 program. And we have parents on the various 2 was reconvened a 1:21 P.M.)
3 committees at the school. 3 MS. LHAMON: Can we go back on the record.
4 Q. And the group that's Friends of Crenshaw 4
5 and Dorsey, | takeit these are parents of students 5 TRAVISKIEL,
6 at both Crenshaw High School and Dorsey High Schoal, 6 having been previoudy duly sworn, testified further
7 isthat right? 7 asfollows:
8 A. Yes 8
9 Q. Andisthat abooster club? Isthat afund 9 EXAMINATION (CONTINUING)
10 raiser? 10
11 A. No, it'snot afund raiser. 11 BY MS LHAMON:
12 We used to be, we used to be acluster, and 12 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Kidl.
13 sol think that's derived from that cluster. Now 13 Did you drink any acohol over lunch or
14 that weareadistrict, that group just kind of hung 14 take any medication that would affect your ability
15 onasFriends of Crenshaw and Dorsey that do things 15 toremember today?
16 for Crenshaw and Dorsey now that it's a district. 16 A. No, | did not.
17 And | need to go to the bathroom. 17 Q. | appreciate that. Thank you.
18 MS. LHAMON: Okay. Mg, too. 18 How does it impact student education to
19 Let's take a bresk. 19 have classes where there is no permanent teecher?
20 (The luncheon recess was taken 20 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
21 a11:45AM.) 21 gpeculation and calls for expert testimony.
22 22 MS. GODFREY: | join that.
23 23 Also vague and ambiguous and assumes facts
24 24 notinevidence.
25 25 MS. STRONG: Join.
Page 600 Page 602
1 APPEARANCES OF COUNSEL: 1 THE WITNESS: | think it affects students
2 (P.M. SESSION) 2 inthesensethat if the teacher is not prepared and
3 3 there may be, sometimes it's a permanent teacher or
4 SABRINA HERON STRONG, ESQ. 4 ateacher with less experience, and they may not be
5 5 asprepared as one with experience. And so that's
6 CATHERINE E. LHAMON,, ESQ. 6 how it would affect students. Undoubtedly, they
7 7 wouldn't be exposed to the best presentations. It
8 MARK D. ROSENBAUM, ESQ. 8 doesn't mean that it'simpossibleto learn. It just
9 9 meansthat it may be easier.
10 DENISE G. GODFREY, ESQ. 10 BY MS.LHAMON:
11 11 Q. It may be easier if there were ateacher
12 12 permanently assigned to the classroom?
13 ALSO PRESENT: 13 A. Yes
14 14 Q. Do you ever receive assistance from anyone
15 JEAN SHIN 15 at the state tofill in teacher vacancies at
16 16 Crenshaw High School?
17 17 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
18 18 speculation.
19 19 MS. GODFREY: Jain.
20 20 | think asked and answered.
21 REPORTED BY': 21 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of direct
22 22 assistance.
23 DONNIE A. STICKLEY, C.SR. No. 9510 23 BY MS.LHAMON:
24 24 Q. Do you ever natify anyone at the state of
25 25 teacher vacancies a Crenshaw High School ?
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1 A. No. 1 two English positions available. Arethey ill
2 MS. STRONG: Vague and ambiguous, calls for 2 avalable? And 1 will say yesor no.
3 speculation. 3 And then they send people out as aresult
4 BY MS.LHAMON: 4  forinterviews.
5 Q. Does anyone from the state level ever 5 BY MS LHAMON:
6 inquire of you whether there are teacher vacancies 6 Q. Isthereanyonein aparald postion at
7 @t the Crenshaw High School ? 7 the state level who works on personnel &t the
8 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 8 school?
9 MS. GODFREY: Join. 9 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
10 THE WITNESS: Not that | know of. 10 speculation.
11 BY MS. LHAMON: 11 MS. GODFREY: Join.
12 Q. Do you ever report the number of vacant 12 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of it.
13 teacher positions at Crenshaw High School to anyone 13 BY MS LHAMON:
14 athe statelevel? 14 Q. Thereisno onewith whom you communicate
15 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 15 at the state leve about the needs for teachers at
16 ambiguous. 16 Crenshaw High School?
17 THE WITNESS: No. 17 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
18 BY MS.LHAMON: 18 ambiguous.
19 Q. Do you ever report the number of teacher 19 MS. GODFREY: Misstates prior testimony.
20 vacancies at Crenshaw High School to anyone at the 20 THE WITNESS: No.
21 district leve? 21 BY MS. LHAMON:
22 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 22 Q. Does Crenshaw maintain alist of
23 ambiguous. 23 credentialsthat teachers have?
24 THE WITNESS: They are avare. 24 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
25 BY MS.LHAMON: 25 ambiguous.
Page 604 Page 606
1 Q. They are aware? 1 MS. GODFREY: Join inthat objection.
2 A. Yes 2 THE WITNESS: No.
3 Q. And how are they made aware? 3 Occasionally, | get aprintout maybe once a
4 A. We have apersonnel speciaist who works at 4 year or once every, | don't know how often, but we
5 the downtown office with personndl, so he and | work 5 get aprintout from the district that shows
6 together to staff the school. And so heis aware of 6 seniority and credentials held.
7 every opening that | have at the schoal. 7 BY MS.LHAMON:
8 Q. Andis he the person to whom you 8 Q. And does Crenshaw High School maintain any
9 communicate the need of teachers at Crenshaw? 9 records of teachers credentials?
10 MS. STRONG: | couldn't hear the question. 10 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
11 MS. LHAMON: | saidis hethe personto 11 ambiguous.
12 whom you communicate the need for ateacher at the 12 MS. GODFREY: Join.
13 schoal site. 13 THE WITNESS: Just that list.
14 THEWITNESS: Yes. 14 BY MS.LHAMON:
15 BY MS. LHAMON: 15 Q. Just that list within the district?
16 Q. And what happens after you communicate that 16 A. Right.
17 needtohim? 17 Q. And you said that you received that list
18 A. I'mnot absolutely -- 18 fromthedistrict about once ayear?
19 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 19 A. Tothe best of my knowledge, | think that's
20 THE WITNESS: I'm not absolutely sure asto 20 right.
21 what hedoes. But according to my knowledge of the 21 Q. For what purposeisthat list sent to you?
22 personnd speciaist, he has it posted downtown on a 22 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
23 posting list of how many vacancies in schools that 23 speculation.
24 hehasthat heis responsible for, because | will 24 THE WITNESS: Wadll, so that you will know
25 get acall from personnd that says. | see you have 25 just to verify what teachers teach and what they
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1 should teach and what they are best suited and 1 hisknowledge.
2 qudified to teach. 2 THE WITNESS: Fully credentialed?
3 BY MS LHAMON: 3 BY MS LHAMON:
4 Q. And what do you do with the list when you 4 Q. Yes
5 recaveit? 5 A. All of them are credentialed to teach in
6 A. Wdl, | shareit with the other 6 Cdiforniaschools; everybody.
7 administrators, preferably with the assistant 7 When you say do they have a credentid,
8 principal of Counsdling Services who is ultimately 8 fully credentidled meaning they are emergency
9 responsible for making teachers programs. 9 credentided or they are not emergency
10 Q. Andthat's Mrs. Cannon? 10 credentialed?
11 A. No. 11 Q. That'swhat | mean, fully credentialed.
12 Q. Thereis one thing she doesn't do? 12 A. | don't know how many, | don't know how
13 A. Yes. Mrs. Cannon sounds redl busy. 13 many ison emergency and how many that's not
14 But no. ThisisMs. McAdoo. 14 emergency credentidled at thistime. That's data
15 Q. Andjust for the reporter's benefit, how do 15 that can be obtained.
16 you spdl Ms. McAdoo's last name? 16 Q. Okay. And do you know how many teachers
17 A. M-c, M-c-A-D-O-O. 17 aredidtrict intern teachers at Crenshaw High
18 MR. ROSENBAUM: Capita A? 18 School?
19 THEWITNESS:. Yes. 19 A. No. | think, if | couldn't remember this
20 BY MS LHAMON: 20 morning, | don't remember this afternoon.
21 Q. Thank you. 21 No, | don't know.
22 A. Yes 22 Q. Do you have an estimate of the number of
23 Q. M-c-A-D-O-O. Thank you. 23 teacherswho have the full amount of fully
24 And just s0 | understand, the only 24  non-emergency credentialed teachers a Crenshaw High
25 documentation maintained at Crenshaw High School of | 25  School?
Page 608 Page 610
1 credentids that teachers at Crenshaw have comes 1 MS. GODFREY: Objection; asked and
2 fromthedidrict itsdlf; isthat correct? 2 answered.
3 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 3 THE WITNESS: | don't have one, but | can
4 ambiguous. 4 edtimate.
5 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 5 MS. GODFREY: She doesn't want you to
6 BY MS.LHAMON: 6 guess.
7 Q. And then do you know where the district 7 THE WITNESS: Okay. Well, | don't know.
8 getsinformation about teachers credentials? 8 BY MS.LHAMON:
9 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 9 Q. Okay. Y ou can say you were going to
10 speculation if you don't know. 10 guess. If you can make an estimate, | would
11 MS. GODFREY: Join. 11 appreciateit.
12 THEWITNESS: | don't know. That'sawhole 12 A. I'msorry. Now which one?
13 department. And so personnel probably assists some 13 Would you repeat the question?
14 teachersin applying to the state for the 14 Q. Sure, sure.
15 credentia. | don't know the details of how that 15 I'm asking if you can give me an estimate
16 works. 16 of the number of teachers who have full
17 BY MS. LHAMON: 17 non-emergency teaching credentials at Crenshaw High
18 Q. When you say personndl, you are referring 18 Schoal?
19 gothelL.A.-- 19 A. | redly don't know.
20 A. L.A. Unified Personnel Office. 20 MS. STRONG: Objection. I'm sorry.
21 Q. Thank you. 21 Objection; vague till asto full
22 Do you know how many teachers at Crenshaw 22 non-emergency teaching credentials.
23 High School arefully credentidled to teach in 23 THE WITNESS: Y ou know, to be honest with
24 Cdifornia public schools? 24 you, | redly don't know. | couldn't even guess.
25 MS. STRONG: Calsfor speculation beyond 25 BY MS.LHAMON:
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1 Q. That'sfair. 1 is, you know, | don't remember the date. | don't
2 Do you know if theinformation is kept at 2 remember the date or number of teachers we havein
3 Crenshaw High School? 3 the English Department, including Specia Ed English
4 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 4 teachers, | don't know how many have emergency
5 ambiguous. 5 credentid versus credentials.
6 THEWITNESS: | think that that form that | 6 BY MS LHAMON:
7 toldyou about that isaligt, | think it probably 7 Q. Okay. For the faculty aswell, have you
8 determinesthat fromthat list. Butit'sat the 8 ever made inquiry about how many teachers or faculty
9 didtrict leve. 9 asawhole have full non-emergency teaching
10 BY MS.LHAMON: 10 credentids?
11 Q. Okay. Do you know how many teachersin 11 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
12 math arefully credentided, that is who do not have 12 ambiguous.
13 emergency credentials at Crenshaw High School ? 13 MS. STRONG: Join.
14 MS. STRONG: Objection. He aready 14 THE WITNESS: | think it was talked about a
15 tedtified he doesn't know this information. 15 couple years ago when this board member came
16 MS. GODFREY: Join. 16 aboard. And | don't remember the details, but |
17 THE WITNESS: No, | don't know. 17 know that that was one of the issues with the local
18 BY MS. LHAMON: 18 Didtrict G and that they wanted to try and reduce
19 Q. And for the two departments that you 19 the number of emergency credentialed teachers.
20 supervise, the English and Music Department, do you 20 BY MS. LHAMON:
21 know how many teachers have full and non-emergency | 21 Q. When you say board members, are you
22 teaching credentials? 22 referring to that governing board at Crenshaw High
23 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered. 23 Schoal?
24 THE WITNESS: | don't know in the English 24 A. No. I'mreferring to the Board of Los
25 Department but | know in the Music Department. 25 Angdes, the school board member.
Page 612 Page 614
1 BY MS.LHAMON: 1 Q. And it's your understanding that a new
2 Q. Okay. How many teachersin the Music 2 school board member became a member of the board a
3 Department have full non-emergency credentials?. 3 couple years ago, and that school board member was
4 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 4 concerned about the number of full non-emergency
5 speculation. 5 credentiaed teachersin locd Digtricts G and 1?
6 THE WITNESS: Two. 6 A. Yes
7 BY MS.LHAMON: 7 MS. STRONG: Objection to form.
8 Q. How any teachers are there in the Music 8 BY MS.LHAMON:
9 Depatment? 9 Q. Why isthat your understanding?
10 A. Two. 10 A. Why isit my -- well, she talked about it
11 Q. How did you know that they have full 11 insome of her speeches.
12 non-emergency credentials and not emergency 12 Q. I'msorry. | didn't mean to interrupt
13 credentias? 13 you.
14 A. | hired one when | was assistant principal, 14 A. No. | wasthrough.
15 and| just know she has credentials, full 15 Q. Who was that board member?
16 credentids. And the second one hasworked in the 16 A. Janithia Hayes.
17 digtrict for many years and came over for the 17 Q. Haveyou ever had any conversations with
18 credentias. 18 Janithia Hayes about the number of credentialed,
19 Q. Okay. And for the English Department, have 19 full non-emergency credentialed teachers at Crenshaw
20 you ever made any inquiry about how many teachers 20 High School?
21 havefull non-emergency credentials? 21 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
22 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 22 THE WITNESS: Not that | know of
23 MS. GODFREY: Join. 23 personally.
24 THE WITNESS: Y ou go through at some point 24 BY MS. LHAMON:
25 over the years and get the credentials. The data 25 Q. Okay. Andwhat do you recdl Janithia
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1 Hayes saying about the numbers of full non-emergency 1 teachers?)
2 credentided teachersin local District G and 1? 2 THEWITNESS: Did sheask meto mekea
3 A. That the numbers were higher than other 3 report? No, shedidn't. Shecanget it fromthe
4 aessof thedigrict and that we would look at ways 4 personnd specidist, so she wouldn't have to ask me
5 to reduce those numbers. 5 forit.
6 Q. And when you heard her say that, did you 6 BY MS LHAMON:
7 investigate the numbers at Crenshaw High School ? 7 Q. Okay. Have you had any discussions with
8 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 8 anyoneat thedistrict level about possible waysto
9 ambiguous. 9  reduce the number of teachers who had no full
10 THEWITNESS: No, | didnt. 10 non-emergency credentials at Crenshaw High School ?
11 BY MS. LHAMON: 11 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
12 Q. Whyisthat? 12 THE WITNESS: No.
13 A. Why didn't | investigate the numbers? | 13 BY MS LHAMON:
14 don't know. | don't remember. | don't remember why 14 Q. Have you had any conversations with anyone
15 | didn't investigate the number of emergency 15 atthe dtate leve about possible ways to reduce the
16 credentided teachers. | don't know. | don't know 16 number of teachers who do not have full
17 what | could do about it by knowing how many it 17 non-emergency credentialed teachers at Crenshaw High
18 was. Theideaistotry and help teachers, help new 18 School?
19 teachersto Crenshaw. And so that's what we spent a 19 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague.
20 lot of energy and efforts on trying to help the 20 MS. GODFREY: Join.
21 teachersthat we had. 21 THEWITNESS: No, | haven't.
22 Q. Just so I'm clear on that, Janithia Hayes 22 BY MS LHAMON:
23 isthe President of the Los Angeles School Board? 23 Q. And on your first day of testimony, you
24 A. That's correct. 24  dated that some of the administrators at Crenshaw
25 Q. And did Janithia Hayes ask you to make any 25 High School are concerned about the number of
Page 616 Page 618
1 reportsto her about the number of credentialed 1 teacherswho do have full non-emergency teaching
2 teachers-- 2 credentids.
3 MS. STRONG: Objection. 3 What are the concerns these administrators
4 MS. GODFREY: Objection 4 have shared with you?
5 BY MS. LHAMON: 5 A. Wdl, thereisdiscussion in staff
6 Q. -- a Crenshaw High Schoal -- 6 medtings. Wetalk about the lack of experience and
7 MS. GODFREY: Objection. 7 the assistance and guidance that they need, and we
8 MS. LHAMON: Let mefinish. 8 needto be aware of certain individuals and certain
9 BY MS.LHAMON: 9 teachers. Just normal discussionsthat occur et the
10 Q. -- the number of full non-emergency 10 loca school side.
11 credentided teachers? 11 Q. Did you make any plansto follow up on
12 MS. GODFREY: He has adready testified he 12 these concerns?
13 hasn't had any personal conversations with Ms. Hayes 13 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
14 about credentialed, or whatever, the description you 14 ambiguous.
15 just gave, non-emergency credentiaed teachers 15 MS. GODFREY: Join.
16 BY MS. LHAMON: 16 THE WITNESS: Thetota program that we
17 Q. You can answer the question. 17 designed for teachers helping teachers was designed
18 A. I'msorry. You better repest it for me. 18 towork and was held as a result of the number of
19 MS. LHAMON: Could you read it back. 19 emergency credentided teachers. We design the
20 (The record was read as follows: 20 programto assist the new teachersto teach and the
21 And did Janithia Hayes ask you to 21 teachersthat were new to Crenshaw. So that the
22 make any reports to her about the 22 program was designed specifically to help those
23 number of credentiaded teachers at 23 teachers.
24 Crenshaw High School the number of 24 BY MS. LHAMON:
25 full non-emergency credentialed 25 Q. Did you design that program, did you
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1 participatein the design of that program because 1 findly and ask you about some facilities.
2 you aso were concerned about the number of teachers 2 What are some of the fecilitiesthat are
3 a Crenshaw High School that did not have full 3 needed?
4 non-emergency credentials? 4 A. | presume you mean at Crenshaw High School.
5 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 5 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
6 THEWITNESS: Y es, that was the primary 6 ambiguous.
7 purpose of that program, as well asto try and offer 7 MS. STRONG: Callsfor speculation.
8 themthekind of assistance that would retain them. 8 MS. GODFREY: Cdlsfor anarrative.
9 Soitwasatwo, it was severd folds -- 9 MS. STRONG: May call for expert testimony.
10 BY MS.LHAMON: 10 THE WITNESS: What arethe facilities
11 Q. Sure. 11 needs? We need some flowersin the CHS. We need
12 A. -- asapurpose of that program. 12 the blacktop resurfaced. We need some more chairs
13 Q. What are your concerns about the ddivery 13 inthe MPR room, the multi-purpose room and some
14 by full non-emergency credentialed teachers? 14 newer chairs.
15 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 15 We need a surveillance system in the hdls
16 ambiguous. 16 sowe can observeindividuaswho sit in stairwells
17 MS. STRONG: Objection to the form and that 17 during classtime and write graffiti on thewalls.
18 thetestimony isirrelevant to the purpose of this 18 Soanice surveillance system in the hall, but also
19 isse 19 inthedarwells.
20 MS. GODFREY: Join. 20 | don't know. That's among some of the
21 And additionally, that it also assumes 21 things| canthink of. | can't think of any other
22 facts. 22 thingsright now.
23 BY MS.LHAMON: 23 BY MS.LHAMON:
24 Q. Thistestimony is highly relevant to he 24 Q. You sad you need some flowersin CHS.
25 auit, and I'm very interested in what you have to 25 Isthat Crenshaw High School ?
Page 620 Page 622
1 say, Mr.Kid. 1 A. Yes
2 A. Wdl, emergency credentials and 2 Q. Soit'snot a specific areaa Crenshaw?
3 non-emergency credentials don't determine the leve 3 A. Yes. It'sthe big CHSin the middle of the
4 of ddivery that ateacher may have. So our 4 lawninthe middle of the quad. It's beautiful.
5 experienced teachers tend to have a better ddivery 5 Q. Dossit --
6 and our goal and objective isto get the best 6 A. Itjust needsflowersinit.
7 ddiveryto students. So | have aconcernto help 7 Q. Okay. Andwhy doesit need the flowers?
8 thoseindividuas be able to ddliver instruction. 8 A. Wecan't seemto -- | don't know. It's
9 Q. And soisit fair to say that you believe 9 just nothing there; that's why we need some.
10 that credentids matter in teaching, too, because 10 Q. Okay. And you say the blacktop needsto be
11 teaching experience mattersto teaching? 11 resurfaced?
12 MS. STRONG: Objection; misstate testimony. 12 A. Yes.
13 BY MS.LHAMON: 13 Q. Whyisthat?
14 Q. My guestion was. 14 A. Wdll, after years and years, it cracks, and
15 Isit fair to say that you believe 15 wejust need to resurfaceit.
16 credentias matter to teaching because teaching 16 Q. Isit dangerous right now?
17 experience matters to teaching? 17 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
18 MS. STRONG: Also objection; vague and 18 speculation; may call for expert testimony.
19 ambiguous. 19 THE WITNESS: | don't think it's
20 MS. GODFREY: Join that. 20 dangerous. It just hasred tiny cracks. It would
21 THE WITNESS: | think experienceis 21 benicer if it wasnt, if it didn't have those
22 important in teaching. 22 cracks.
23 BY MS. LHAMON: 23 BY MS.LHAMON:
24 Q. Okay. Thank you. 24 Q. You say you need some more chairsin the
25 I will move off the teaching subject 25 multi-purpose room and some newer chairs.
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1 Why isthat? 1 BY MS LHAMON:
2 A. Wadl, they are old and some of them are 2 Q. Do you know how old the roof is at
3 broken, so wejust need additional and/or some new 3 Crenshaw?
4 chairsinthat room to set up for assemblies and for 4 A. I think, I think -- I'm getting confused.
5 various activities. They need to be replaced. 5 | cant remember if it'sat Audubon or Crenshaw, but
6 Q. Aretheretimes now when there are not 6 onewas roofed within the last four years. | can't
7 enough chairs for people who are present in the 7 remember if it was Crenshaw or not. It may have
8 room? 8 been Audubon. Sol don't know.
9 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 9 Q. I think what | could ask you to help you
10 THE WITNESS: Not really. Wejust haveto 10 remember, would visudizing the schools help you
11 conduct smaller assamblies or more assemblies. We 11 remember which one had itsroof redonein the last
12 would like to have more seating capacity in that 12 four years?
13 room. 13 A. I think it was Audubon.
14 Y ou asked me what | think are some of the 14 Q. Youthink it was Audubon?
15 thingsthat we could improve upon, and that's 15 A. I think it was Audubon, yes.
16 certainly one. 16 Q. So sitting here today, do you have an idea
17 BY MS LHAMON: 17 of how old theroof is a Crenshaw High School ?
18 Q. Okay. Andyou say you need a surveillance 18 A. No. Crenshaw itself was built in 1968,
19 syseminthehal? 19 openedin'68. Tomy knowledge, | don't know of any
20 A. Yes 20 roofing problemswith it or leaks in that school.
21 Q. Youtold metowatchto seeif kidsare 21 Q. Okay. Andinyour eight years asvice
22 putting graffiti on thewall. 22 principd at Crenshaw High School, you don't
23 Isthere any other reason you need a 23 remember any time that the roof was repaired?
24  survelllance sysemin the hals? 24 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
25 A. Just to help with security. 25 ambiguous.
Page 624 Page 626
1 Q. Isthereaplanin place a Crenshaw High 1 THE WITNESS: No, | don't remember. I'm
2 School to meet any of those facilities needs? 2 saying -- I'm not saying it hadn't been, but | don't
3 A. Yes 3 remember.
4 Q. Which ones? 4 BY MS. LHAMON:
5 A. Thesurveillance system. 5 Q. Okay. Theninyour three years as
6 Q. When will that be installed? 6 principd, you don't remember at any timeif the
7 A. Wadll, they are working on it now. 7 roof was repaired a Crenshaw High School ?
8 Q. Soshould it beinstalled by the time the 8 MS. GODFREY: Objection; asked and
9 2001/2002 school year starts? 9 answered.
10 A. Yes 10 THE WITNESS: No.
11 Q. How about putting more chairsin the 11 BY MS. LHAMON:
12 multi-purpose room? 12 Q. Okay. Arethereany celingtile
13 A. Nothing. 13 replacements needed at Crenshaw High School ?
14 Q. Thereisno fundsfor that? 14 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
15 A. No fundsfor that. 15 ambiguous.
16 Q. Isthere aplan to resurface the blacktop? 16 MS. GODFREY: Join.
17 A. Not that | know of. 17 MS. STRONG: May cdl, it calls for
18 Q. Isthereaplan to put some flowersin the 18 speculation.
19 CHSinthe quad? 19 THE WITNESS: At thistime, | don't think
20 A. No, no, thereis not. 20 so.
21 Q. Arethere any roofing needs at Crenshaw 21 BY MS.LHAMON:
22 High School? 22 Q. When you say at this time you don't think
23 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 23 0, doyouthink --
24 ambiguous, calls for speculation. 24 A. | think, because | think we have repaired
25 THE WITNESS: Not that | know of. 25 somesincel have been there.
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1 Q. Soyou can't think of any time when there 1 bungaows, and I'm not sure.
2 wereneedsto repair some of the caling tiles at 2 BY MS LHAMON:
3 Crenshaw High School? 3 Q. Okay. Isthat something that Mrs. Garrison
4 A. Yes 4 would oversee?
5 Q. Haveyou examined the ceiling tilesin the 5 A. Yes
6 classroomsto identify the need for celling tile 6 Q. Okay. Arethere any restrooms that need
7 replacement? 7 anyrepairs a Crenshaw High School?
8 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 8 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and
9 ambiguous. 9 ambiguous.
10 MS. GODFREY: Join. 10 MS. STRONG: And callsfor speculation.
11 THE WITNESS: No. 11 THE WITNESS: No.
12 BY MS. LHAMON: 12 BY MS. LHAMON:
13 Q. How do you become aware of ceiling tile 13 Q. I'will ask you to look at Exhibit 1 again.
14  replacement at Crenshaw High School ? 14 If you could look at page 11 of Exhibit 1.
15 MS. GODFREY: Objection; assumes facts. 15 A. Okay. Page 11?
16 THE WITNESS: Usudly most repairs go to 16 Q. Page 1l
17 theassstant principa. If somethingisonthe 17 A. Okay.
18 chart for along period of time, and the teacher 18 Q. Do you see under the heading on the
19 getsredly annoyed, they may come to mewith the 19 left-hand side of Exhibit 1, it says "Discipline and
20 dtuation. Or if the plant manager has exhausted 20 Climatefor Learning"?
21 hisefforts, he may cometo me. 21 And toward the bottom of that header, it
22 But most times | don't, | don't hear about 22 says.
23 cdlingtiles. 23 "Mgjor maintenance improvementsin
24 BY MS. LHAMON: 24 campus appearance to promote a positive
25 Q. Who isthe assistant principa who would be 25 learning environment. Please cdl the
Page 628 Page 630
1 incharge of ceiling tile replacement? 1 school for additional information.”
2 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 2 A. Uh-huh.
3 ambiguous astotime. 3 MR. ROSENBAUM: Say yes.
4 THE WITNESS: Mrs. Garrison. 4 THEWITNESS: Yes, | seeit.
5 BY MS.LHAMON: 5 BY MS.LHAMON:
6 Q. Mrs. Garrison. 6 Q. What does that mean?
7 Arethere any piping needs at Crenshaw High 7 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
8 School? 8 gpeculation. The document speaks for itsalf.
9 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 9 MS. GODFREY: Join.
10 ambiguous. 10 THE WITNESS: "Mgor maintenance
11 MS. STRONG: Join; calsfor speculation. 11 improvementsin campus appearance to promote a
12 THE WITNESS: At thistime, no. 12 positive learning environment. Please --"
13 BY MS.LHAMON: 13 What does this statement mean?
14 Q. And that's including both water pipes and 14 BY MS. LHAMON:
15 any heating pipes at the school ? 15 Q. Thefirst sentence, "Magjor maintenance
16 MS. STRONG: Same objection. 16 improvementsin campus appearance to promote a
17 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 17 positive learning environment,” what does that mean?
18 BY MS. LHAMON: 18 MS. STRONG: Same objections.
19 Q. Do the bungalows need any repairs a 19 MS. GODFREY: Join.
20 Crenshaw High School? 20 THEWITNESS: To meit means, if you want
21 MS. STRONG: Objection; overbroad, vague 21 to know about them, call the school.
22 and ambiguous; cals for speculation. 22 BY MS.LHAMON:
23 THEWITNESS: I'mnot -- | don't know. But 23 Q. Okay. And if someone callsthe schoal, to
24 | do know we have some new bungaows that wouldn't 24 whom at the school would the person be directed?
25 need anything. But there is about four older 25 MS. STRONG: Objection; incomplete
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1 hypothetical, callsfor speculation. 1 MS. GODFREY: And hetold you; threetimes
2 THE WITNESS: It al depends on who 2 hetold you what that sentence means. When you
3 answered the phone, whether a student answered the 3 asked what doesit mean, obvioudy, | didn't
4 phone or the student department or an adult. It 4 object. That meanswhat he has testified to and
5 could range from meto Mrs. Garrison to Mr. Owens. 5 whatever it meant hetold you.
6 BY MS LHAMON: 6 The second time you asked what do you
7 Q. Okay. IsMrs. Garrison the person who has 7 bdieveit means, and he answered again.
8 the most knowledge about the maintenance 8 And | think you are badgering and being
9 improvements a the school? 9 argumentative with the witness.
10 A. No. Mr. Owens, | would say. 10 MS. LHAMON: | think that your
11 Q. Andwho isMr. Owens? 11 characterization of what the record saysis not what
12 A. Heisplant manager. 12 therecord will reflect. And 1 think the record
13 Q. Andif you look again at the first 13 will reflect I'm not badgering the witness. And
14 sentence, the onethat is on Exhibit 1, the one that 14 that isanimproper basistoingtruct him not to
15 says, "Mgor maintenance improvements in campus 15 answer.
16 appearanceto promote a positive learning 16 MS. GODFREY: What isthe question? Why
17 environment,” could you tell us what that means? 17 don't you repesat what the questionis. 1 will
18 A. Tomeit -- 18 lisgten again.
19 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor 19 BY MS. LHAMON:
20 gpeculation, and the document speaks for itself. 20 Q. Mr.Kid, | asked you if you are sure
21 MS. GODFREY: | joininthat. 21 that'swhat that sentence means?
22 But also asked and answered. 22 MS. GODFREY: No. Same objections.
23 THE WITNESS: To me, it means that, if you 23 MS. STRONG: Same objections. | join.
24 want to know about any mgjor improvementsin the 24 MS. LHAMON: Are you ingtructing him not to
25 appearance of the school and thislearning, positive 25 answer on that basis?
Page 632 Page 634
1 learning environment, you should cal and contact 1 MS. GODFREY: Yes. Uh-huh.
2 theschool. 2 BY MS.LHAMON:
3 And what | think it means, what, you asked 3 Q. Mr.Kid, | fed it'san improper basis on
4 mewhat | think, it means that we had some mgjor 4 whichtoinstruct you not to answer. We do run the
5 repairsgoing on at the schoal, and if you want to 5 risk of having you come back to answer the question
6 know the progress of them or if you wanted to know 6 again, when sheisingtructing you not to answer
7 what was happening, you could call the school and 7 that question on an improper basis.
8 find out. 8 Are you going to follow that instruction?
9 BY MS.LHAMON: 9 MR. ROSENBAUM: Andyou are --
10 Q. Okay. And areyou surethat that's what 10 MS. GODFREY: Mr. Rosenbaum, it's not your
11 the sentence means? 11 deposition.
12 MS. GODFREY: Objection; asked and 12 MR. ROSENBAUM: | know that.
13 answered. 13 Will, you can object to my making a
14 I'm going to instruct the witness not to 14 satement. I'mtrying to facilitate something. He
15 answer. 15 answered to the best of his knowledge what it means,
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: No. 16 andyou are correct it was repeeted a onetime or
17 MS. LHAMON: What isthe basis for the 17 another.
18 instruction? 18 The question, however, Counsdor, that
19 MS. GODFREY: Hetold you, and then you are 19 wasn't asked was, do you, are you just telling us
20 asking him are you sure that's what you mean. 20 like reading these words this is what it meansto me
21 That's argumentative and burdensome and repetitive. 21 or areyou certain that that is what the author
22 MS. STRONG: Y ou are badgering the witness. 22 intended here.
23 MS. LHAMON: | mean absolutely it's not. | 23 That's dl the question is designed to
24  asked the question what doesit mean. | asked him 24 ask. It'sone simple question. | don't think its
25 tomakesure. 25 worth getting into a dogfight over this.
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1 MS. GODFREY: Wel, | don't agree -- 1 A. Yes
2 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let mefinish. 2 Q. Would you tdl me what the mgjor
3 MS. GODFREY: I'm sorry. 3 maintenance improvements, | am presuming during the
4 MR. ROSENBAUM: | don't understand whyyou | 4 2000/2001 school year, were?
5 would object to asmple yes or no question. We 5 A. We had -- they may have overlapped, but we
6 have aready spent more time than the process of the 6 had thetotd school replumbed, in other words all
7 answer itsdf would take. 7 new plumbing, waterlinesand drainage. Andweaso
8 | appreciate your indulgence in letting me 8 had an air conditioning system placed in the school .
9 explanit. 9 Q. Isthat al the mgor maintenance
10 MS. GODFREY: Okay. And I'm going to state 10 improvements during the 2000/2001 school year?
11 for therecord, again, I'm not going to alow 11 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
12 tag-teaming inthis depogtion. It'sMs. Lhamon's 12 speculation.
13 deposition, and one person is going to conduct it. 13 THE WITNESS: We had somework done on the
14 If it happens again, I'm going to consider 14 bahrooms, but the mgority of the work was done on
15 adjourning the deposition. 15 the bathroomstied in with the plumbing. We had
16 Second, | can gppreciate what you just 16 some of them painted and sometile laid down in some
17 explained to me, and | understand what you are 17 of the bathrooms.
18 saying right now, but | don't believe that that's 18 Q. Canyou think of anything else?
19 the quedtionthat Ms. Lhamon asked. And | fed an 19 A. Oh, yeah. We had some buckled sidewalks,
20 obligation to protect the witness from being 20 and so we have removed some trees and recemented the
21 pressured into answering a question in the form that 21 ddewaks. Andthat'sit. And the bungaows, the
22 it was posed. 22 bungalows were added that we talked about already.
23 So if Ms. Lhamon wants to rephrase her 23 MS. GODFREY: Can | have apoint of
24 question or try to get at it another way, that's 24  clarification, Ms. Lhamon?
25 fine. | don't want to have adogfight either. | 25 | thought you had asked about the 1999/2000
Page 636 Page 638
1 understand what you are saying. But maybe the 1 schoal year inthefirst part and the second part
2 question could be asked differently. 2 for the 2000/2001 school yesr.
3 BY MS.LHAMON: 3 Canyou just clarify that for me?
4 Q. Mr. Kid, are you the person who wrote the 4 Because | must have misheard which school
5 sentence about major maintenance improvementsin 5 year you are asking aboLt.
6 campus appearance on Exhibit 1?7 6 MS. LHAMON: | amtalking about the
7 A. I'msorry. | didn't get thefirst part of 7 2000/2001 school yesr.
8 what you said in your question. 8 MS. GODFREY': Did you have that
9 Q. | sad: 9 understanding?
10 Are you the person who wrote the words, 10 THE WITNESS: Yes. Butl did, | said some
11 "Magor maintenance improvementsin campus 11 of it overlapped.
12 appearance’ on page 11 of Exhibit 1? 12 MS. GODFREY: Okay. I'msorry. Thank you.
13 A. No, | didn't. 13 THE WITNESS: | tried to just name
14 Q. Okay. Do you have persond knowledge of 14 everything that has occurred.
15 what that sentence meant to the author? 15 BY MS.LHAMON:
16 A. No. 16 Q. Sotheligt that you have just given me,
17 Q. Okay. Thank you. 17 thereplumbing, installation of air conditioning,
18 Y ou say that there were some mgjor 18 the work on the bathrooms, the buckled sidewaks and
19 maintenance improvements that took place a Crenshaw 19 the addition of bungalows, that work took place
20 High School during the 1999/2000 school yesr, is 20 during the time period of either 1999/2000 or
21 that correct? 21 2000/20001, dthough you are not sure which year the
22 A. Yes. 22 work took place?
23 Q. Werethere dso some mgor maintenance 23 MS. STRONG: Objection.
24  improvements to Crenshaw High Schoal in the 24 THE WITNESS: Y es, that's approximately --
25 2000/2001 school year? 25 yes, that's correct.
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1 BY MS LHAMON: 1 Did any of the classrooms have air
2 Q. Okay. Canyou think of anything else that 2 conditioning before that work was performed?
3 would qualify as a mgor maintenance improvement 3 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered.
4 during those two school years? 4 THEWITNESS: No.
5 A. | can't think of anything right now. 5 MS. STRONG: | bdievethat
6 MS. STRONG: Excuseme. Could wetakea 6 mischaracterizes his testimony.
7 break? | need arestroom bresk when you get a 7 MR. ROSENBAUM: Completely appropriate.
8 chance 8 THEWITNESS: | dont, | don't think any of
9 MS. LHAMON: Let'stake afive-minute 9 theroomswasair conditioned prior to the new air
10 restroom bresk. 10 conditioning.
11 (Recesstaken.) 11 BY MS. LHAMON:
12 MS. LHAMON: Back on the record. 12 Q. Okay. And after the air conditioning work
13 BY MS. LHAMON: 13 wasdone, do all classroom now have air
14 Q. You identified replumbing at the school as 14 conditioning?
15 one of the mgjor maintenance improvements for the 15 A. No.
16 2000/2001 school years. 16 Q. Which classrooms don't have air
17 Why was the schoal replumbed? 17 conditioning?
18 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor 18 A. Some of the bungalows, a couple of the
19 speculation. 19 bungdows, the old bungalows.
20 THE WITNESS: Well, the flow of water in 20 Q. Isthereaplanto put air conditioning in
21 and out was poor, and we had continuous waterlines 21 any of those old bungaows?
22 with problems. And because of the BB bond issue, we 22 A. Yes
23  were ableto upgradefirst dl of that, I'm happy to 23 Q. And when will that air conditioning be put
24 say, andit neededit. 24 in?
25 BY MS.LHAMON: 25 A. | don't know.
Page 640 Page 642
1 Q. How long had the problem existed before the 1 Q. And why does the school have a plan to put
2 schoal was replumbed? 2 air conditioning in those old bunga ows?
3 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 3 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
4 speculation. 4 speculation.
5 THE WITNESS: | wasnt, for six years| 5 THE WITNESS: The same reason that they had
6 wasn't at the school, so | don't, | don't know how 6 toputitintheregular school. | think that we
7 bad it was during those six years. But when | was 7 fdt the need in the summer months for, you know,
8 thereasassigtant principa, there was quite afew 8 when summer school was in session it can get
9 repairsthat was constantly needed, and just because 9 extremdy hot in some of the classrooms.
10 thewater drained dow and the water ran dow. Sol 10 BY MS.LHAMON:
11 remember those couple scenarios. 11 Q. Okay. Then the bungalowsthat don't have
12 BY MS. LHAMON: 12 air conditioning in them, how many classrooms are
13 Q. And the BB bond issue was a source of the 13 there?
14 fundsfor the repair of the replumbing of the 14 A. | think it'sfour.
15 school? 15 Q. Yousad it can get extremdy hot in the
16 A. That's correct. 16 classes.
17 Q. Werethere any other sources of funds? 17 How hot is extremely hot?
18 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 18 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
19 speculation. 19 speculation.
20 THE WITNESS: | don't know. | don't know 20 THE WITNESS: That | don't know. It's
21 how al the work was funded. 21 uncomfortable. Okay. | don't know how hot it is.
22 BY MS. LHAMON: 22 | don't know.
23 Q. Okay. You saidtherewasair conditioning 23 MS. GODFREY: | joininthat last
24 work done at the school in the '99/2000 and 24 objection.
25 2000/2001 school years. 25 BY MS.LHAMON:
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1 Q. Do you have an estimate for how many 1 Q. And doesit aso coal the bungalow
2 degressitiswhenit's extremely hot or 2 classrooms, or isthere a different unit that cools
3 uncomfortable? 3 thebungaow class units?
4 A. | redly don't; | really dont. 4 A. Each bungalow has an individual unit.
5 Q. Okay. Would it be above 80 degrees when 5 Q. Arethe bungdow classrooms the only
6 it'sextremely hot? 6 cassrooms on campus that have individua units?
7 MS. GODFREY: The witness answered that he 7 A. | think the shop building, some of the
8 doesxnt know. 8 ghops have individual units aswell.
9 Asked and answered. 9 Q. Andthe--
10 Move on, Counsd. 10 A. The print shop, the new media center hasa
11 BY MS. LHAMON: 11 separate unit.
12 Q. Will you answer my question? 12 Q. And those are the only classrooms that have
13 A. Youknow, | don't know because, you know, 13 individua units?
14 you raise windows you get a breeze, you know. | 14 A. Those arethe only ones| can think of at
15 don'tknow. Sol can't giveyou, | really can't 15 thistime
16 giveyou an answer. 16 Q. Okay. Thanks.
17 MS. GODFREY: At that time you said that -- 17 Does the main unit that cools most of the
18 MS. LHAMON: Y ou redly shouldn't cut off 18 classrooms on campus aso cool your office?
19 thewitnesssanswer. You should let him answer 19 A. Yes
20 questions. 20 Q. Okay. Arethere any offices on campus that
21 MS. GODFREY: Not when you are pressuring 21 haveindividud units?
22 thewitnessfor an answer. 1'm going to conduct 22 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
23 mysdf as| seefit. 23 gspeculation.
24 MS. LHAMON: Okay. I think it's 24 THE WITNESS: Nonethat | can think of.
25 appropriate in adeposition to ask followup 25 BY MS LHAMON:
Page 644 Page 646
1 questionsto make sure | get complete answersto 1 Q. Okay. And then the main unit that cools
2 questions. 2 mogt of the classrooms and the offices on campus, is
3 MS. GODFREY': | agreeyou are entitled to 3 there only one place where the temperature can be
4 test the witnesss memory. But thiswitnesstold 4 regulated or are there more places than one where
5 you he does not know the degree, and you have asked 5 thetemperature can be regulated?
6 himthreetimesfor that. And| think hehasdonea 6 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
7 good job of trying to describe for you what he means 7 ambiguous, calls for speculation.
8 by extremdy hot. 8 THE WITNESS: | think each room hasa
9 BY MS.LHAMON: 9 thermogtat that kicks on and kicks off the air for
10 Q. Mr. Kid, | do appreciate your effortsto 10 that room. AndI'm not 100 percent sure how it
11 claify your answers. And if you have any further 11 operates, but | do know the rooms have thermostats
12 clarification, | would appreciate it if you would 12 inthem.
13 giveit to mefor this question or any other 13 BY MS. LHAMON:
14 question. Okay. Thank you. 14 Q. Okay. Andtheair conditioning functions
15 Asfar astheair conditioning work at the 15 inall the classroomstoday at Crenshaw High School?
16 school in the '99/2000 and the 2000/2001 school 16 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
17 vyears, wasit asingle air conditioning system that 17 ambiguous, calls for speculation.
18 operatesfor the entire school or are there 18 MS. GODFREY: Join.
19 different air conditioning systems with different 19 THEWITNESS: That's-- asfar as| know.
20 classrooms? 20 | didn't get any complaints when school wasin
21 MS. STRONG: Callsfor speculation. 21 session.
22 THE WITNESS: It's one mgjor unit, abig 22 BY MS.LHAMON:
23 unit that cools the entire three-story building and 23 Q. For the entire 2000/2001 school year?
24 the shop building. 24 A. Oh, no, no. | amsorry. | thought you
25 BY MS.LHAMON: 25 said for now.
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1 Q. I did. Start with now. 1 MS. STRONG: Assumesfacts.

2 A. Inthemonth of June, | didn't get any 2 THEWITNESS: Yes.

3 complants. 3 BY MS LHAMON:

4 Q. Okay. Didyou get any complaints about the 4 Q. And was that true for the entire '99/2000

5 air conditioning at all during the 2000/2001 school 5 school year?

6 year? 6 A. I'mnot sure of the dates and the time.

7 A. 2000/2001, | can't remember any. 7 Okay? | dont, | don't know the month, the dates,

8 Q. Okay. And for the'99/2000 school year, 8 thetime. | remember some complaints, and |

9 canyou remember any school complaints about air 9 remember Mrs. Garrison and working with the
10 conditioning? 10 contractor and appliance manager.
11 A. Yes wedid have some. 11 Q. Did there come atime when the contractor
12 Q. When? 12 wasno longer respongble for fixing the
13 A. When the system first went on line. 13 ingtdlation of the air conditioning units or system
14 Q. What were those complaints? 14  inthe'99/2000 school year?
15 A. It wastoo hot. 15 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
16 Q. Sowhen the system first went on line, it 16 ambiguous and misstates prior testimony. | don't
17 wasn't functioning fully correctly? 17 bdievethere has been any testimony that they were
18 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 18 fixingit.
19 ambiguous. 19 MS. STRONG: Objection -- | meanjoin.
20 MS. GODFREY': | wasjust going to say that 20 THE WITNESS: | don't know the exact time.
21 misstates prior testimony. 21 | don't know what year, what school year it was,
22 BY MS. LHAMON: 22 because | know the system overlgpped. So | don't
23 Q. And how long did it take to get the AC 23 know if it was, | don't know which year. And you
24 system fully operational, when it first went on 24 referredtotheyear. And | don't know, | don't
25 line? 25 know the exact year, school yesr.

Page 648 Page 650

1 MS. GODFREY: Objection; misstates prior 1 BY MS.LHAMON:

2 testimony. 2 Q. Okay. But in one of the '99/2000 or

3 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and ambiguous 3 2000/2001 schoal years, ultimately the contractor

4 and calsfor speculation. 4 sopped having responsibility for the air

5 THE WITNESS: | dont, | don't know. | 5 conditioning system a Crenshaw High School?

6 don't remember the details. Okay. 6 A. That is correct.

7 BY MS.LHAMON: 7 MS. GODFREY: Same objectionsto the

8 Q. Okay. Wasthe plant manager the person who 8 quedtion.

9 wasoverseaing therepair of the air conditioning 9 BY MS.LHAMON:
10 systeminthe 2000 school year? 10 Q. What was the source of funds for installing
11 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 11 theair conditioning system at Crenshaw High School ?
12 ambiguous, and it assumes facts. 12 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
13 MS. GODFREY: Join. 13 speculation.
14 THEWITNESS: Okay. He wasn't responsible 14 THE WITNESS: The BB bond funds.
15 for therepair. It wasan ingtadlation of anew 15 BY MS. LHAMON:
16 system, so it would be, the contractor was till on 16 Q. And do you know if there was any other
17 board. Hedid receive complaints, along with 17 source of funds for ingtalling the air conditioning
18 Mrs. Garrison. 18 a Crenshaw High School?
19 BY MS.LHAMON: 19 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
20 Q. And then the contractors were responsible 20 speculation.
21 for fixing the ingtallation during the '99/2000 21 THE WITNESS: No, | don't know of any.
22 school year? 22 BY MS.LHAMON:
23 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 23 Q. Okay. Do you know how much the air
24 ambiguous. 24 conditioning system cost?
25 MS. GODFREY: Misstates prior testimony. 25 A. No, | don't know how much the air
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1 conditioning system cost. 1 conditioning system wasin operation in March 20017
2 Q. Do you know gpproximately how much the air 2 MS. STRONG: Objection; incomplete
3 conditioning system cost? 3 hypothetical.
4 A. Youknow, | don't remember. | don't 4 THEWITNESS: Yes, it'spossble.
5 remember the plumbing or the ar conditioning; | 5 BY MS LHAMON:
6 can't remember those figures. | know it was some 6 Q. Sitting here today, you don't have any
7 large numbers, but | don't know which onewas 7 information about whether it wasin operationin
8 which. | would be -- | don't, | don't know 8 2001 March?
9 agpproximately. 9 MS. GODFREY : Objection; asked and
10 And so | don't know. 10 answered.
11 Q. Okay. Y ou could tell me both numbers and 11 MS. STRONG: Argumentative.
12 tel methat you are not sure which number went with 12 MS. GODFREY: Join.
13  which? 13 THEWITNESS: | truly don't have any
14 A. There were some numbersin the 400,000 and 14 information on the air conditioning system today
15 | don't, and one wasin the 500,000. So| don't | 15 withme
16 don't know which oneiswhich. 16 BY MS LHAMON:
17 Q. Okay. But onewas for air conditioning and 17 Q. Do you know about how many months that it
18 onewasfor the other -- 18 wasin operation?
19 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague. 19 A. | redly couldnt, | redly couldn't tell
20 MS. GODFREY: Join. 20 you.
21 BY MS LHAMON: 21 MS. GODFREY: Thereisno question pending,
22 Q. -- the plumbing? 22 Counsd. Youcan moveon.
23 A. Yes 23 I'm just going to let the record reflect
24 Q. And let me step back for a moment. 24  that counsd iswaiting along time after she asks
25 Am | correct that the BB bond issueisa 25 questions, certain questions, asif sheis
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1 loca bond, locd school bond issue. 1 anticipating or pressuring for afurther response,
2 MS. GODFREY: Objection; callsfor 2 diter the witness has dready said he doesn't know.
3 speculation. 3 And| do not want this witness to fed pressured to
4 THEWITNESS: It's my understanding. 4 continue on.
5 BY MS.LHAMON: 5 BY MS.LHAMON:
6 Q. Do you know how much the air conditioning 6 Q. Mr. Kid, doyou fed any pressureto
7 system cost to operate for the 2000/2001 school 7 answer my questions?
8 year? 8 A. Wdll, | fed that you need an additional
9 A. | dont have aclue. 9 response sometimes. | don't know if it's pressure.
10 Q. Okay. Do you know how many daysthe air 10 | wouldn't call it pressure, but | think you may be
11 conditioning system was in operation during the 11 waiting for an additional response.
12 2000/2001 schoal year? 12 Q. Okay. | would appreciateit if youwould
13 A. No, | don't know. 13 et me know if you think that I'm waiting for an
14 Q. Do you have an estimate for the number of 14 additiond response, and you are not surewhat it is
15 days? 15 I'masking for, because | can absolutely ask you a
16 A. | redly don't know. | don't even know how 16 question.
17 tothink about that. 17 Okay?
18 Q. Okay. Do you know which months the air 18 A. Okay.
19 conditioning system would have been in operation in 19 Q. Thank you.
20 the 2000/2001 schoal year? 20 Y ou told me that during the 1999/2000
21 MS. STRONG: Objection; incomplete 21 school year and/or the 2000/2001 school yesr, there
22 hypothetical. 22 were mgor improvements to the school that included
23 THEWITNESS: | redly don't know. 23 improvements to buckled sidewalks.
24 BY MS. LHAMON: 24 Could you describe what those improvements
25 Q. Okay. Isit possiblethat theair 25 were?
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1 A. Yes. Along the football stadium and 1 speculation.
2 saviceroad, there were anumber of trees that had 2 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure, but | think so.
3 pushed the concrete up and buckled the sdewalks. 3 BY MS LHAMON:
4 And those trees have since been removed, taken out, 4 Q. Okay. Do you know if there are any other
5 and the concrete has been made new. And thetree 5 sources of funds used to repair the buckled
6 gpacesarethere. They aregoingtoputina 6 sdewaksat Crenshaw High School?
7 different type of tree. 7 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
8 Q. And all of that work took place during the 8 gpeculation to the extent he doesn't know.
9 '99/2000 and 2000/2001 school year? 9 THE WITNESS: | don't know of any other
10 A. Yes 10 funds.
11 Q. And the improvements included removing the 11 BY MS LHAMON:
12 trees? 12 Q. Okay. How long had the sidewalks been
13 A. Yes 13 buckled a Crenshaw High School before they were
14 Q. And that was the sdewalks aong the 14  repaired?
15 football field. 15 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
16 And that's the only places at the schoal, 16 speculation.
17 or arethere other places where the improvements 17 THEWITNESS: Itwasaslong as| have
18 were madeto buckled sdewalks? 18 worked there.
19 A. Oh,yes. Thereissomeareasin front of 19 BY MS. LHAMON:
20 the gymnasium, treeswere removed thereaso. And | 20 Q. Including the time when you were vice
21 understand that they are going to re-do that surface 21 principal?
22 aswel, but it hasn't been completed as of this 22 A. Yes
23 date. 23 Q. Youtold methat another form of mgjor
24 Q. Okay. Which part of thework has been 24 improvement and repairs to Crenshaw High School,
25 completed so far? 25 that were donein the '99/2000 and 2000/2001 school
Page 656 Page 658
1 A. Thework on the sdewaks, the sidewalk in 1 vyears, wasthe addition of some bungalowsto the
2 front of the stadium, alongside the stadium. 2 campus, isthat correct?
3 Q. When you say work on the sidewalk, | think 3 A. That's correct.
4 I'm confused. 4 Q. How many bungalows were added?
5 Y ou mean the sidewalk has been taken up or 5 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered.
6 do you mean something different? 6 THE WITNESS: | tedtified to that. And |
7 A. | mean that -- 7 dont, right now at thishour, | cant, | will have
8 (Discussion off the record.) 8 to count them in my mind and try to count the right
9 THE WITNESS: | remember the question. 9 number.
10 | don't understand, but | remember the 10 | don't know. It seemslikeit's about --
11 question. 11 | don't remember. Let'ssee
12 The sdewak has been replaced and new 12 In the 2000/2001 school yesr.
13 concrete has been placed down, so the sidewalk is 13 Q. And the 1999/2000 schoal year; both years.
14 down as smooth asthistable. Thereisno buckles 14 A. Seemslikeit's about 13.
15 andnotreeroots. It'sal been removed and new 15 Q. Okay. Areyou still thinking?
16 concrete is down. 16 A. No. | thinkit's13.
17 BY MS. LHAMON: 17 Q. | don't want to cut you off.
18 Q. And part of the repair that has not been 18 MS. GODFREY: Do you need abreak?
19 completed isthe planting of the new trees, isthat 19 THE WITNESS:. No. | just can't think. |
20 right? 20 should, | fed like | should be able to think of
21 A. Right. Thetreesarenotin. 21 thoserooms, and | cant. But my mind is somewhere
22 Q. Okay. Wasthe BB bond issue the source of 22 tothedetail it's difficult to pinpoint.
23 fundsfor repairing the buckled sidewalks at 23 Go ahead. I'm sorry.
24 Crenshaw High School aso? 24 BY MS. LHAMON:
25 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 25 Q. Youjust do the best that you can.
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1 A. | know. | said the number before. 1 BY MS LHAMON:
2 Go ahead. 2 Q. Not at the current time?
3 I'm sorry. 3 A. No.
4 Q. That's okay. 4 Q. And how long has the overcrowding at
5 Why were the bungal ows added a Crenshaw 5 Crenshaw High School existed that the bungaows
6 High School? 6 rdieved?
7 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 7 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
8 speculation. 8 ambiguous, cdls for speculation.
9 | believe he dready gave hisopinion asto 9 MS. GODFREY': | believeit assumesfacts.
10 this, so asked and answered in that regard. 10 | don't think there has been any testimony that
11 THEWITNESS: The number of students, we 11 there has been overcrowding at Crenshaw.
12 had aclass-size reduction in overcrowding. That's 12 THE WITNESS: How long? The mgor portion
13  why they were added. 13 of it wasfor the class size reduction to reduce the
14 BY MS LHAMON: 14 English classesto 20 to one. That was abig piece
15 Q. And dl approximately 13 of these bungalows 15 ofit. And that directive came out in the 1999/2000
16 have been added since you have been principa at 16 school yesr.
17 Crenshaw High Schooal, isthat correct? 17 BY MS. LHAMON:
18 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered. 18 Q. You dso tedtified that the bungal ows would
19 THEWITNESS: That's correct. 19 actudly relieve the overcrowding at Crenshaw High
20 BY MS.LHAMON: 20 School. I'masking:
21 Q. Have you noticed that the addition of the 21 How long had that overcrowding existed at
22 bungdows rdieve the overcrowding a Crenshaw High | 22 Crenshaw High School?
23 School? 23 MS. GODFREY: Objection; misstates prior
24 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 24 testimony.
25 ambiguous. 25 THE WITNESS: Okay. The overcrowding | was
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1 THEWITNESS. Yes. 1 referringto was traveling teachers. And traveling
2 BY MS.LHAMON: 2 teachershad beenin place since | came back as
3 Q. What was the source of funds for installing 3 principa at Crenshaw.
4 thebungalows at Crenshaw High School? 4 BY MS. LHAMON:
5 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 5 Q. When you say traveling teachers, what do
6 speculation. 6 you mean by that?
7 THE WITNESS: | think it was state funds. 7 A. Teachersthat don't have an individual
8 BY MS.LHAMON: 8 classroomto stay inal day. Y ou have no roomsin
9 Q. And not the proposition BB funds? 9 the conference period; your classroom is not idle.
10 A. That's correct. 10 Andteacherstravd to make sure every roomis used
11 Q. Okay. Do you know what the source of the 11 everyperiod of theday. And inthat way some,
12 sate funds was? 12 rather than have one teacher trave five times, you
13 A. No, | don't. 13 havethreeteacherstravel oneor two times. And
14 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 14 that way every classroom is being used.
15 speculation. 15 And so the district considers when a
16 BY MS. LHAMON: 16 percentage of people that are traveling, that's
17 Q. Do you know if there was any district match 17 okay. | mean, in other words they don't consider
18 tothe funds for the addition of the bungalows? 18 you over capacity until | think it's 30 percent of
19 A. | redly don't. 19 your teachers are traveling.
20 Q. Does Crenshaw High School need anymore 20 Q. And so with the addition of bungalows at
21 bungalows on campus? 21 Crenshaw High Schoal, are any teacherstraveling
22 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 22 now?
23 ambiguous. 23 A. Noteachersaretraveling at thistime.
24 MS. STRONG: And cdlsfor speculation. 24 Q. Andisthat preferable to having teachers
25 THE WITNESS: Not at the current time. 25 traveing?
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1 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 1 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
2 ambiguous. 2 speculation.
3 THE WITNESS: No, not yet. 3 THE WITNESS: Oh, because they were old and
4 BY MS.LHAMON: 4  needed replacing.
5 Q. Didyou say yes? 5 BY MS. LHAMON:
6 A. It'spreferable to have teachers not 6 Q. How long had they needed replacing?
7 trave. ‘ 7 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor
8 Q. | thought that's what | meant to ask. 8 speculation.
9 Think you for clarifying my question. 9 THE WITNESS: | don't know. | really don't
10 And why isit preferable to have teacher 10 know.
11 not travel? 11 BY MS. LHAMON:
12 MS. STRONG: Objection; calsfor 12 Q. Do you know why they needed replacing?
13 speculation and for opinion. 13 MS. STRONG: Cdlsfor speculation beyond a
14 THE WITNESS: Okay. Well so the teachers 14 yesor no answer.
15 will havetheir own places, you know. They can stay 15 MS. GODFREY: Asked and answered.
16 inthe sameroom, and you can decorate your room, 16 THE WITNESS: Some of the hinges was
17 display the students work. Y ou arethere, and you 17 broken; the corrosion of the metal had started. So
18 can haveyour own posters. Y ou can give theroom 18 they needed, they needed replacing.
19 persondity. 19 How do you know when something needs
20 If you have to travel from room to room, 20 replacing? Youlook at it and it needs replacing;
21 you can understand that it's difficult. I | use 21 it'sdeteriorating.
22 theroom this period and someone &l se uses the room 22 BY MS. LHAMON:
23 thenext period, they can't put their kids work up, 23 Q. And what was the source of funds for that
24 you can't put your kids work up. Soit doesn't 24 bathroom work during the '99/2000 and 2000/2001
25 lendto having the type of classroom that shows 25 school years?
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1 individua teachers needs and desires. 1 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
2 So | guess the answer is that an individua 2 speculation.
3 room was more desirable than having to travdl. 3 THE WITNESS: That was the BB bond issue.
4 BY MS. LHAMON: 4 BY MS. LHAMON:
5 Q. Okay. Thank you. 5 Q. I'msorry.
6 Inthefina piece of mgjor improvement 6 Any other source of funds for that work?
7 work, that you identified during the '99/2000 and 7 MS. STRONG: Same objections.
8 2000/2001 school years at Crenshaw High School, was 8 THE WITNESS: Not that | know of.
9 somework on bathrooms. 9 BY MS.LHAMON:
10 What work was that? 10 Q. Isthere any other bathroom work that
11 A. Wdll, as apart of taking out the drains 11 Crenshaw needs now?
12 and putting in new drains and putting in new water 12 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor
13 fountains, smart bathrooms, we painted the bathrooms 13 speculation.
14 andfilled in certain areas of thewall, put in 14 THE WITNESS: Not that | know of.
15 «als, new stals in the bathrooms, some work of 15 MS. STRONG: Vague and ambiguous.
16 that nature. 16 BY MS.LHAMON:
17 Q. Which bathrooms got some new stalls? 17 Q. And the bathroom work that was performed at
18 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered. 18 Crenshaw during the '99/2000 and 2000/2001 school
19 THE WITNESS. Bathrooms near the entrance 19 vyears, wasthat bathroom work on both faculty and
20 of theschool. That'stwo that | know of. 20 student bathrooms?
21 BY MS.LHAMON: 21 A. Some occasions, but the mgjority of it --
22 Q. And werethose new dtals replacing stalls 22 oh, no. All the bathrooms were worked, was
23 that aready existed or were those expansions? 23 replumbed, dl the plumbing throughout the schoal.
24 A. Itwasreplacing stalls. 24 So, yes, al faculty and students
25 Q. And why were those gtals replaced? 25 bathrooms were replumbed.
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1 Q. Okay. What are deferred maintenance needs 1 Q. Mr. Owensisthe plant manager and
2 a Crenshaw High School? 2 Mrs. Garrison is the assistant principal ?
3 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 3 A. That's correct.
4 ambiguous. 4 Q. Does Mr. Owens ever report to you about
5 MS. STRONG: Cdlsfor speculation; may 5 deferred maintenance needs a Crenshaw High School ?
6 cal for expert testimony. 6 MS. GODFREY : Objection; incomplete --
7 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure; I'm not sure. 7 Well, I'm sorry. Go ahead.
8 When you say deferred, what are you 8 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
9 referring to? 9 ambiguous.
10 BY MS.LHAMON: 10 THE WITNESS: No, not -- not recently.
11 Q. Widll, it's my understanding deferred 11 BY MS LHAMON:
12 maintenanceisaterm of art in the district. 12 Q. DoesMrs. Garrison ever report to you about
13 And | guess| should step back and ask 13 deferred maintenance needs a Crenshaw High School ?
14 you: 14 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
15 Have you heard the term used? 15 ambiguous.
16 A. | have heard the term used, but I'm not 16 THE WITNESS:. No.
17 surel know what you are referring to when you say 17 BY MS LHAMON:
18 deferred maintenance. 18 Q. Does Mrs. Garrison have adeferred
19 Q. Wdll, why don't you tell me what you think 19 maintenance plan in place?
20 it means. Maybe we can use that definition. 20 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and
21 A. Deferred maintenance. | think it means 21 ambiguous.
22 that items, that long range, long-range repairs on 22 THE WITNESS: No.
23 cetanthings, whether it's painting or something 23 MS. GODFREY: Join.
24 that you work toward for a period of timeto 24 THE WITNESS: If itis, it could be with
25 complete. 25 Mr. Owens and with the operations person. And they
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1 Q. That'saworkable definition for me. Why 1 dosurveying of the school and they do
2 don't we usethat definition. 2 walk-throughs. And there could be some plans. But
3 And let me ask you: 3 before any work is done, they would share that with
4 Arethere any deferred maintenance needs at 4 meanddiscussit with me.
5 Crenshaw High School? 5 But the overal plan for deferred
6 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 6 maintenance could be on the books somewhere, but I'm
7 speculation. 7 not aware of it right now.
8 THE WITNESS: That'strue. | don't know, | 8 BY MS. LHAMON:
9 don't know what it would be now, you know, because | 9 Q. Okay. Youtestified on Friday that if a
10 fed pretty comfortable with where we are a, you 10 hbird were nesting in aclassroom in Crenshaw High
11 know, with the things that we have got going and the 11 Schooal, the school would call pest control.
12 repairsthat has been made. So | don't know. 12 Why would the school do that?
13 | would haveto, | can't, | can't come up 13 MS. GODFREY: Incomplete hypothetica. I'm
14 with anything right now. 14 not sureif it misstates prior testimony. And vague
15 BY MS. LHAMON: 15 and ambiguous and calls for speculation.
16 Q. Okay. And isthere anyone who keeps, who 16 THE WITNESS: That's the process for
17 monitors the status of maintenance at the school ? 17 removing any anima or any type of cleaning problem,
18 MS. STRONG: Objection; vague and 18 or any -- thereis a department for ants, roaches,
19 ambiguous. 19 hirds, bugs, bees; that's the area which we call.
20 MS. GODFREY: Jain. 20 BY MS.LHAMON:
21 MS. STRONG: May cdl for speculation. 21 Q. Okay. You asotold uson your first day
22 THEWITNESS:. Yes. 22 of testimony that you would bring us a school map so
23 BY MS. LHAMON: 23 that we could see where al the bathrooms are on
24 Q. And who isthat person? 24 campus.
25 A. Mr. Owens and Mrs. Garrison. 25 Did you bring us a map today?
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1 A. Didl say | was going to bring you amap? 1 MS. STRONG: Objection; misstates the
2 MS. STRONG: Objection; misstates 2 testimony, | believe,
3 testimony. He mentioned that he could, not that he 3 THE WITNESS:. Therearethetwothat is
4 wasgoing to. 4 near thefront entrance, and then thereis two near
5 MS. GODFREY: Join. 5 thelunch areathat | spoke with you about.
6 THE WITNESS: | don't remember saying | 6 BY MS LHAMON:
7 would bringamap. | gpologize. 7 Q. And thosefour bathrooms are dl four
8 | sent amap to counsd. 8 students bathrooms, isthat correct?
9 BY MS LHAMON: 9 A. That's correct.
10 Q. Toyour counsd? 10 Q. And aretwo of the bathrooms bathrooms for
11 A. Yes 11 girlsand two of the bathrooms bathrooms for boys?
12 Q. Okay. | would loveit if you could provide 12 A. That's correct.
13 that map tous. We haven't yet received it. 13 Q. Do you know how many stdlstherearein
14 MS. GODFREY: Okay. | will just state for 14  those four bathrooms?
15 therecordthat | wasn't here during Mr. Kidl's 15 A. Inthefour bathrooms how many stals.
16 first two days of deposition testimony. And it may 16 Eight, | think.
17 have been that that document was produced in the 17 Q. Eight total ?
18 document production that was sent out on Monday. 18 MS. STRONG: Thisisabout eight?
19 And | will confirm that with my office and be happy 19 THE WITNESS: Approximeately eight.
20 toprovideittoyou if it hasin fact been turned 20 BY MS. LHAMON:
21 over and not produced. 21 Q. How do you know that those bathrooms are
22 MS. LHAMON: Okay. | appreciate that. 22 dwaysopen?
23 MS. GODFREY: Uh-huh. 23 A. | dont.
24 BY MS.LHAMON: 24 Q. Okay.
25 Q. Onyour first day of deposition, you told 25 A. They aredirected to keep them open, but |
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1 usthat you were not then sure how many bathrooms 1 don't know that they are aways open, because I'm
2 there were on campus. 2 notthere every day.
3 Have you had occasion to count the 3 | believe that they are open.
4 bathrooms since then? 4 Q. Do you check to seeif they are open?
5 A. No, | havent. | did assign it to my 5 A. Yes.
6 assigtant principal. He highlighted them and put 6 Q. Ondaysthat you are there?
7 the map together and gave that packet of information 7 A. Yes.
8 totheattorney. 8 Q. Haveyou ever found them closed?
9 Q. Okay. 9 A. Only when thereis amaintenance sign
10 A. Sol didn't count them. I'm sorry. 10 that'sonthem. And that hasn't been there as
11 Q. No. That'sfine. | will getit fromthe 11 frequently since we have got the replumbing done.
12 document when we receive the document. 12 Q. You check al four of the bathrooms on the
13 A. Okay. 13 daysthat you are on campus?
14 Q. | may have some questions then. 14 A. | check them when I'minthe vicinity. |
15 Isit fair to say that you don't today know 15 don't walk out of my office to go and check on the
16 how many toilets there are on campus for girls? 16 bathrooms. But when I'minthe area, usualy
17 MS. GODFREY: Objection; asked and 17 studentswill let me know if the bathrooms are not
18 answered. 18 open.
19 THE WITNESS. Not even the number of 19 Q. And how do students et you know? Do they
20 bathrooms, so | don't know the number of toilets. 20 comeandtdl you?
21 BY MS.LHAMON: 21 A. They seeme. I'mvisibleinthe lunch
22 Q. You said on your first day of testimony 22 area, thequad. If thereisaproblem with
23 that there are four bathrooms that are open around 23 bathrooms, or anything of that nature, they will
24 theclock at Crenshaw. 24  tak to me about it.
25 Which bathrooms are those? 25 Q. Havethey let you know about any of those

57 (Pages 671 to 674)




Page 675

Page 677

1 four bathrooms not being open? 1 BY MS LHAMON:
2 A. | remember maybe two occasonswhere a 2 Q. But you don't know of any of the
3 young man has spoken to me about the bathrooms. | 3 requirements for high school ?
4 immediately find out whet the problemis. And they 4 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered.
5 will say that the bathrooms are open, the C wing 5 MS. GODFREY: Join.
6 first floor is open because there is a problem with 6 THEWITNESS: No.
7 something with the bathroom. It could be a problem 7 BY MS LHAMON:
8 with thebathroom. So| haven't redly tried to 8 Q. Do you know if the didtrict has any
9 makesure. 9 reguirements about the number of toilets that a
10 But if there are any major repairson a 10 campus should have per student?
11 bathroom, we let the students know where another 11 A. | haven't read them, so | don't know.
12 bathroom will be open. And that's, that's a concern 12 Q. Okay. Has anyone from the state ever
13 of mineto make surethat kids are aware. And | let 13 communicated with you about the number of toilets
14 al AMAPsknow if there are any reasonsthe bathroom | 14  that are available for students at the Crenshaw High
15 isclosed. Wego on the PA and make sure the kids 15 School?
16  know where there are open bathrooms. 16 MS. STRONG: Objection.
17 Q. So other than those four bathrooms, are 17 Go ahead.
18 there, do you know if there are other bathrooms that 18 MS. GODFREY: Vague and ambiguous.
19 arenot faculty bathrooms on campus? 19 MS. STRONG: Join.
20 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered. 20 THE WITNESS: | don't recall ever talking
21 THE WITNESS: Yes, there are other 21 to anyone from the state about the number of
22 bathrooms. 22 bathroomsor toilets at the schoal.
23 BY MS.LHAMON: 23 BY MS.LHAMON:
24 Q. And those bathrooms are locked? 24 Q. Haveyou ever seen anything in writing from
25 A. They are unlocked during classtime. The 25 the state, from anyone at the state level asto the
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1 teachers have the responsibilities for opening them 1 number of toilets on campus at Crenshaw High School ?
2 during passing period. And also teachers on certain 2 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and
3 wings, if students have emergencies, they will 3 ambiguous.
4 unlock bathrooms on the wing in the hallways. 4 MS. STRONG: Join.
5 Q. Do you check to seeif other bathrooms are 5 THE WITNESS: Not that | know of.
6 unlocked during passing periods? 6 BY MS.LHAMON:
7 A. | know teachers are assigned to those 7 Q. And have you ever seen anything in writing
8 bathrooms. And sometimes | walk by to check during 8 from anyone at the state level about the number of
9 passing period, when I'minthe areg, to seeif 9 bathrooms or tailets that should be on a high school
10 bathrooms are open, if kids are coming in and out of 10 campus?
11 them. Sol observe kids coming in and out. 11 MS. STRONG: Objection; asked and answered
12 | don't particularly go just to check to 12 totheextent it has been, but vague and ambiguous.
13 seeif the bathrooms are open. 13 THEWITNESS: | don't recall reading it.
14 Q. Do you know if there are any state 14 If I didinmy 32 years, | don't remember reading
15 requirements about the number of bathrooms or number 15 it
16 of toilets that a campus should have per student? 16 BY MS. LHAMON:
17 MS. STRONG: Objection; callsfor 17 Q. And have you ever read anything from anyone
18 speculation beyond a yes or no answer. 18 a thedisgtrict level about the number of toilets
19 THE WITNESS: | don't, | don't know; right 19 that should be available on a high school campus?
20 now | don't know therequirements. | know thereis 20 MS. GODFREY: Objection; asked and
21 --wdl, | won't gothere. 21 answered.
22 | don't know if there is a requirement by 22 THEWITNESS: No.
23 thedae 23 BY MS.LHAMON:
24 I'm sure in day-cares and preschools, there 24 Q. And has anyone from the district ever
25 are space requirements. 25 communicated with you about the number of bathrooms
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1 that areavailable to students on Crenshaw High 1 BY MS LHAMON:
2 School campus? 2 Q. Didyou understand the question, Mr. Kidl?
3 MS. GODFREY : Objection; asked and 3 A. I'would changethe palicy if | got it from
4  answered. 4 digtrict that a bathroom should be open for, that
5 MS. STRONG: Join. 5 onetoilet should be open for every 30 girls?
6 THE WITNESS: Not the number. 6 Q. And for every 40 boys, that's the
7 BY MS. LHAMON: 7 Question.
8 Q. And has anyone from the district 8 A. And for every 40 boys.
9 communicated with you about the number of bathrooms | 9 | would change the palicy. | havent, |
10 at Crenshaw High School? 10 don't remember seeing the policy, and | would check
11 MS. GODFREY : Objection; vague and 11 it. I dontknow. | can'timagine--
12 ambiguous. 12 I would try to comply with any district
13 MS. STRONG: Vague and ambiguous and calls 13 policy and/or guideline; | would try to comply with
14 for speculdtion. 14 it
15 THE WITNESS:. Bathroom facilities, that 15 So that'swhere | will leavethat. | will
16 students should have access to bathrooms at all 16 tryto comply with al digtrict policiesand
17 times. Andthat's what we have made every effort, 17 guiddines.
18 that'swhat we have done. We have made efforts, and 18 MS. GODFREY: | want to take abresk for a
19 we have donethat. 19 second.
20 BY MS.LHAMON: 20 MS. LHAMON: Oh, sure.
21 Q. When have you received that communication 21 MS. GODFREY: Thereisno question pending.
22 from someone at the digtrict level? 22 (Recesstaken.)
23 A. | don't remember. Throughout my years as 23 MS. LHAMON: Let's go back on the record.
24  principa and assistant principal. | don't remember 24 Arewe back on?
25 or recal the exact dates of the bulletins or memos, 25 We have had an off-the-record
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1 but | doremember having discussions about bathrooms 1 conversation. Mr. Kidl has stated that heistired
2 over thelast four to five years. 2 fortheday. Andwe have decided to conclude the
3 Q. Andthat's understanding that the district 3 deposition now to honor that.
4 has apolicy about bathroom availability to students 4 And we would like to make the same
5 oncampus? 5 dipulation we have made in the past, assuming
6 A. | don't understand that was policy. | know 6 that's okay with dl counsel present.
7 there was some discussion, a directive that students 7 MS. STRONG: Correct.
8 must have access to bathrooms at al times. 8 MS. GODFREY: Yes itis.
9 Q. Andthedirectiveisthat students have 9 MS. STRONG: Yes.
10 access to bathrooms at all times, is that correct? 10 MS. LHAMON: And we intend to communicate
11 A. That'sright. 11 with counsd for Mr. Kid about the date on which he
12 Q. Would you change any of Crenshaw's 12 would be able to continue the deposition. We are
13 policies, if you received information directing you 13 anticipating that we would continue it some date
14 to ensure that the school maintains one toilet and 14  during the week of July 16th.
15 bathroom that is unlocked for every 30 girls and for 15 MS. GODFREY: That's correct. Mr. Kid has
16 every 40 boys? 16 indicated that heis unavailable for the remainder
17 MS. GODFREY: Objection; vague and 17 of thisweek and is going on vacation the following
18 ambiguous, incomplete hypothetical; assumes facts 18 week. Sowe anticipate being able to reschedule
19 notinevidence. 19 something during the week of July 16.
20 And | would like to have the question 20 MS. LHAMON: Thank you.
21 repeated? 21 Now off the record.
22 MS. STRONG: Calsfor speculation beyond 22 (WHEREUPON, AT 2:49 PM., THE
23 what was said, and calls for speculation. 23 DEPOSITION OF TRAVIS KIEL WAS
24 MS. GODFREY: Can we have the question 24 ADJOURNED.)
25 repested. 25
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DECLARATION

| hereby declare | am the deponent in the
within matter; that | have read the foregoing
depaosition and know the contents thereof, and |
declare that the same is true of my knowledge except
as to the matters which are therein stated upon my
information or belief, and as to those matters, |
believeit to betrue.

| declare under the penalties of perjury of
the State of Californiathat the foregoing istrue
and correct.

Executed on the day of

, 2001, at

, Cdifornia
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
SS.
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )

|, DONNIE A. STICKLEY, C.SR. No. 9510, do
hereby certify:

That the foregoing deposition was taken before
me at the time and place therein set forth, at which
time the witness was put under oath by me;

That the testimony of the witness and al
objections made at the time of the examination were
recorded stenographically by me, were thereafter
transcribed under my direction and supervision and
that the foregoing is atrue record of same.

| further certify that | am neither counsel for
nor related to any party to said action, nor in any
way interested in the outcome thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have subscribed my name
this day of , 2001.

DONNIE A. STICKLEY, C.SR. No. 9510
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